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About Our
Company

Nitiraj Engineers Ltd., established in 1989, is one of
the leading manufacturers of Electronic Weighing
Scales and Systems and Digital Fare Meters. 
our brand              is one of the renowned brands
in Electronic Weighing Scales in India. 

Company has sophisticated, state-of-the-art in-
house facility for continuous research, consistent
production and stringent quality control. 
Our Company caters to all India market through
its closely knit sales and service network
comprising of branch offices and dealers,
providing prompt service and support.

     Our motto: “Quality product at reasonable price.”
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Dear Members,

NOTICE is hereby given that the 24th Annual General Meeting of NITIRAJ ENGINEERS

LIMITED will be held on Monday, 25th September 2023 at 12.30 PM through Video

Conferencing ("VC") / Other Audio-Visual Means ("OAVM")to transact the following

business: - 

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt Standalone and Consolidated Audited Financial

statements including Profit and Loss Account Balance Sheet, for the year ended on

31st March, 2023 along with Directors Report and Audited Report of the Company.

a) “RESOLVED THAT the Standalone Audited Financial Statements of the Company for

the year 2022-23 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors’ and Auditors’

thereon of the Company for the year 2022-23 as presented to the meeting, be and

hereby, adopted.”

b) “RESOLVED THAT the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the

year  2022-23 together with the Reports of the Auditors’ thereon of the Company for

the year 2022-23 as presented to the meeting, be and hereby, approved and adopted.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, any one director of the company be and is here by

authorized to sign the Audited Financial Statements of the company and to do all acts,

things deed which are necessary to give effect the above resolution.”

 2. To Re-Appoint M/s. SHARP AARTH & CO, Chartered Accountants Statutory Auditors

And Fix Their Remuneration And This Regards Pass With Or Without Modification(S),

The Following Resolution As An Ordinary Resolution.

NOTICE OF THE 24TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 141 and 142 of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including

any statutory modifications or amendments or re-enactments thereof for the time being in

force), 

M/s. SHARP AARTH & CO,LLP Chartered Accountants, Jalgoan (FRN: 132748W), appointed

through postal ballot dated 16th August, 2022 be and is hereby re-appointed as the Statutory

Auditor of the Company for a period of 5 years –to conduct the Statutory Audit from

Financial 

Year 2023-24 to Financial year 2026-27 and to hold office from the conclusion of 24TH

Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of Annual General Meeting to be held in the year

2028, on such remuneration & terms of engagement, as may be mutually agreed between the

Board/ Audit Committee and the Auditors of the Company from time to time.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

1. TO RE-APPOINT ROTATIONAL DIRECTOR –

To consider re-appointment of Mr. Yi Hung Sin, Whole Time Director holding (DIN :

01953871), who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act,2013

and being eligible offers himself for re- appointment. For details of Director seeking re-

appointment at the Annual General meeting please refer Annexure I.

                                                                                                                    By order of the Board of Directors,

                                                                                                                               NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED

                                                                                                                                                               Sd/-

                                                                                                                                         (Deepika Amit Dalmiya)      

                                                                                                     Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

 Place  :         Mumbai, Maharashtra 

Date   :         01/09/2023
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NOTES: 

1. General Instructions for Accessing And Participating In The AGM through Vc/Oavm Facility

And Voting Through Electronic Means Including Remote E-Voting..

a. In the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its General Circulars dated 8th April

2020, 13th April 2020, 5th May 2020, 28th September 2020, 31st December 2020, 13th

January 2021, 05th May 2022 and 28th December 2022 issued by the Ministry of Corporate

Affairs (“MCA”) in relation to “Clarification on holding of annual general meeting (AGM)

through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM)”, (collectively referred

to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through

VC/OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance

with the MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM. The

registered office of the Company shall be deemed to be the venue for the AGM.  

b. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of

Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not

available for this EGM/AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorized

representatives to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast

their votes through e-voting.

c. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM Facility, the Route Map is not annexed in this

Notice.

d. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the

scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned

in the Notice. The facility of participation at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made

available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large

Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional

Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee,

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee,

Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on account of first

come first served basis.
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e. The attendance of the Members attending the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted

for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

f. Since the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with in terms of Applicable

Circulars, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of

appointment of proxies by the Members under Section 105 of the Act is not available for this

24th AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed hereto. Since the

AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is not

annexed hereto.

g.Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation

44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended),

and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13,

2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members

in respect of the business to be transacted at the EGM/AGM. For this purpose, the Company

has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for

facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting

votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the

EGM/AGM will be provided by NSDL. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote

e-voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

h.Non-Resident Indian members are requested to inform RTA immediately about: 

1. the change in the residential status on return to India for permanent settlement; and 

2. the particulars of the bank account(s) maintained in India with complete name,  branch,

and account type, account number and address of the bank, if not furnished earlier. 

i.Members are requested to

1. Quote their Identification number/ folio number in all correspondence with the Company/

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA). 

2. Notify immediately and change in their address and their mandate, at the Registered Office

of the Company / Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA).
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j. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed

from Tuesday, 19th September, 2023 to Monday, 25th September, 2023 (both days

inclusive) for the purpose of AGM.

k. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13,

2020, the Notice calling the EGM/AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at

www.nitiraj.net.  The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges

i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and

www.nseindia.com respectively and the EGM/AGM Notice is also available on the website of

NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

In line with the Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No.10/2022 dated December

28,2022

l. EGM/AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 and

MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05,

2020 and MCA Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021.

m.Information as required under Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing

Regulations’) and the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the

Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), in respect of the Directors seeking

appointment / re-appointment at the AGM is provided under a separate heading, which

forms part of this Notice.

2.The company has set Friday, 1st September, 2023 as the Cutoff date for taking record of

the shareholders of the company who will be eligible for casting their vote on the resolution

to be passed in the ensuring AGM for both E–Voting and Physical mode through Polling

Paper

3.The remote e-voting period will commence on Friday, 22nd September, 2023 at 9:00 A.M.

and ends on Sunday, 24th September, 2023 at 5:00 P.M. 
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During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in

dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e. Monday, 18th September, 2023, may cast their

vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once

the vote on a resolution is cast by the shareholder, the shareholder shall not be allowed to

change it subsequently.

4.The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up

equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. Monday, 18th September, 2023.

5.A member may participate in the meeting even after exercising his right to vote through

remote e-voting but shall not be allowed to vote again at the meeting.

6.A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial

owners maintained by the depositories as on cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the

facility of remote evoting.

7.The Board of Directors has appointed CA Piyush Agrawal, Chartered Accountants

(Membership No. 135041) as scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting at the meeting and remote e-

voting process in a fair transparent manner.

8.The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of e-voting at Annual General

Meeting, download the votes cast at the AGM and thereafter unblock the votes cast through

remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the

Company. Scrutinizer shall within two working days of conclusion of the meeting submit a

consolidated scrutinizer report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to the

Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing.

9.The results along with the Scrutinizers Report shall be placed on the website of the

Company and on the website of NSDL and also be immediately forwarded to NSE, Mumbai.

10.All the Statutory Registers and Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying

Notice and the Statement is open for inspection by the members at the Regd. office of the

Company on all working days, during business hours up to the date of the Meeting.
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11. Members desiring any information relating to the Accounts are requested to write to the

Company well in advance so as to enable management to keep the information ready.

12. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of India has introduced ‘Green

Initiative in Corporate Governance’ by allowing paperless compliance by the Companies for

service of documents to their Members through electronic mode, which will be in compliance

with Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under.

13. The transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education & Protection Fund of the

Central Government as required in terms of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, during

the current Financial Year is not applicable.

14. SEBI & the Ministry of Corporate Affairs encourage paperless communication as a

Contribution to greener environment. Members holding shares in physical mode are

requested to register their e-mail ID’s with the Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd., the Registrars &

Share Transfer Agents of the Company and Members holding shares in de-mat mode are

requested to register their e-mail ID’s with their respective Depository Participants (DPs) in

case the same is still not registered.

If there is any change in the e-mail ID already registered with the Company, members are

requested to immediately notify such change to the Registrars & Share Transfer Agents of

the Company in respect of shares held in physical form and to DPs in respect of shares held

in electronic form.

15. The Securities and Exchange Board of India has mandated submission of Permanent

Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in

demat form are, therefore, requested to submit PAN details to the Depository Participants

with whom they have de-mat accounts.

16. Members are requested to bring their copy of Annual report of the meeting as the same

shall not be circulated thereat.

17. Members are requested to intimate their email id at investor@nitiraj.netin order to meet

the requirement of green initiatives.
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18. Electronic copy of Notice of the AGM along with Annual Report 2022-23 including remote

E Voting Instruction, is being sent by electronic mode to those members who is registered as

a member as on 1st September, 2023 on their registered E mail ID. For those shareholders

whose name stands registered in the register of member as on Friday 1st September, 2023

and who want a physical copy of the same kindly request to the company on

investor@nitiraj.net. 

19. Shareholders are also informed that voting shall be by E-voting.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL

MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Friday 22nd September, 2023 at 9:00 A.M. and ends

on Sunday 24th September, 2023 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled

by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of

Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e.

18th September, 2023 may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders

shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on

the cut-off date, being 18th September, 2023.

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are

mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders

holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
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Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual

Shareholders holding

securities in demat

mode with NSDL.

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of

NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal

Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page

click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is

available under ‘IDeAS’section , this will prompt you to

enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services

under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting”

under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting

page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider

i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of

NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting

period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the

meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to

register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select

“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by

typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the

home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon

“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’

section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your

User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold

with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as

shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you

will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can

see e-Voting page. 
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Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e.

NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of

NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting

period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the

meeting.

4.Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL

Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR

code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

Individual

Shareholders

holding securities

in demat mode

with CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they

can login through their user id and password. Option will

be made available to reach e-Voting page without any

further authentication. The URL for users to login to to

Easi/Easiesare

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or

www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be

also able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have

links of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on

NSDL to cast your vote.

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to

register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiReg
istration
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4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting

page by providing demat Account Number and PAN No.

from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The

system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on

registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat

Account. After successful authentication, user will be

provided links for the respective ESP i.e.NSDL where the

e-Voting is in progress.

Individual

Shareholders

(holding securities in

demat mode) login

through their

depository

participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your

demat account through your Depository Participant

registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon

logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click

on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL

Depository site after successful authentication, wherein

you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or

e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be

redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual

meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to

use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any

technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual

Shareholders

holding securities

in demat mode

with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL

helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at

toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30
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Individual

Shareholders

holding securities

in demat mode

with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL

helpdesk by sending a request at

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738

or 022-23058542-43

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding

securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2.Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which

is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3.A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP

and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL

eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed

to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4.Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e.Demat

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical
Your User ID is :

a) For Members who hold shares in

demat account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit

Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300***

and Client ID is 12****** then your

user ID is IN300***12******.
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b) For Members who hold shares in

demat account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is

12************** then your user ID is

12**************

c) For Members holding shares in

Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number

registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001***

and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is

101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given

below: 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing

password to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve

the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial

password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to

change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your

‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to

you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf

file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for

NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares

held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process

for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have

forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.
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Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your

PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes

on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7.After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on

the check box.

8.Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9.After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in

which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active

status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-

Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual

meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the

number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also

“Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option

on the confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your

vote.
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General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to

send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter

etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are

authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to piyushragrawal@gmail.com with a copy

marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take

utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be

disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event,

you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset

Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

3.In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for

Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download

section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and1800 22 44 30

or send a request to Veena Suvarna at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for

procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions

set out in this notice:

1.In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder,

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN

card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to investor@nitiraj.net. 

2.In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16

digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self

attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to

investor@nitiraj.net. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode,

you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-

Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat

mode.

3.Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring

user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.
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In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.

Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their

demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE AS

UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions

mentioned above for remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM

facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are

otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the

EGM/AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM.

However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the

facility for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote

e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS

UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through

the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for

Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link”

placed under “Join General meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click

on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be

available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please

note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have

forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting

instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.
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2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3.Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to

avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their

respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to

mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders, who would like to express their views/have questions may send their

questions in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id,

mobile number at investor@nitiraj.net. The same will be replied by the company suitably.

ANNEXTURE 1

Name of the Director Mr. Yi Hung Sin

15/11/1964

01953871DIN

Date of Birth 

Date of Appointment of the Board

Brief Resume, Qualification and

nature of expertise in functional

areas

Mr. YI Hung Sin is the Whole Time Director of

our Company. Having 30 years of experience in

business management. He is well-known for his

planning skills with respect to production and

Marketing and also liaison with the government

agencies. He has been a strong relationship

developer for the company with various

agencies over the time.

Directorship in other Public Companies NIL

01/07/2003

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No 3

Details of the Directors seeking re-appointment at the AGM of the Company Pursuant to

Regulation 36(3) of the (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015

Qualification B.E. Computer
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Relationships with other Directors,

Manager and other Key Managerial

personnel

-

Details of remuneration paid in last

financial year
7,20,000

No. of Shares held in the Company 

Membership/Chairmanship of

Committee of other Public Companies 
NIL

8,32,500
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Chairman’s Letter

Dear Esteemed Shareholders,

I am truly honored to have this opportunity of having

gathered together to reflect on our company's progress,

discuss our achievements, and outline our future direction.

Your presence here is a testament to your support and belief

in our vision, and I want to express my sincere gratitude for

your continued trust.

Over the past year, we have faced both challenges and triumphs, navigating an ever-evolving

business landscape with resilience and determination. Our team has worked tirelessly to not

only adapt but also innovate, ensuring that we remain at the forefront of our industry.

I am delighted to present the annual review of Nitiraj Engineers Ltd. for the fiscal year 2022-

23. Our total revenue from operations for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, amounted

to Rs.46.08 crore, a significant increase from Rs. 39.63 crore in the corresponding period last

year, reflecting a commendable growth of 16.28%. This growth trajectory can be attributed to

consistent new orders from governmental bodies and a surge in sales across our branch

operations and dealership network. This concerted effort culminated in a robust sales

recovery.

The EBIDTA (earnings before interest, depreciation, and tax, excluding other income) for the

fiscal year ending March 31, 2023, achieved a noteworthy Rs. 3.54 crore, surpassing the Rs.

1.79 crore recorded in the corresponding prior period. This remarkable growth of 98.19%

can be largely attributed to the substantial increase in sales volume. The resulting economies

of scale played a pivotal role in this substantial increase in EBIDTA. Importantly, our EBITDA

margins for FY23 stood at 7.68%.
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The versatility of our products, catering to diverse sectors such as Jewelers, Banks, NBFCs,

Kirana Stores, Homes, Healthcare Centers, Hospitals, Governments, and Transportation,

positions us advantageously to mitigate risks stemming from reduced demand in any single

sector.

Our distribution network comprises of newly inaugurated branch offices which makes the

sum to 20 branches now; and over 400 dealers. Over the past year, we have ventured into the

online space to tap into a wider market and cater to online customers. Our digital marketing

endeavors have yielded positive outcomes, reflected in an encouraging upswing in online

sales. We have also taken efforts to expand our reach to international markets and global

expansion.

In FY23, we received orders for 

1)      10,343 mother and child weighing scales from ICDS Chhattisgarh  

2)      45,139 Nos. Infant Weighing Scale (Hanging Type) Chhattisgarh from CGMSCL Raipur.  

3)      2,478 Nos. Infantometer to  Z.P Aurangabad  

4)      7000 Nos. Electronic Weighing Scale to Telangana 

5)     65,377 Nos. ( Infantometer 13751, Stadiometer 19251 Infant Weighing Scale Spring Type

12579 & Mother and Child Weighing Scale 19796) to Madhya Pradesh 

Aligned with our strategic focus, we remain dedicated to Research and Development (R&D)

and continuous innovation. Our robust R&D facility empowers us to pioneer new products

based on market feedback and demand. We also enhance product designs that contribute to

advanced features. With our current production capacity of more than one lakh scales per

year and a customer base exceeding 10 lakhs, we are resolute in promoting our brand

"Phoenix" through our extensive sales network, serving customers across India and

international markets.
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I want to assure you that every decision we make is rooted in our commitment to delivering

long-term value to our shareholders. We are keenly aware of the responsibility we have to

you, and we will remain transparent and accountable in our actions. Before I conclude, I

would like to extend heartfelt gratitude to every member of the Nitiraj family for their

unwavering dedication towards the company. I also extend appreciation to our valued

stakeholders whose support remains instrumental in propelling our company's growth and

prosperity. As we move forward together, I eagerly anticipate the achievements that we will

celebrate together in the coming years.

With warm regards,

Yours sincerely,

Sd/-

Rajesh Bhatwal

Managing Director

I would also like to share that our new unit at Dadra and Nagar Haveli, is now functional. It

covers an industrial unit area of approximately 5,000 square feet and complements our

existing plant in Dhule, Maharashtra. With market dynamics opening up and demand

gaining momentum, Nitiraj Engineers Ltd. is strategically poised to harness fresh

opportunities and augment its market footprint.
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1. Factory Entrance

2. Hi-tech Manchinery
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3. Workspace

4. Huge Storage
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Dear Members, 
 
Your Directors are pleased to present the 24th Annual Report on the business and operation of the 

Company together with the Audited Financial Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2023. 

 
1. Financial Highlights 

 

Financial results of your Company for the year ended 31st March 2023 are summarized below. 

(Standalone) 

 (Amount in Lac’s)  

Particulars 
 

Financial Statement 

2022-23 2021-22 

Income from Operations  4607.95 3962.63 

Other Income  47.02 58.22 

Total revenue                   4654.97 4020.85 

Operating Costs 4286.03 3833.65 

Profit before depreciation  368.94 187.20 

Depreciation 368.06 313.26 

Profit before exceptional item and Tax 0.89 (126.06) 

Exceptional Item  18.89 319.42 

Profit before Tax (PBT) (18.00) (445.48) 

Tax expense 19.05 (109.74) 

Profit for the year (PAT) (37.05) (335.74) 

Basic EPS  (0.36) (3.28) 
 

 
2. Highlights Of Performance:- 

 
Total Revenue for the year 2022-23 is Rs. 4607.95 lacs as compared to Rs. 3962.63 lacs in the 

previous year. Loss before Tax for the year was Rs. (18.00) lacs as compared to Loss of Rs.(445.48) 

lacs in the previous year. Loss after Tax for the year was Rs. (37.05) Lacs as compared to Loss of Rs. 

(335.74) lacs in the previous year. 
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3. Change In The Nature Of Business, If Any 

 There is no change in the nature of business carried out by the Company in the Year 2022-23. 

 

4. Share Capital 

 There is no change in Share Capital of the company during financial year 2022-23. 

 

5. Transfer To Reserves  

The Board of the Company has decided to transfer loss of Rs.37.05Lacs to the Reserves of the 

Company as on 31st March 2023. 

 

6. Capital Structure 

The capital structure of the company as on 31.03.2023 is as follows: 

 

The Authorized capital share capital of the company is Rs. 11,00,00,000 (Rupees Eleven Crore ) 

divided into 1,10,00,000 (One Crore Ten Lakhs) Equity shares of Rs. 10 Each. 

 

The issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the company is Rs 10,25,10,000 (Rupees Ten 

Crore Twenty Five Lakhs Ten Thousand ) divided into 1,02,51,000 (One Crore Twenty  Five Lakhs 

One Thousand) Equity shares of Rs. 10 Each. 

 

During the year under review the company has not issued any shares. The company has not issued 

any shares with differential voting rights or sweat equity or granted stock options. 

 

7. Dividend 

In order to plough back the profits for the activities of the company and strategy of growth in the 

business through enhancing manufacturing capacity, your directors do not recommend any 

dividend for the financial year. 
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8. Change In Name  

 The company has not changed its name during financial year 2022-23. 

 

9. The board and KMP : 

 

(a) Composition of the Board of Directors : 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive 

and Independent Directors. As on the date of this report, the Board comprises of 6(Six) Directors, 

out of which 3 are Executive Directors, 3 is Independent Non-Executive Director and is that includes 

one Woman Director.  

 

 The Company has following composition of the Board:- 

1   Mr. Rajesh Bhatwal Managing Director and Executive Director 

2 Mrs. Shakuntala Bhatwal Whole Time and Women Director   

3 Mr.Yi Hung Sin Whole Time Director   

4 Mr. Pranit Anil Bangad Independent Director Non-Executive Director 

5 Mr. Deepam Pradeep Shah   Independent Director Non-Executive Director 

6 Mr. AvinashRajaramChandsarkar Independent Director Non-Executive Director 

 

(b) Director Retiring by Rotation 

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the Article of Association 

of the Company, Mr. Yi Hung Sin(DIN No- 01953871), Whole Time Director of the Company retires by 

rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

The Board of Directors recommends to re-appointment him. 
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(c) Company Secretary & Compliance Officer. 

There was no change in the post of company secretary and compliance officer. 

 

10. Material Changes Between the Date of The Board Report and End of Financial Year 

There are material changes from the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 to the date of signing of 

the Director’s Report are as follows: 

Company expanding operations with Three New Branch Offices for EMFR based Analytical Weighing 

Balances”. The company's latest additions are located in the cities of Ahmedabad(Gujarat), 

Secunderabad (Telangana), and Cuttack (Odisha). 

Company Introduces “PW Series Electronic Weighing Scale with Enhanced Features”. 

Company received order from, Integrated Child Development Services, Andhra Pradesh, for supply 

of 19,236 no of “PHOENIX Spring Type Mechanical Weighing Scale (Infant)”. 

 

11. Meetings Of Board of Director and Shareholders 

During the year 2022-23Eleven Board of Directors meetings were held and five audit committee 

meetings and four nomination and remuneration committee meetings and three stakeholders’ 

relationship committee meetings were held and the intervening gap between meetings was within 

the period prescribed under Secretarial Standards applicable to the company. During the Financial 

Year 2022-23, there were four shareholder meeting conducted. 

 

12. Board Evaluation 

Pursuant to the provision of the companies Act, 2013, Listing regulation along with other rules  

and regulation applicable, if any, the company has carried out the annual performance evaluation 

of its own performance, the director individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its 

committees, A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration inputs 

received from the Directors, covering various aspect of the board functioning such as adequacy of 

the composition of the board and its committees, board culture, execution and performance of 
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specific duties, obligation and governance. 

 

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of the individual director including 

the Chairman of the Board, who were evaluated on parameter such as level of engagement and 

contribution, independence of judgment, Safeguarding interest of the company and its minority 

shareholders, etc. The performance evolution of Independent Director was carried out by entire 

board. The performance evolution of the chairman and non-Independent Director was carried out 

by the Independent Director who also reviewed the performance of the secretarial Department. 

The Director expresses their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

 

13. Company Policy On Director’s Appointment and Remuneration 

The policy of the company on Director’s appointment and remuneration including criteria for 

determining qualification, positive attributes, independence of Director and other matters provided 

under Sub – section (3) 178, is explained in the corporate governance report. 

 

14. Details Of Remuneration to Directors: - 

The remuneration paid to the Directors is in accordance with the recommendations of Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee formulated in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 

2013and any other re-enactment(s) for the time being in force. The information relating to 

remuneration of Directors and details of the ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the 

median employee’s remuneration and other details as required pursuant to section 197(12) of the 

Act read along with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure. 

 

15. Declaration By Independent Directors: - 

All the Independent Directors have given their declaration of Independence stating that they meet 

the criteria of independence as prescribed under section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013. Further 

that the Board is of the opinion that all the independent directors fulfill the criteria as laid down 
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under the Companies Act 2013 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 during the year 2022-23, same 

is enclosed herewith as Annexure. 

 

16. Separate meeting of independent directors: 

As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the Companies Act 2013 a separate 

meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on Thursday, 24th November, 2022 

to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors (including the Chairman) and the entire 

Board. The Independent Directors also reviewed the quality content and timeliness of the flow of 

information between the Management and the Board and its Committees which is necessary to 

effectively and reasonably perform and discharge their duties. 

 

17. Board Independence 

Our definition of 'Independence' of Directors is derived from Regulation 16 of SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations 2015 and Section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013. The Company is having following 

independent directors: 

 

(i) Pranit Bangad 

(ii) Avinash Chandsarkar 

(iii) Deepam Shah 

 

As per provisions of the Companies Act 2013 Independent Directors were appointed for a term of 5 

(five) consecutive years and shall not be liable to retire by rotation. 

 

18. Committees Of The Board 

Currently, the Board has Six Committees:-The Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and 

Internal Complaints Committee, Sexual Harassment Committee. All Committees, except the 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Internal Complaints Committee and, Sexual Harassment 
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Committee consist of Independent Directors. 

 

(a) Audit Committee 

The Board has constituted Audit Committee as required under Companies Act, 2013. The 

Composition of the Committee is as under: 

 

(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee  

The Board has constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee as required under Companies 

Act, 2013. The Composition of the Committee is as under: 

 

In terms of the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee is responsible for formulating the criteria for determining the 

qualifications, attributes and Independence of a Director. The Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee is also responsible for recommending to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration 

of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. In line with the requirement, 

the Board has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel and Senior Management which is as follows. 

 

Name of the Member Designation 

Mr.  Pranit Anil Bangad (ID) Chairperson 

Mr. Deepam Pradeep Shah (ID) Member 

Mr. Rajesh Raghunath Bhatwal (ED) Member 

Name of the Member Designation 

Mr. Deepam Pradeep Shah (ID) Chairperson 

Mr. Pranit Anil Bangad (ID) Member 

Mr. Avinash Rajaram Chandsarkar (ID) Member 
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(c) Stakeholder Relationship Committee: - 

The Board has constituted Stakeholder Relationship Committee as required under Securities 

Exchange Board of India (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(“Regulations”). 

 

(d) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is constituted in compliance with the requirements 

of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, to undertake the below mentioned tasks:  

 

A. To recommend, the policy on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and Implementation of the CSR 

Projects or program to be undertaken by the company, as per the CSR Policy for consideration and 

approval by the Board of Directors.  

B. Recommend, the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the corporate social responsibility 

activities; and  

C. Monitor the implementation of the Company’s corporate social responsibility policy.  

 

During the financial year 2022-23, it was observed that CSR provisions not applicable to company, 

as company not satisfying criteria mentioned in section 135 of companies act, 2013. 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises the following: 

 

 

Name of the Member Designation 

Mr. Pranit Anil Bangad (ID) Chairperson 

Mr. Avinash Rajaram Chandsarkar (ID) Member 

Mr Rajesh Raghunath Bhatwal (ED) Member 
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The Composition of the Committee is as under: 

  

(e) Investor Grievance Redressal Policy 

The Company has adopted an internal policy for Investor Grievance handling, reporting and solving. 

 

(f) Prevention of Sexual Harassment Committee 

The company has adopted policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment Committee. 

 

Name of the Member Designation 

Mr. Pranit Anil Bangad(ID) Chairman 

Mr. Avinash Rajaram Chandsarkar(ID) Member 

Mr. Rajesh Raghunath Bhatwal(ED) Member 

Name of the Member Designation 

Mr. Pranit Anil Bangad (ID) Chairman 

Mr. Avinash Rajaram Chandsarkar (ID) Member 

Mr. Rajesh Raghunath Bhatwal (ED) Member 

Mrs. Shakuntala Rajesh Bhatwal (ED) Member 

Name of the Member Designation 

Mr. Deepam Shah (ID) Chairman 

Mr. Avinash Rajaram Chandsarkar(ID) Member 

Mr. Rajesh Raghunath Bhatwal(ED) Member 

Mrs. Shakuntala Rajesh Bhatwal(ED) Member 
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The company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every 

individual working in premises and always endeavors to create and provide an environment that is 

free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment. 

 

During the year ended 31st March, 2023, the company has not received any complaint pertaining to 

sexual harassment. 

In order to prevent Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace a new act “The Sexual Harassment 

of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013” has been notified on 9th 

December, 2013. Under the said Act every Company is required to set up an Internal Complaints 

Committee to look into complaints relating to sexual harassment at work place of any women 

employee. 

The Company has adopted “Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy” constituted “Redressed Committee” as 

required under section 4 (1) of Sexual harassment of women at work place (prevention, prohibition 

and redressal) Act, 2013. During the year under review, no complaint of harassment at the 

workplace was received by the Committee. 

 

19. Vigil Mechanism For Directors And Employees : 

Your Company is committed to highest standards of ethical, moral and legal business conduct. 

Accordingly, the Board of Directors has formulated a Whistle Blower Policy which is in compliance 

with the provisions of Section 177 (9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of 

Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 

Employees can raise concerns regarding any discrimination, harassment, victimization, any other 

unfair practice being adopted against them or any instances of fraud by or against your Company. 

Any incidents that are reported are investigated and suitable action taken in line with the Whistle 

Blower Policy. 
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20. Risk Management Policy 

The Company has formulated a Risk Management Policy for dealing with different kinds of risks 

which it faces in day to day operations of the Company. Risk Management Policy of the Company 

outlines different kinds of risks and risk mitigating measures to be adopted by the Board. The 

Company has adequate internal control systems and procedures to combat the risk. The Risk 

management procedure will be reviewed by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors on time 

to time basis. 

 

21. Policy On Preservation Of The Documents 

The Company has formulated a Policy pursuant to Regulation 9 of the Securities Exchange Board of 

India (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Regulations”) on 

Preservation of the Documents to ensure safekeeping of the records and safeguard the Documents 

from getting manhandled, while at the same time avoiding superfluous inventory of Documents. 

 

22. Policy On Criteria For Determining Materiality Of Events 

 The Policy is framed in accordance with the requirements of the Regulation 30 of Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,  

2015 (Regulations). 

https://investor.nitiraj.net/wp-content/uploads/sites/319/2022/09/Policy-on-determination-of-

Materiality-of-Events.pdf 

 

The objective of the Policy is to determine materiality of events or information of the Company and 

to ensure that such information is adequately disseminated in pursuance with the Regulations and 

to provide an overall governance framework for such determination of materiality. 
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23. Auditors : 

a. Statutory Auditors:- 

The Board of Director of the Company had appointed M/s. SHARP AARTH & CO, LLP Chartered 

Accountants, Jalgaon (FRN: 132748W), Statutory Auditors through Postal ballot dated on 16th 

August 2022.  

In this regard, the Company has received certificate from the Auditors to the effect that, if they are 

appointed, it would be in accordance with the provisions of section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Accordingly, proposal for their re-appointment as Statutory Auditors is being placed before the 

shareholders for approval at the 24th Annual General Meeting to hold office from Financial Year 

2023-24 to 2026-27. 

 

b. Secretarial Auditors: 

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of Audit Committee of the company has appointed 

M/s. D. Sagar & Associates, Aurangabad, Peer Reviewed Firm of Practicing Company Secretaries, 

having Membership No. F9518 and Certificate Practice No. 11547 as Secretarial Auditors of the 

Company as per provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under 

for the Financial Year 2022-23.  

The Secretarial Audit Report in form No MR-3 for the Financial Year 2022-23 form part of the Annual 

Report, as Annexure to the Board Report. 
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c. Cost Auditor: 

As per the requirement of the Central Government and pursuant to section 148 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014 as amended from time to time, 

the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of Cost records under section 148(1) 

of the Companies Act, 2013, for any of the services rendered by the Company.    

 

d. Internal Auditor 

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 

(as amended) the Board of Directors on the recommendations of the Audit Committee of the 

Company has appointed M/s Agrawal Kucheriya & Company, Chartered Accountants, as an internal 

Auditor of the company for FY 2022-23. 

 

The Internal Audit Finding/s and Report/s submitted by the said Internal Auditors during the 

financial year to the Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company do not contain any 

adverse remarks and qualifications hence do not call for any further explanation/s by the Company. 

 

24. Auditors’ Report 

Statutory Audit Report:- 

M/s. SHARP AARTH & CO, LLP Chartered Accountants, Jalgaon (FRN: 132748W), have issued their 

Report for the Financial Year ended 31stMarch 2023. Statutory Auditors not mentioned any 

Qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer in their report. 

 

Reply to Adverse Remark Made by Statutory Auditor: 

There are no adverse remarks made by the auditor of the company. 
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25. Related Party Transactions: 

All transactions entered into with the related parties, as defined under the Companies Act, 

2013,during the financial year, were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length pricing 

basis, as per the management representation certificate provided to auditor of the company and do 

not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. There are no materially 

significant transactions with the related parties during the financial year which were in conflict with 

the interest of the Company and hence, enclosing of form AOC- 2 is required, Suitable disclosure as 

required by the Accounting Standards (AS 18) has been made in the notes to the Financial 

Statements. 

 

A policy on the related party transactions was framed & approved by the Board and posted on the 

Company's website at below link: https://investor.nitiraj.net/wp-

content/uploads/sites/319/2022/09/Related-Party-Transactions-Policy.pdf 

  

However you may refer to Related Party Transactions as per the Accounting Standards in the Notes 

forming part of financial statements. 

 

26. Prevention of Insider Trading : 

In view of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation 2015 the Company has adopted a 

Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in securities by 

the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The details of the Insider Trading Policy 

have posted on the website of the Company.  

https://investor.nitiraj.net/wp-content/uploads/sites/319/2022/09/Policy-of-prevention-of-Insider-

Trading.pdf 

The objective of this Code is to protect the interest of shareholders at large, to prevent misuse of 

53

https://investor.nitiraj.net/wp-content/uploads/sites/319/2022/09/Related-Party-Transactions-Policy.pdf
https://investor.nitiraj.net/wp-content/uploads/sites/319/2022/09/Related-Party-Transactions-Policy.pdf
https://investor.nitiraj.net/wp-content/uploads/sites/319/2022/09/Policy-of-prevention-of-Insider-Trading.pdf
https://investor.nitiraj.net/wp-content/uploads/sites/319/2022/09/Policy-of-prevention-of-Insider-Trading.pdf


 

 

any price sensitive information and to prevent any insider trading activity by dealing inshares of the 

Company by its Directors, designated employees and other employees. The Company also adopts 

the concept of Trading Window Closure, to prevent its Directors, Officers, designated employees 

and other employees from trading in the securities of Nitiraj Engineers Limited at the time when 

there is unpublished price sensitive information. 

 

27. Credit & Guarantee Facilities :- 

The Company has been availing secured loans, overdraft facilities and bank guarantee facilities from 

HDFC Bank Limited, from time to time for the business requirements. 

 

28. Investors Education And Protection Fund 

During the financial year 2022-23 ended 31st March 2023 under review there were no amount/s 

which is required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

As such no specific details are required to be given or provided. 

 

29. Internal Audit Controls And Their Adequacy 

The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal controls, commensurate with the size 

scale and complexity of its operations. This ensures that, all transactions are authorized, recorded 

and reported correctly, and assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized 

use or disposition. In addition, there are operational controls and fraud risk controls, covering the 

entire spectrum of internal financial controls. 

To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the Chairman 

of the audit committee of the Board and to the Chairman and Managing Director. 

The internal Audit department monitors and evaluate the efficiency and adequacy of the internal 

control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and 

policies at all locations of the Company. Based on the report of internal audit functions, process 
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owner undertake corrective actions in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. 

Significant audit observations and recommendations along with corrective actions thereon are 

presented to the audit committee of the Board. 

 

Adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements 

The Company has internal Auditors and the Audit Committee constituted are in place to take care 

of the same. During the year, the Company continued to implement their suggestions and 

recommendations to improve the control environment. Their scope of work includes review of 

processes for safeguarding the assets of the Company, review of operational efficiency, 

effectiveness of systems and processes, and assessing the internal control strengths in all areas. 

Internal Auditors findings are discussed with the process owners and suitable corrective actions 

taken as per the directions of Audit Committee on an ongoing basis to improve efficiency in 

operations. 

 

30. Corporate Governance  

The Company being listed on the EMERGE Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

therefore pursuant to Regulation 15(2)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations 2015 Regulation 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations 2015 and Part C of Schedule V relating to compliance of Corporate Governance shall 

not applicable to the Company. Further The Company need not require complying with 

requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II pursuant to Regulation 27(1) SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015and submitting Compliance Report on 

Corporate Governance on quarterly basis pursuant to Regulation 27(2) SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015.Hence no Corporate Governance Report is required to 

be disclosed with Annual Report. It impertinent to mention that the Company follows majority of 

the provisions of the corporate governance voluntarily as a part of Good Corporate Governance. 
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31. Board Diversity 

The Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a diverse board in its success. We believe 

that a truly diverse board will leverage differences in thought, perspective, knowledge, skill, regional 

and industry experience, cultural and geographical background, age, ethnicity, race and gender, 

which will help us, retain our competitive advantage. 

 

32. Details of Associates 

During the financial year 2022-23, company has sold 1100 shares of associate company, now 

company’s holding is less than 20% and therefore Hyper Drive Information Technologies Private 

Limited (CIN U72200KA2005PTC036535) ceased to be an associate company of Nitiraj Engineers 

Limited, as per Companies Act 2013 

 

33. Significant And Material Orders Passed By The Regulators Or courts Or Tribunals Impacting The 

Going Concern Status And Company’s Operations In Future: 

During the year under review there has been no such significant and material Orders passed by the 

Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in 

future. 

34. Deposits From Public 

The Company has not accepted any Deposits within the ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 
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35. Particulars Of Loans, Guarantees Or Investments Under Section 186 

The company has not given any loans or provided guarantees or made investments to third parties 

in which directors are interested as specified in section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the 

year under review. 

 

36. Insurance: 

All the assets of the Company wherever necessary and to the extent required have been adequately 

insured. 

 

37. Employee relations: 

The relationship with the staff and workers continued to be cordial during the entire year. The 

Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the valuable work done and co-operation 

extended by them at all levels. Further, the Company is taking necessary steps to recruit the 

required personnel from time to time. 

 

38. Status of Utilization of Proceeds Raised From IPO : 

The Company has raised an amount of Rs. 2,200.80 Lacs through Initial Public Offer by getting itself 

listed on the main board Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The table below 

depicts the status of the utilization of the proceeds raised by the Company from IPO: 

Pursuant to the provisions of clause 43 of the listing agreement with the exchange, the disclosure is 

as follows:  

The utilization of the issue proceeds as on 31st March 2023 is as under: 

Utilization of money raised through Initial Public Offer. The utilization of the issue proceeds as on 

31st March 2023 is as under: Utilization planned as per prospectus [Amt. Rs.Lac’s] 
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39. Certification 

Company has obtained ISO 9001:2015. 

 

 

Particulars 

Utilization 

planned as 

per 

prospectus 

Balance 

Amount to be 

utilized as on 

31stMarch, 

2021 

Utilization 

of IPO 

proceeds as 

during the 

FY 2021-22 

Balance 

Amount to 

be utilized 

as on 31st 

March, 2022 

Utilization 

of IPO 

proceeds as 

during the 

FY 2022-23 

Balance 

Amount to be 

utilized as on 

31st March, 

2023 

Development of 

new products  
525.00 75.97 127.36 - - - 

Setting up 

manufacturing 

Unit for the 

existing and new 

range of 

products 

575.00 - - - - - 

Expansion of 

Marketing 

Network and 

Brand building 

500.00 360.01 153.15 206.86 175.93 30.93 

General 

Corporate 

Purposes 

500.00 - - - - - 

Issue Expenses 100.80 22.92 - 22.92 - 22.92 

Total 2200.80 458.90 280.52 229.78 175.93 53.85 
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40. Particulars Of Employees 

There are no employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed under Rule 5(2) of 

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

Information as required under the provisions of Rules 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are set out in Annexures to the Directors’ 

Report. 

 

41. Corporate Social Responsibility  

In Financial year 2022-23, CSR provisions are not applicable to company, as company not satisfying 

criteria mentioned in section 135 of Companies Act, 2013. 

 

42. Registrar And Share Transfer Agent: 

The Company has appointed Bigshare Services Private Limited as its Registrar and Share Transfer 

Agent. The Corporate Office of Bigshare Services Private Limited situated at 

Office No S6-2, 6th floor Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre,  Mahakali Caves Road, 

Andheri (East) Mumbai - 400093, India. 

 

43. Enhancing shareholders value : 

Your Company believes that, its Members are among its most important stakeholders. Accordingly, 

your Company’s operations are committed to the pursuit of achieving high levels of operating 

performance and cost competitiveness, consolidating and building or growth, enhancing the 

productive asset and resource base and nurturing overall corporate reputation.  

 

Your Company is also committed to creating value for its other stakeholders by ensuring that its 

corporate actions positively impact the socioeconomic and environmental dimensions and 

contribute to sustainable growth and development. 
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44. Our Vision 

To be a most adorable global partner to all the stake holders in every aspect of weighing 

manufacturing. 

 

45. Our mission : 

By offering quality bales & premium weighing machines and timely service embedded with value 

driven culture resulting in finding new avenues to surpass global standards in every activity that 

needs to nurture the society to the better tomorrow. 

 

46. Extract  of Annual Return 

In accordance with Section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, an Extract of the Annual Return 

as per Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies(Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014 in the prescribed Format MGT-9 will be made available on the 

website of the company after conclusion of the AGM. 

 

47. Directors’ Responsibility Statement 

Pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Board of Directors of the Company, 

 

(a) In preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2023, the applicable 

Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper explanation to material departures 

(b) The Directors have selected Accounting Policies, consulted the Statutory Auditors and applied them 

consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at end of the financial year and of the 

profit or loss of the Company, for that period. 

(c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and  

ability for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 

60



 

 

Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 

fraud and other irregularities and 

(d) The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts of the company on a going concern basis; 

(e) The Directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

(f) There is a proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 

such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

 

48. Conservation Of Energy, Technology Absorption And Foreign Exchange Earnings And Outgo :-  

The particulars as prescribed under Sub Section (3)(m) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

A. Conservation of Energy: 

The Company’s core activity is Production of Weighing Scales and related which is core consuming 

sector. The Company is making every effort to conserve the usage of electricity. Also in the year 

April 2016 Company has installed solar Electricity Plant in its Corporate Office Dhule, by which 

Company is trying to save electricity. 

 

The Company ensures that the manufacturing operations are conducted in the manner whereby 

optimum utilization and maximum possible savings of energy is achieved. 

 

A comparative Statement showing consumption of Electricity per kg of yarn manufactured during 

the current and previous year is appended here with as Annexure. 

 

B.   Technology Absorption (R&D, Adaptation and Innovation): 

1. Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation: 

(i) Continuous research to upgrade existing products and to develop new products and services. 
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(ii) To enhance its capability and customer service the Company continues to carry out R & D activities 

in house. 

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts: 

(i) Introduction of new and qualitative products. 

(ii) Upgrade of existing products. 

3. Future plan of action: 

Nitiraj will continue to invest in and adopt the best processes and methodologies suited to its line 

of business and long-term strategy. Training employees in the latest appropriate technologies will 

remain a focus area. The Company will continue to leverage new technologies and also on the 

expertise available. 

 

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo  

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange 

outgo during the year in terms of actual Outflows 

  (Amount in Rs) 

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 

Foreign Exchange Earnings 19,59,260 34,31,398 

Foreign Exchange Outgo 4,27,33,785 4,33,20,188 

 

49. Dematerialization of securities: 

 

The Company equity shares are admitted in the system of Dematerialization by both the 

Depositories namely NSDL and CDSL. As on 31stMarch, 2023, all 1,02,51,000 equity share 

dematerialized viz. National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) 

Limited which represents whole 100% of the total issued subscribed and paid up capital of the 
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company as on that date. The ISIN allotted to your Company is INE439T01012. Status of the 

securities as on 31st March, 2023 hereunder: 

 

 CDSL NSDL TOTAL 

Share in DEMAT 1417271 8833729 
 

10251000 

Physical Shares NIL NIL NIL 

 

50. Management Discussion Analysis: - 

 

The Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of this Annual report is annexed as annexure. 

 

51. Compliances of Secretarial Standards: 

 

The Board of Directors confirm that the Company has duly complied and is in compliance, with the 

applicable secretarial Standard/s, namely Secretarial Standard-1 (SS-1) on Meeting of the Board of 

Directors and Secretarial Standard-2 (SS-2) on General Meetings, during the financial year 2022-

2023. 

 

52. Suspension of Trading: 

 

There was no occasion wherein the equity shares of the Company have been suspended for trading 

during the FY 2022-2023. 

 

53. Details of Application Made or Any Proceeding Pending Under the IBC 2016: 

 

During the year under review no application was made further no any proceeding pending under 

the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) against of the company. 
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54. Details of Penalty Paid if any: 

 

A non-compliance of Regulation 23 (9) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) has 

been observed during the reporting period and therefore a monetary penalty of Rs. 5,900 (Rupees 

Five Thousand Nine Hundred only) has been imposed on the company. The SEBI has reversed the 

fine amount through the letter dated 5th April, 2023. 
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors, 

  NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED 
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 Date   : 01/09/2023 

 Place : Mumbai 
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ANNEXURES- A 
Form AOC-1 

 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 

read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of 

Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures 

ASSOCIATE 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint 

Ventures. 

 
Nitiraj Engineers Limited sold 8.25% investment i.e. 1100 shares of Hyper Drive Information Technologies 
Private Limited, now company ceased to be holding company of Hyper Drive Information Technologies 
Private Limited as on 31st march, 2023. 
 
In terms of our report attached   
FOR NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED 
 

Sd/-  Sd/-    Sd/-   Sd/- 

Rajesh Bhatwal  Shakuntala Bhatwal  Kailas Agrawal  Deepika A. Dalmiya 
Managing   Whole Time and      Chief Financial  Company Secretary 
Director      Women Director  Officer   Membership No. A58029 
 
Date – 01/09/2023 
Place – Mumbai 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Associate Hyper Drive Information 
Technologies Private Limited - 
Associate Company ceased w. e .f 
24th February, 2023 

1. Latest Audited Balance Sheet date  

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year 
end 

 

 Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture  

 Extent of Holding%  

3. Description of how there is significant influence  

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated  

5. Net worth attributable to our (25%) shareholding as per latest 
audited Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2022. 

 

6. Profit/Loss for the year  

 i. Considered in Consolidation   

 ii. Not Considered in Consolidation  

65



 

 

 

ANNEXURE - B 
FORM NO. AOC -2 

 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 

parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length 

transaction under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

Sr. No. Particulars Details 

1. Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Hyper Drive Information 
Technologies Private Limited 
Associate company till 24th 
February, 2023 

2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Rent Received, Sale of shares, 
maintenance services 

3.  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 1 year or extended as maybe 
applicable 

4. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transaction including the value, if any 

NA 

5. Justification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions’ 

NA 

6. Date of approval by the Board NA 

7. Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

8. Date on which the special resolution was passed in 
General meeting as required under first proviso to 
section 188 

 
NA 

 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars Details 

1. Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Rajesh Bhatwal 
Managing Director 

2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Remuneration 

3.  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 1 year or extended as maybe applicable 

4. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transaction including the value, if any 

NA 
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5. Justification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions’ 

NA 

6. Date of approval by the Board NA 

7. Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

8. Date on which the special resolution was passed in 
General meeting as required under first proviso to 
section 188 

 
NA 

3. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

 

Sr. No. Particulars Details 

1. Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Shakuntala Bhatwal 
Woman Director 

2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Remuneration 

3.  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 1 year or extended as maybe 
applicable 

4. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transaction including the value, if any 

NA 

5. Justification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions’ 

NA 

6. Date of approval by the Board NA 

7. Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

8. Date on which the special resolution was passed in 
General meeting as required under first proviso to section 
188 

 
NA 

 

4. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

Sr. No. Particulars Details 

1. Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Hung Sin Chung Huan YI 
Director 

2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Remuneration 

3.  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 1 year or extended as maybe 
applicable 

4. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transaction including the value, if any 

NA 

5. Justification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions’ 

NA 

6. Date of approval by the Board NA 

7. Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

8. Date on which the special resolution was passed in 
General meeting as required under first proviso to section 
188 

 
NA 
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5. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

 

Sr. No. Particulars Details 

1. Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Prachi Bhatwal 
Relative of Director 

2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Salary 

3.  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 1 year or extended as maybe 
applicable 

4. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transaction including the value, if any 

NA 

5. Justification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions’ 

NA 

6. Date of approval by the Board NA 

7. Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

8. Date on which the special resolution was passed in 
General meeting as required under first proviso to section 
188 

 
NA 

 

6. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

Sr. No. Particulars Details 

1. Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Dipika Dalmiya 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Salary 

3.  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 1 year or extended as maybe applicable 

4. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transaction including the value, if any 

NA 

5. Justification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions’ 

NA 

6. Date of approval by the Board NA 

7. Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

8. Date on which the special resolution was passed in 
General meeting as required under first proviso to 
section 188 

 
NA 
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7. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

 

Sr. No. Particulars Details 

1. Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Kailas Agrawal 
Chief Finance Officer 

2. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Salary, Loan as per HR Policy 

3.  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 1 year or extended as maybe applicable 

4. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transaction including the value, if any 

NA 

5. Justification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions’ 

NA 

6. Date of approval by the Board NA 

7. Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

8. Date on which the special resolution was passed in 
General meeting as required under first proviso to 
section 188 

 
NA 

 

In terms of our report attached   
FOR NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED 
 
 

Sd/-  Sd.-    Sd/-   Sd/- 

Rajesh Bhatwal  Shakuntala Bhatwal  Kailas Agrawal  Deepika A. Dalmiya 
Managing   Whole Time and      Chief Financial  Company Secretary 
Director      Women Director  Officer   & Compliance Certificate 
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ANNEXURES- C 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ON 2022-23 

INTRODUCTION 

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Company believes that Corporate Governance signifies ethical business behavior in every 

sphere and with all constituents. This ethical business behavior can being-rained in the character of 

the organization through tradition, value, systems and commitment to the later as much as the spirit 

of laws and regulations. Corporate Governance emerges as the cornerstone of the Company’s 

governance philosophy of the trusteeship, transparency, accountability and ethical corporate 

citizenship. 

2.  BOARD COMPOSITION AND PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS: 

i. Composition & Category of Directors [as on 31st March, 2023]. 

The Board comprises of Six Directors, one of them is The Managing Director, 3 directors are Non – 
Executive Independent Directors and 1 Whole Time Director, 1 is Whole Time Director & Woman Director. 

 

Sr. No Name of Director Position 

1 Rajesh Raghunath Bhatwal  Managing Director & CEO 

2 Shakuntala Rajesh Bhatwal  Whole Time Director & Woman Director 

3 Yi Hing Sin Whole Time Director 

4 Deepam Pradeep Shah Non – Executive Independent Directors 

5 Pranit Anil Bangad Non – Executive Independent Directors 

6 AvinashRajaramChandsarkar Non – Executive Independent Directors 

The Company does not have a Nominee Director on the Board. 

 
ii. Board Meetings, Annual general meeting and Attendance of each Director. 

 
The Company held Eleven Board Meetings during the year. 
 

Sr no Date 

1 12/05/2022 

2 26/05/2022 

3 12/07/2022 

4 13/08/2022 

5 05/09/2022 

6 12/11/2022 

7 12/12/2022 

8 27/12/2022 
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Every board meeting, the matters specified under Section 17 read with Schedule II (Part A) of List in 
regulations were placed and discussed. 
 
The notice of each Board meeting is given in writing to each Director. The agenda along with relevant 
notes and others material information are sent in advance separately to each Director and in 
exceptional cases tabled at the meeting. This ensures timely and informed decision by the Board. 
The Board reviews the performance of the Company vis a vis the budget/targets.  
 
The previous Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company was held on Thursday, 29th 

September, 2022 at 12.30 P.M. 
 
The attendance of directors at the Board meeting, their Directorships in other Companies and 
Membership / Chairmanship in the Committees constituted by other Companies are given below: 
 

Name Number of Board 
meeting 
attended 

Directorship in 
other companies as 
on 31st March 2023 

Member/Chairman of 
committees of other 
company(s) 
31st March 2023 

Rajesh Raghunath Bhatwal  11 0 0 

Shakuntala Rajesh Bhatwal  9 0 0 

Yi Hing Sin 10 0 0 

Deepam Pradeep Shah 10 0 0 

Pranit Anil Bangad 10 0 0 

Avinash Rajaram Chandsarkar 9 0 0 

 
iii. None of the directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10 board or Chairman of more than 

5 Committees across all the Companies in which he is a Director. Necessary disclosures regarding 
committee positions in other public companies as of March 31, 2023 have been made by the 
Directors. 
 

iv. None of the Independent Non-Executive Directors have any material pecuniary relationship or 
transactions with the Company among other important information, minutes of all the Committee 
meetings, are regularly placed before the Board in their meetings. 
 

v. Separate Meeting of Independent Directors As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors 
under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement, a separate meeting of the Independent 
Directors of the Company was held on to review the performance of Non‐independent Directors 

9 23/01/2023 

10 01/02/2023 

11 25/02/2023 
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(including the Chairman) and the Board as whole. The Independent Directors also reviewed the 
quality, content and timeliness of the flow of information between the Management and the Board 
and it’s Committees which is necessary to effectively and reasonably perform and discharge their 
duties. 
 
3. COMMITTEES OF BOARD 
During the year in accordance with the companies Act, 2013, there is no change in constitution of 
Nomination and Remuneration committees of the Board as Follows: 
1. Audit Committee 
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
3. Stakeholder Relationship Committee 
4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
5. Internal Complaints Committee 
6. Sexual Harassment Committee  
 

A. Audit Committee: 
The constitution, role and the powers of the Audit Committee of the Company are as per the 
guidelines set out in the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchange read with the provisions of Section 
177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 
2014. The Committee also acts as a link between the Statutory and Internal Auditors and the Board 
of Directors. It reviews the various reports placed before it by the Management and addresses itself 
to the larger issues and examines and considers those facts that could be of vital concern to the 
Company including adequacy of internal controls, reliability of financial statements and other 
management information, adequacy of provisions of liabilities and adequacy of disclosures and 
compliance with all relevant statutes. All the members of the committee have requisite financials. 
The Committee meets periodically and reviews Audited and un-audited financial results; 
 

 Internal audit reports and report on internal control systems of the Company; 

 Discusses the larger issues that could be of vital concern to the Company; 

  Auditors’ report on financial statements and their findings and suggestions and seeks clarification 
thereon; 

 All other important matters within the scope and purview of the committee. 
 
As on 31stMarch 2023, the Audit Committee comprised of the following: 
 

S. R. Name Designation No. Of meetings Attended 

1 Pranit Anil Bangad (ID) Chairman 5 

2 Deepam Pradeep Shah (ID) Member 5 

3 Rajesh Raghunath Bhatwal (C&ED) Member 5 
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Details of Audit Committee meeting held during the year under review 
 

 
Note: The company secretary of the company act as the secretary to the committee. 
 

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
Company has formed the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as per Section 178 another 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and 
its Powers) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and also to comply with Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The terms of reference of the 
Nomination and Remuneration. 
 
Committee includes the following: 
1. Appointment, re-appointment, determination, fixation of the remuneration (including salaries 
and salary adjustments, incentives/benefits bonuses, stock options) and revision in the 
remuneration payable to the Managing Director of our Company from time to time. 
2. Compensation and performance targets. 
3. Other key issues / matters as may be referred by the Board or as may be necessary in view of the 
provisions of the Listing Agreement or any statutory provisions. 

As on 31stMarch, 2023, the Committee Comprises of the following Members: 

 

S. R. Name Designation No. Of meetings Attended 

1. Deepam Pradeep Shah (ID) Chairman 4 

2. Pranit Anil Bangad(ID) Member 4 

3. Avinash Rajaram Chandsarkar(ID) Member 4 

 

Committee meeting held during the year under review 

Sr. No Date 

1 07/06/2023 

2 16/08/2023 

3 31/10/2023 

4 27/01/2023 

Sr. 
No 

Date 

1 12/05/2023 

2 11/08/2023 

3 03/09/2023 

4 07/11/2023 

5 14/01/2023 
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Directors’ Appointment Criteria / Policy 

The Board of Directors is collectively responsible for selection of a Member on the Board the 

Compensation / Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company follows a defined 

criteria for identification, screening, recruiting and recommending candidates for election as a 

Director on the Board.  

The criteria for Appointment to the Board includes: 

1. Composition of the Board which is commensurate with the size of the Company, its portfolio, 

geographical spread and its status as a listed Company; 

2. Desired age and diversity on the Board; 

3. Size of the Board with optimal balance of skills and experience and balance of Executive and Non-

Executive Directors consistent with requirements of the law; 

4. Professional qualifications, expertise and experience in specific area of business; 

5. Balance of skills and expertise in view of the objectives and activities of the Company; 

6. Avoidance of any present or potential conflict of interest; 

7. Availability of time and other commitments for proper performance of duties; and 

8. Personal characteristics being in line with the Company's values, such as integrity, honesty, 

transparency and pioneering mindset. 

 

Remuneration Policy 

1. The reward policy of the Company shall be to pay market competitive reward with a strong 

linkage to performance, which ensures the effective recognition of performance and encourages a 

focus on achieving the operational results. 

2. The appointment and remuneration of the Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 

Senior Management are by virtue of their employment with the Company as management 

employees and therefore their terms of employment viz. salary, variable pay, service contract, 

notice period and severance fee, if any, shall be governed by the applicable HR policies at the 

relevant period. The total reward package for Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 

Senior Management are intended to be market competitive with a strong linkage to the 

performance. 

The Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme. 
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i. Details of Remuneration paid to Managing Director for the period from 1stApril, 2022 to 31st 

March, 2023. 

         (Amount in Rs.) 

S. R. Name Salary Professional Fees 

1 Rajesh Raghunath Bhatwal Rs. 24,00,000 Rs. 19,00,000 

 
The aforesaid remuneration was paid to the Managing Director in compliance with the Provisions 
of Section II of Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

ii.  Non-Executive Directors’ Compensation 

The Non-Executive Directors do not draw any remuneration from the Company. The company 

secretary of the company act as the secretary to the committee. 

 
C. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

 
The Company had constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Directors to look into the 
redressal of complaints of investors such as transfer or credit of shares to de-mat accounts, non-
receipt of dividend/notices/annual reports etc. 
 
 The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprised of 

S. R. Name Designation No. Of meetings Attended 

1. Pranit Anil Bangad (ID) Chairman 3 

2. Avinash Rajaram Chandsarkar (ID) Member 3 

3. Rajesh Raghunath Bhatwal (C&ED) Member 3 

 
Also, the same committee will be act for resolving shareholder grievances. If any shareholder has 
query, compliant on any matter including Annual report, this committee is responsible to resolve 
the same. Members can lodge their query/ complaint on investor@nitiraj.net.  
 

Committee meeting held during the year under review 

 

Sr. No Date 

1 03/09/2023 

2 02/12/2023 

3 24/02/2023 

 

Investor Grievance Redressal: 
During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Company has not received any complaints from the 
Shareholders. There were no complaints outstanding as on 31st March, 2023. 

75

mailto:investor@nitiraj.net


 

 

 
D. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

 
The Company constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility of Directors to look into the following: 

 Matters specified in section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 which inter-alia includes: 
(a) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate social responsibility policy which shall indicate 

the activities to be undertaken by company as specified in schedule VII; 
(b) recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on activities referred to in clause (a) 
(c) Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility policy of the company from time to time. 

As on 31st March, 2023, the Committee Comprises of the following Members: 

 

S. 
R. 

Name Designation 

1. Pranit Anil Bangad Chairman 

2. Avinash Rajaram Chandsarkar Member 

3. Rajesh Raghunath Bhatwal Member 

Committee meeting held during the year under review 

 
There is no meeting held during the financial year 22-23, as provision of section 135 of companies 
act, 2013 not applicable to the company, as company not fulfilled the criteria mentioned in the year 
22-23. 
 
Name and Designation of Compliance Officer 
Mrs. Deepika Dalmiya, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
 
Note: 
1. The company secretary of the company act as the secretary to the committee. 
2. There was no compliant received from the shareholder during the year under review as per 
reports provided by Registrar and Transfer Agent, hence there is no pending complaint 
 
i. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 
Shareholding Pattern, Corporate governance report and Financial Results are electronically 
transmitted to the National Stock Exchange. And documents which are require being uploaded on 
the website of the company as per SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 and other applicable regulation. 
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4. GENERAL BODY MEETING 
 
i) Details of the Annual General Meetings held in the last three years are as under: 
 

Financial Year Date Time Venue 

2019-20 28/09/2020 11.00AM 306 A, Babha Building Marg, Near Police Station, 
Mumbai – 400011 (MH) IN Video Conferencing  

2020-21 28/09/2021 12.00PM 306 A, Babha Building Marg, Near Police Station, 
Mumbai – 400011 (MH) IN Video Conferencing  

2021-22 25/09/2022 12.30PM 306 A, Babha Building Marg, Near Police Station, 
Mumbai – 400011 (MH) IN Video Conferencing  

 
ii) Special Resolution, if any, passed through postal ballot with details of voting pattern: 
 
The Company has passed special resolution through Postal Ballot during the Financial Year 2022-23 dated 13th 
June, 2022, 16th August 2022 and 19th January 2023. 
 
(iii) Special Resolution proposed to be conducted through postal ballot: 
 
None of the business proposed to be transacted in the ensuing Annual General Meeting requires Special 
Resolution through postal ballot. 
 

 Annual General Meeting: 

AGM : Date , Time and Venue 25th September 2023, at 12.30 P.M. 

Financial Year 2022-23 

Date of Book Closure 19th September 2023 to 25th September 2023 

Dividend Payment Date NA 

Listing on Stock Exchange National Stock Exchange- Main Board NSE 

Stock Code Nitiraj 

Registrar and Transfer Agent Big share services Pvt ltd 

Outstanding GDR/ADR /warrants or any 
convertible instruments conversion date and 
likely impact on equity 

Not issued 

Address for Correspondence 306A BabhaBldg N M Marg Near Police Station 
Mumbai 400011 

 
Non mandatory Requirements 
a. Shareholders Right – Re; Quarterly Result 
A Quarterly declaration of financial performance including summary of the significant events in last 
year is uploaded on the website of the company. 
 
b. Audit Qualification – 
The financial statements of the company are unqualified. 
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c. Evaluation of the board performance 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation 2015, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its 
own, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee. The result of the evaluation done by Independent Directors was 
reported to the Chairman of the Board. 
It was reported that the performance evaluation of the Board & Committee’s was satisfactory. The 
Chairman of the Board provided feedback to the Directors on an individual basis, as appropriate. 
The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 
 
 
For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 
NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED 
 
 
Sd/- 
Rajesh Bhatwal 
Managing Director 
DIN: 00547575 
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ANNEXURES- D 
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE 

 
To, 
The Board of Directors, 
NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED, 
 

Subject: Declaration of independence under sub-section (6) of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Regulation 16 of SEBI (LODR), Regulation, 2015 
 
I, Deepam Pradeep Shah (DIN: 09448356), hereby certify that I am a Non-Executive Independent Director of 
Nitiraj Engineers Limited, Mumbai and I comply with all the criteria of independent director as envisaged in 
the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
I certify that: 
 

1. I possess relevant expertise and experience to be an independent director in the Company; 

2. I am/was not a promoter of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company; 

3. I am not related to promoters / directors / persons occupying management position at the board level or 

level below the board in the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company; 

4. Apart from receiving director sitting fees / remuneration, I have/had no pecuniary relationship / transactions 

with the company, its promoters, its directors, its senior management or its holding, subsidiary or associate 

company, or their promoters, or directors, during the two immediately preceding financial years or during 

the current financial year; 

5. Not any of my relatives has or had any pecuniary relationship or transaction with the company, its holding, 

subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, amounting to 2% or more of its gross 

turnover or total income or 50 Lac’s or such higher amount as may be prescribed, whichever is lower, during 

the two immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial year; 

6. Neither me nor any of my relatives: 

 holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has been employee/executive of the 

company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of the three financial years immediately 

preceding the financial year; 

 is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three financial years immediately 

preceding the financial year of; 

 a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the company or its holding, subsidiary 

or associate company; or 

 any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the company, its holding, subsidiary or 

associate company amounting to 10% or more of the gross turnover of such firm; 
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 holds together with my relatives 2% or more of the total voting power of the company; or 

 Is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit organization that receives 25% 

or more of its receipts from the company, any of its promoters, directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate 

company or that holds 2% or more of the total voting power of the company; or 

7. I am not a material supplier, service provider or customer or a lessor or lessee of the company; 

8. I am not less than 21 years of age. 

 
Declaration 

 
I undertake that, I shall seek prior approval of the Board, if and when, I have any such relationship/ 
transactions, whether material or non-material. If I fail to do so, I shall cease to be an independent director 
from the date of entering in to such relationship / transactions. 
Further, I do hereby declare and confirm that, the above said information are true and correct to the best of 
my knowledge as on the date of this declaration of independence and I shall take responsibility for its 
correctness and shall be liable for fine if any, imposed on the Company, its directors, if the same found wrong 
or incorrect in future. I further undertake to intimate immediately upon changes, if any, to the Company for 
updating of the same. 
 
Thanking You, 
Yours faithfully, 
  
Sd/-          Date: 01/09/2023 
DEEPAM PRADEEP SHAH       Place: Dhule 
(DIN: 09448356)        
Non-Executive and Independent Director 
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DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE 
 
To, 
The Board of Directors, 
NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED, 
 

Subject: Declaration of independence under sub-section (6) of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Regulation 16 of SEBI(LODR), Regulation, 2015 
 
I, Mr.Pranit Anil Bangad(DIN: 09448410), hereby certify that I am a Non-Executive Independent Director of 
Nitiraj Engineers Limited, Mumbai and I comply with all the criteria of independent director as envisaged in 
the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
I certify that: 
 

1. I possess relevant expertise and experience to be an independent director in the Company; 

2. I am/was not a promoter of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company; 

3. I am not related to promoters / directors / persons occupying management position at the board level or 

level below the board in the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company; 

4. Apart from receiving director sitting fees / remuneration, I have/had no pecuniary relationship / transactions 

with the company, its promoters, its directors, its senior management or its holding, subsidiary or associate 

company, or their promoters, or directors, during the two immediately preceding financial years or during 

the current financial year; 

5. Not any of my relatives has or had any pecuniary relationship or transaction with the company, its holding, 

subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, amounting to 2% or more of its gross 

turnover or total income or 50 Lac’s or such higher amount as may be prescribed, whichever is lower, during 

the two immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial year; 

6. Neither me nor any of my relatives: 

 holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has been employee/executive of the 

company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of the three financial years immediately 

preceding the financial year; 

 is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three financial years immediately 

preceding the financial year of; 

 a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the company or its holding, subsidiary 

or associate company; or 

 any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the company, its holding, subsidiary or 

associate company amounting to 10% or more of the gross turnover of such firm; 

 holds together with my relatives 2% or more of the total voting power of the company; or 

81



 

 

 Is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit organization that receives 25% 

or more of its receipts from the company, any of its promoters, directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate 

company or that holds 2% or more of the total voting power of the company; or 

7. I am not a material supplier, service provider or customer or a lessor or lessee of the company; 

8. I am not less than 21 years of age. 

 
Declaration 

 
I undertake that, I shall seek prior approval of the Board, if and when, I have any such relationship/ 
transactions, whether material or non-material. If I fail to do so, I shall cease to be an independent director 
from the date of entering in to such relationship / transactions. 
Further, I do hereby declare and confirm that, the above said information are true and correct to the best of 
my knowledge as on the date of this declaration of independence and I shall take responsibility for its 
correctness and shall be liable for fine if any imposed on the Company, its directors, if the same found wrong 
or incorrect in future. I further undertake to intimate immediately upon changes, if any, to the Company for 
updating of the same. 
 
Thanking You, 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
Sd/-        Date: 01/09/2023 
PRANIT ANIL BANGAD      Place: Dhule 
(DIN: 09448410)        
Non-Executive and Independent Director 
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DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE 
To, 
The Board of Directors, 
NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED, 
 

Subject: Declaration of independence under sub-section (6) of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Regulation 16 of SEBI(LODR), Regulation, 2015 
 
I, Mr. Avinash Rajaram Chandsarkar (DIN: 09448464), hereby certify that, I am a Non-Executive Independent 
Director of Nitiraj Engineers Limited, Mumbai and I comply with all the criteria of independent director as 
envisaged in the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and the Companies 
Act, 2013. 
 
I certify that: 

1. I possess relevant expertise and experience to be an independent director in the Company; 

2. I am/was not a promoter of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company; 

3. I am not related to promoters / directors / persons occupying management position at the board level or 

level below the board in the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company; 

4. Apart from receiving director sitting fees / remuneration, I have/had no pecuniary relationship / transactions 

with the company, its promoters, its directors, its senior management or its holding, subsidiary or associate 

company, or their promoters, or directors, during the two immediately preceding financial years or during 

the current financial year; 

5. Not any of my relatives has or had any pecuniary relationship or transaction with the company, its holding, 

subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, amounting to 2% or more of its gross 

turnover or total income or 50 Lac’s or such higher amount as may be prescribed, whichever is lower, during 

the two immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial year; 

6. Neither me nor any of my relatives: 

 holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has been employee/executive of the 

company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of the three financial years immediately 

preceding the financial year; 

 is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three financial years immediately 

preceding the financial year of; 

 a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the company or its holding, subsidiary 

or associate company; or 

 any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the company, its holding, subsidiary or 

associate company amounting to 10% or more of the gross turnover of such firm; 

 holds together with my relatives 2% or more of the total voting power of the company; or 
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 Is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit organization that receives 25% 

or more of its receipts from the company, any of its promoters, directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate 

company or that holds 2% or more of the total voting power of the company; or 

7. I am not a material supplier, service provider or customer or a lessor or lessee of the company; 

8. I am not less than 21 years of age. 

 

 
Declaration 

 
I undertake that I shall seek prior approval of the Board if and when I have any such relationship/ transactions, 
whether material or non-material. If I fail to do so I shall cease to be an independent director from the date 
of entering in to such relationship / transactions. 
Further, I do hereby declare and confirm that the above said information are true and correct to the best of 
my knowledge as on the date of this declaration of independence and I shall take responsibility for its 
correctness and shall be liable for fine if any imposed on the Company, its directors, if the same found wrong 
or incorrect in future. I further undertake to intimate immediately upon changes, if any, to the Company for 
updating of the same. 
 
Thanking You, 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
Sd/-          Date: 01/09/2023 
AVINASH RAJARAM CHANDSARKAR      Place: Dhule 
(DIN: 09448464)        
Non-Executive and Independent Director 
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ANNEXURE -E 
STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES  

 

PARTICULARS PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5 

OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 

2014 

 
Ratio and remuneration of Director And KMP 
 
         
Sl.
No. 

Name Designation/ 
Nature of 
Duties 

Remuneratio
n 
Received 
[Rs.] 

Qualifica
tion 

Experienc
e in years 

Age 
in 
year
s 

Date of 
commence
ment of 
employme
nt 

Last 
emplo
yment 
held 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9          
         
         

 
N.A. 

        
Notes; 
 All appointments are / were non-contractual 
 
 Remuneration as shown above comprises of Salary, Leave Salary, Bonus, Gratuity where paid, Leave Travel 
Assistance, Medical Benefit, House Rent Allowance, Perquisites and Company's Contribution to Provident Fund 
and Superannuation Fund. Remuneration on Cash basis 
 
 None of the above employees is related to any Director of the Company employed for part of the financial 
year. 
 
 

Sr. 

No. 

Name Ratio 

1. Mr. Rajesh Bhatwal (Managing Director) 17.78 

2. Mrs. ShakuntalaBhatwal (Whole time Director) 3.59 

3. Mr. Hung Sin (Whole Time Director) 5.36 

 

I. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, 
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Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year: 

 

Sr. 

No

. 

Name Designation % in 

Increase 

1. Mr. Rajesh Bhatwal Managing Director 0 % 

2. Mrs. Shakuntala Bhatwal Whole time Director     0 % 

3. Mr. Hung Sin Whole time Director     2.6 % 

3. Mr. Kailas Agrawal Chief Finance Officer      7.7% 

4. Mrs. DeepikaDalmiya Company Secretary     0.% 

 

II. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: 259 

 

III. If remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company: Yes 
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ANNEXURES- F 

CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION 
 

To, 

NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED, 

306 A Babha Building, N M Marg, 

Near Police Station, 

Mumbai – 400011. 

 

Dear Members of the Board, 

a) We have reviewed the Financial Statements and the cash flow statement of Nitiraj Engineers Limited for the 

year ended 31st March, 2023 and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

statements that might be misleading. 

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 

existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the 

year which are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the Company’s Code of Conduct.  

 

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we 

have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control systems pertaining to financial reporting 

and we have not come across any reportable deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls.  

 

d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

(a) that there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

 

(b) that there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year; and 

 

(c) that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and that the involvement 

therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control 

system over financial reporting 

 

   FOR NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED 

 
 
Place :-Mumbai      Sd/-   Sd/- 
Date  :-01/09/2023    Mr. Rajesh Bhatwal           Mr. Kailas Agrawal 
     Managing Director           Chief Financial Officer 
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DECLARATION FOR COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT 

 

Dear Members of the Nitiraj Engineers Limited, 

 

I, hereby declare that, all the Members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel of the Company are 

aware of the provisions of the Code of Conduct laid down by the Board. All the Board Members and Senior 

Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct. 

 

FOR NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED 

 
 
Sd/- 
MR. RAJESH BHATWAL 
Managing Director  
DIN- 00547575 

 
Place :- Mumbai  
Date  :- 01/09/2023 
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ANNEXURES- G 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION ANALYSIS 
 
Forward looking statement -  
 
The Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of the 
Company may contain statements that are forward-looking within the scope of applicable securities 
laws and regulations. These forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and 
expectations regarding future events. 
 
The Company cannot guarantee the accuracy or realization of these assumptions and expectations. 
The Company assumes no obligation to publicly amend, modify, or revise these forward-looking 
statements based on subsequent developments, information, or events. Actual results may 
materially differ from the expressed statements. Key factors that could influence the Company's 
operations encompass changes in government regulations, alterations in tax laws, domestic 
economic developments, and global considerations. 
 
Financial Statement Preparation and Accounting Standards 
 
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, utilizing the accrual 
basis of accounting, and adhere to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), while 
complying with the IND-AS Accounting Standards. The management of Nitiraj Engineers Limited has 
exercised prudent judgment and utilized reasonable estimates while preparing the financial 
statements. This approach ensures that the financial statements truly and fairly represent the 
Company's financial condition and profit for the year. 
 
This discussion concerning our financial condition and operational results should be considered in 
conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes 
provided in the annual report. Unless context dictates otherwise, all references herein to "we," "us," 
"our," "the Company," and "Nitiraj" pertain to Nitiraj Engineers Ltd. 
 
ECONOMIC OVERVIEW  
 
Global Industry 
 
The total size of the electronic weighing scale industry can vary depending on the geographic region 
and market conditions. It encompasses a wide range of manufacturers, suppliers, distributors, and 
service providers involved in the production and distribution of electronic weighing scales for 
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industrial applications. 
 
The global market for electronic weighing scales has been experiencing steady growth over the 
years due to factors such as increasing industrialization, automation in various sectors, and the need 
for accurate and efficient weighing solutions. The market size is influenced by factors such as 
demand from industries like manufacturing, logistics, healthcare, and retail, as well as technological 
advancements and regulatory requirements. 
 
A report by Market Research Future published in 2021 estimated the global electronic weighing 
scale market to reach a value of approximately USD 4.9 billion by 2027, growing at a compound 
annual growth rate (CAGR) of around 4.8% during the forecast period from 2021 to 2027. 
 
Market Outlook for Electronic Weighing Scales 
 
The valuation of the electronic weighing scale market share is projected to grow from USD 3.35 
Billion in 2017 to USD 4.57 Billion by 2023, with a compounded annual growth rate of 5.54% over 
the assessment period. This growth is driven by the performance of various segments within the 
electronic weighing scale market. Notably, the tabletop scales segment is expected to be the fastest-
growing, contributing significantly to the overall market expansion. This segment's growth is 
attributed to its lightweight nature, cost-effectiveness, and user-friendly operation. 
 
Electronic Weighing Scales: Definition and Applications 
 
An electronic weighing scale is a device utilized to measure the weight of diverse objects, spanning 
from delicate feathers to substantial loaded trucks. The device measures weight and subsequently 
presents it in electronic format. These measurements are then displayed on an LCD screen after 
undergoing proper processing. The applications of electronic weighing machines extend across 
various sectors, encompassing retail, jewelry, laboratory, healthcare, and diverse industrial 
domains. 
 
The advantages associated with electronic weighing scales include their compactness, ability to 
measure multiple loads, precision, and real-time processing and delivery of data. These weighing 
scales offer notable benefits compared to traditional iron weights or spring balances, providing 
enhanced convenience and accuracy in measurement. 
 
In the context of our annual report, it's essential to acknowledge the dynamic nature of the market 
in which the Company operates. The projected growth and evolving preferences within the 
electronic weighing scale market underscore the need for us to stay adaptable and innovative in 
order to capitalize on emerging opportunities. Our strategic positioning and commitment to quality 
and innovation uniquely position us to benefit from the growth trends in this market. 
Top of Form 
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Electronic Weighing Scale Market Dynamics 
 
Drivers:  
 
The growth of the electronic weighing scale market is driven by several key factors. Firstly, the 
escalating trend towards industrial automation serves as a significant catalyst for market expansion. 
Secondly, the expanding utilization of electronic weighing scales in retail and jewelry establishments 
contributes to market growth. Additionally, the increasing economic activities and the critical need 
for precise weighing processes further boost the demand for electronic weighing scales. The market 
benefits from attributes like precision, reliability, portability, and durability, all of which enhance 
sales and subsequently fuel industry growth. Technological advancements in the sector empower 
consumers to make informed purchasing decisions based on feature and price comparisons, further 
driving the expansion of the electronic weighing scale market. 
 
Restraints:  
 
While electronic weighing machines offer numerous advantages over traditional alternatives such 
as TOLAS or spring balances, their higher cost presents a notable restraint to market growth. 
REMOVE - Moreover, these machines require a constant power source for operation and lack 
backup power options like batteries or cells. This operational dependency on power availability 
could limit market growth. Maintenance and servicing of electronic weighing scales at regular 
intervals incur high costs, acting as another deterrent to the growth of the market. 
 
Technology Analysis:  
 
The sector is witnessing a surge in innovation. Leading market players are introducing machines that 
enable users to get weighing data seamlessly over WiFi or by other means, so that it can be 
processed further. Manufacturers are also striving to develop machines with built-in batteries, 
similar to mobile phones, allowing industrial weighing scales to function properly during office hours 
without continuous electricity supply. Advancements are being made to create lighter and more 
portable versions of larger weight scales. 
 
Regional Market Movement:  
 
The electronic weighing scale industry is prominently active across six major global regions: North 
America, South America, Asia Pacific, Europe, and the Middle East & Africa. Among these, North 
America is poised to dominate the market due to increasing demand for automated electronic 
measuring devices across industries and the presence of skilled technical experts. Europe is also set 
to experience substantial growth, given the concentration of major market players within the 
region. The Asia Pacific region is expected to witness significant expansion, buoyed by cost-effective 
raw material availability, especially in countries like India, China, and Japan. 
In the context of our annual report, these market dynamics underscore the exciting opportunities 
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and challenges within the electronic weighing scale industry. Our strategic positioning and 
adaptability remain crucial as we navigate these evolving trends to further enhance our company's 
performance and growth. 
 
Global Electronic Weighing Scale Industry Overview: 
 
The electronic weighing scale industry has been witnessing steady growth globally due to the increasing 
demand for accurate and efficient measurement solutions across various sectors. The industry caters 
to diverse applications, including retail, industrial, healthcare, logistics, and more. With technological 
advancements and the push for automation, electronic weighing scales have become indispensable 
tools for ensuring precision in weight measurement. 
 
Key Factors Driving the Global Market: 
 
Industrial Automation: The trend towards automation in industries has propelled the demand for 
electronic weighing scales, especially in manufacturing, logistics, and transportation, where accurate 
weight measurements are crucial for efficiency and compliance. 
 
Retail and Commercial Sectors: In the retail and commercial sectors, electronic weighing scales play a 
pivotal role in ensuring accurate pricing and weight measurement of products, contributing to customer 
satisfaction and regulatory compliance. 
 
Healthcare and Laboratory Applications: Electronic weighing scales are extensively used in healthcare 
settings for patient monitoring, medication dosing, and laboratory measurements due to their accuracy 
and ease of use. 
 
Advancements in Technology: Technological innovations have led to the development of sophisticated 
electronic weighing scales with features like connectivity, data recording, and integration with other 
systems, enhancing their utility across various industries. 
 
Indian Electronic Weighing Scale Industry Overview: 
 
In India, the electronic weighing scale industry has shown substantial growth driven by economic 
development, urbanization, and increasing consumer awareness about accurate measurements. The 
industry is characterized by a mix of local manufacturers and global players offering a range of products 
to meet diverse market needs. 
 
Key Factors Impacting the Indian Market: 
 
Retail Expansion: India's burgeoning retail sector, coupled with the implementation of Goods and 
Services Tax (GST), has boosted the demand for electronic weighing scales to ensure proper billing and 
compliance with regulations. 
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Manufacturing and Logistics: With the 'Make in India' initiative and a focus on enhancing manufacturing 
capabilities, electronic weighing scales are crucial for quality control, inventory management, and 
logistics. 
 
Healthcare and Agriculture: In India, electronic weighing scales find applications in healthcare facilities, 
agriculture markets, and food production to ensure accurate measurements and fair trade practices. 
 
Government Regulations: Government regulations related to measurement standards and consumer 
protection drive the adoption of certified electronic weighing scales in various sectors. 
 
In both the global and Indian contexts, the electronic weighing scale industry is poised for continued 
growth due to technological advancements, industrialization, and the need for accuracy in 
measurements across diverse applications. The industry's future will likely see further integration with 
digital systems, connectivity, and data analytics to enhance its utility and value proposition. 
 
 
Indian Manufacturing Sector 
 
The manufacturing sector has emerged as a high-growth area in India, propelled by initiatives such as 
the 'Make in India' program led by Prime Minister Shri. Narendra Modi. This initiative seeks to establish 
India as a global manufacturing hub, creating worldwide recognition for the Indian economy.  
 
India possesses the potential tobecome a significant contributor to the global economy, potentially 
adding over US$ 500 billion annually by the year 2030. 
 
Child Development Initiatives 
 
Addressing pediatric malnutrition has been a persistent national concern. The Government of India 
(GOI) has launched various vertical health programs over the years, but they have not consistently 
reached the intended beneficiaries. In 1974, India formulated a comprehensive national policy for 
children. This policy led to the establishment of the Integrated Child Development Services (ICDS) 
scheme – a prestigious national human resource development program. 
 
Launched on October 2, 1975, in 33 blocks (4 rural, 18 urban, 11 tribal), the ICDS scheme has 
progressively expanded over 25 years. Currently, it encompasses 5614 projects (5103 central, 511 state) 
covering more than 5300 community development blocks and 300 urban slums. The program benefits 
over 60 million children under 6 years old, more than 10 million women aged 16 to 44, and 2 million 
lactating mothers. ICDS coverage includes approximately 70 million individuals, around 7% of India's 
total population. The scheme's primary focus remains rural areas, encompassing over 75% of the 
nation's population, while also prioritizing urban slums. 
Source: https://www.ibef.org/industry/manufacturing-sector-india.aspx 
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https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4925843/#:~:text=Over%20the%20last%2025%20years,ag
e%20and%202%20million%20lactating 
 
About Nitiraj Engineers Ltd 
 
Established in 1989, Nitiraj Engineers Ltd. stands as a prominent manufacturer within the electronic 
weighing scale industry. The company's diverse product portfolio encompasses Electronic Weighing 
Scales and Systems, Currency Counting Machines, Security & Automation Products, and Electronic 
Fare Meters. These offerings cater to both industrial and domestic sectors and are thoughtfully 
categorized based on their applications and utilities, spanning Industrial, Commercial, Jewellery, 
Healthcare, Household, and Automobile segments. 
 
Specializations and Initiatives: 
 
Nitiraj Engineers Ltd. supplies its machines to various state governments as part of the Child Growth 
Monitoring Systems (CGMS) program. These advanced machines incorporate cutting-edge 
technology support, facilitating data collection, plotting, management information systems (MIS), 
and information dissemination. 
 
State-of-the-Art Manufacturing Facility: 
 
The company's new manufacturing facility, located in Dhule, Maharashtra, is a sophisticated and 
state-of-the-art establishment. This facility is dedicated to continuous research, stringent quality 
control, and consistent production. It boasts the capacity to manufacture around six lakh scales 
annually. 
 
Distribution and Brand Identity: 
 
Under the brand name 'PHOENIX,' Nitiraj Engineers Ltd. distributes its products through a well-
connected network of 20 branches spanning the states of Chhattisgarh, Maharashtra, Odisha, 
Gujarat and Telangana. Additionally, the company collaborates with approximately 400 dealers 
across India and abroad. This widespread reach ensures effective accessibility and service to 
customers. 
 
Quality and Certifications: 
 
The company places a strong emphasis on quality, holding an ISO 9001:2015 certification. With over 
one million customers, Nitiraj Engineers Ltd. consistently caters to the evolving needs of its clientele. 
The company's adept team of qualified and experienced engineers, equipped with modern facilities, 
is dedicated to designing and developing cutting-edge electronic hardware and software. 
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Research and Development: 
 
Nitiraj Engineers Ltd. boasts a well-equipped Research & Development Department, situated at its 
corporate office in Dhule, Maharashtra. This department plays a pivotal role in driving innovation, 
enabling the company to stay at the forefront of technological advancements and industry trends. 
 
Incorporating these key facets, Nitiraj Engineers Ltd. maintains its commitment to excellence and 
innovation within the electronic weighing scale industry, aligning with its mission to provide high-
quality solutions to its diverse customer base. 
 
FINANCIAL OVERVIEW –   
 
The Company's consolidated performance for the financial year ended March 31st, 2023, is outlined 
below: 
 
Total Revenue and Sales: 
 
Total revenue from operations amounted to Rs. 46.08 crore for the year ending March 31, 2023, 
compared to Rs. 39.63 crore for the corresponding previous period, signifying an increase of 16.28%. 
This growth can be attributed to a consistent influx of new orders from the Government, as well as 
an upsurge in sales from both branch operations and dealerships. These factors collectively 
contributed to the recovery in sales. 
 
EBIDTA and Profitability: 
 
The EBIDTA (earnings before interest, depreciation, and tax, excluding other income) reached Rs. 
3.54 crore for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2023, in contrast to Rs. 1.79 crore in the 
corresponding previous period. This represents an impressive growth of 98.19%. The significant 
boost in sales volume played a pivotal role in achieving economies of scale, leading to this 
remarkable increase in EBIDTA. Notably, the EBITDA margins for FY23 stood at 7.68%. 
 
Net Profit and Margin: 
 
The Net Profit for the year FY23 was negative Rs. 0.12 crore, compared to the negative Rs. 3.59 
crore in FY22, indicating a year-on-year decrease in losses by a substantial 96.68%. It's worth 
mentioning that the exceptional loss incurred during FY22, stemming from the complete shutdown 
of the Parwanoo unit, had a significant impact on the profitability. Consequently, the Net Profit 
margin for FY23 was negative 0.8%. 
 
Earnings Per Share (EPS): 
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The Earnings Per Share (EPS) for the period stood at negative Rs. 0.36. 
These financial results collectively underscore the Company's steadfast commitment to growth and 
resilience, even in the face of challenging circumstances. The strategic influx of orders, enhanced 
sales channels, and improved economies of scale have all contributed to a notable improvement in 
key financial metrics. The Company remains dedicated to optimizing its operations and enhancing 
its financial health in the coming years. 
 
RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY  
 
As of March 31, 2023, the consolidated net worth of the Company stood at Rs. 67.58 crore. 
Furthermore, the cash and cash equivalents at the close of March 31, 2023, amounted to Rs. 0.29 
crore. 
 
Segment-wise Business Performance 
 
The Company operates across five expansive segments, namely: 
 

 Electronic Weighing Scales and Systems 
 Electronic Currency Counting Machines and  
 Digital Fare Meters 
 Home & Hotel Automation 
 Mechanical Scales 

 
This diversified product portfolio is tailored to serve an array of sectors, encompassing: 
 

 Industrial Range 
 Commercial Range 
 Jewellery Range 
 Healthcare Range 
 Household Range 
 Automobile Range 
 Home and Hotel 

 
Through this strategic segmentation, the Company effectively addresses the distinct needs of each 
sector, demonstrating its adaptability and commitment to providing comprehensive solutions 
across multiple domains. 
 
As on March 31, 2023, the consolidated net worth stood at Rs. 67.58 crore 
The cash and cash equivalents at the end of March 31, 2023 were Rs. 0.29 crore 
 
Revenue share of five broad segments are stated below: 
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Name and Description of main products / services % to total turnover of the Company 

Electronic Weighing Scales & Systems 84.89 % 

Electronic Currency Counting Machines 3.63 % 

Home & Hotel Automation 0.21 % 

Mechanical Scales 10.51 % 

EMFR Balances  0.76 % 

 
RISKS AND CONCERNS 
 
Just like any business venture, the Company encounters both internal and external risks in its day-
to-day operations and its pursuit of long-term objectives. The Company has developed a 
comprehensive policy and conducts dedicated risk workshops for each business vertical and key 
support functions. These workshops facilitate the identification, assessment, analysis, and 
appropriate mitigation of risks to a level acceptable within the organization's risk appetite. Regular 
reviews of the risk registers are also conducted. 
 
The Company is confronted by the following Risks and Concerns: 
 
Credit Risk 
 
To effectively manage credit exposure, Nitiraj has formulated a credit policy complete with credit 
limit request and approval procedures. The Company conducts thorough research on the financial 
health and potential of clients prior to engaging in project bids. A meticulous and timely approach 
is maintained to ensure payments are collected in accordance with schedules. The Company has 
streamlined its processes to establish a focused and assertive receivables management system, 
ensuring prompt collections. 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
The Company has prudently managed its debt-equity ratio by employing a combination of loans and 
internal cash accruals. Skillful management of working capital has also been employed to minimize 
overall interest costs. 
 
Competition Risk 
 
Inherent in various industries, this risk arises due to increased market players vying for a share. 
While competition is a norm, Nitiraj has effectively differentiated itself through exceptional project 
execution, superior quality, and on-time delivery. Technological investments and continuous 
workforce development keep the Company ahead of the curve. The presence of a strong, steadfast 
client base consisting of both large and mid-sized corporations further enhances the Company's 
resilience to this risk. The Company counteracts this challenge through superior infrastructure, 
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customer-centricity, customized solutions, competitive pricing, rigorous project execution, prudent 
resource management, and stringent cost controls. As a result, substantial impact from this risk is 
not anticipated. 
 
Input Cost Risk 
 
Fluctuations in raw material prices, power availability, and other input costs could potentially impact 
our profitability and cost efficiency. Risks of significant nature, such as raw material price volatility 
and power supply reliability, demand meticulous monitoring. 
 
Liability Risk 
 
This pertains to potential liabilities stemming from equipment damage, harm to life, and third-party 
concerns that could adversely affect the Company's operations. The Company addresses this risk by 
means of contractual obligations and comprehensive insurance coverage. 
 
OPPORTUNITIES 
 
Considerable potential lies in marketing specialized weighing scales for Infant and Childcare 
programs managed by Aanganwadis and other Government institutions. 
 
The burgeoning retail and logistics sectors present heightened demand for weighing scale systems. 
Increasing automation preferences within the financial sector offer growth prospects for currency 
counting and detection machines. 
 
THREATS 
 
Competition from both local and multinational players. 
Risk related to successful project execution. 
Evolving regulatory landscape. 
Fluctuations in input costs. 
Challenges in attracting and retaining skilled human capital. 
Rapid technological advancements. 
The Company remains committed to proactively managing these risks and capitalizing on 
opportunities to ensure sustainable growth and value creation. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY 
 
The Company has meticulously established and implemented comprehensive internal control 
systems to ensure the safeguarding of assets against unauthorized use or disposition. These systems 
also ensure the proper authorization, recording, and accurate reporting of all transactions. The 
Company has further introduced effective mechanisms to achieve the highest level of operational 
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efficiency, thereby optimizing resource utilization. This encompasses diligent monitoring and 
compliance with all legal provisions, including the Companies Act, 2013, Listing Agreement, 
directives from the Securities and Exchange Board of India, labor laws, tax laws, and more. These 
systems also strive for enhanced financial management and improved investment policies. A crucial 
outcome of these efforts is the promotion of appropriate information flow to facilitate effective 
monitoring. The internal audit system, complemented by a competent and independent Audit 
Committee of the Board of Directors, ensures the formulation and implementation of corporate 
policies across financial reporting, accounting, information security, project appraisal, and 
corporate governance. This collective approach underscores the commitment to achieving superior 
overall performance and operational excellence. 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

The Company's HR philosophy is rooted in the establishment of a high-performing organization, 
wherein every individual is driven to reach their maximum potential. This drive is geared towards 
both individual excellence and the attainment of departmental objectives, all while consistently 
enhancing performance to fully harness the potential of our personnel. As of March 31, 2023, the 
Company provides direct employment to 259 dedicated employees, in addition to 128 contractual 
employees. The Company maintains a harmonious and satisfactory industrial relations 
environment, ensuring positive interactions and collaborations between stakeholders. 
 
OUTLOOK 
 

The electronic weighing scale industry is currently experiencing robust growth, primarily driven by 
the pervasive automation trend across various sectors. As companies increasingly adopt automation 
practices, electronic weighing scales have gained preference due to their accuracy and efficiency in 
measurement processes. 
 

We are delighted to highlight that the Company has been the recipient of several government 
subsidies. These subsidies are poised to contribute significantly to our profitability, fortifying our 
financial position. Additionally, a noteworthy achievement this year has been the establishment of 
a new manufacturing unit at Dadra and Nagar Haveli. This unit, spanning approximately 5,000 
square feet, marks a positive stride forward in our operational capabilities. 
 

Our strategic focus remains keenly directed towards our new analytical weighing balances. We are 
committed to enhancing awareness and driving sales through our expansive dealer and branch 
network. This concerted effort aligns with our objectives and positions us to attain our 
predetermined targets. 
 

In conclusion, we look forward to leveraging the momentum gained from industry growth, 
government support, enhanced manufacturing capabilities, and strategic product focus to further 
elevate our Company's performance. We are confident in our ability to navigate challenges and 
seize opportunities, thereby contributing to our continued success and growth in the upcoming 
periods. 
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FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31st, 2023 
 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
TO, 
THE MEMBERS, 
NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED 
306 A BABHA BLDGN M MARG 
NEAR POLICE STATION MUMBAI  
MH 400011 IN 
  

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by NITIRAJ ENGINEERS 
LIMITED (CIN: L31909MH1999PLC119231) (hereinafter called “The Company”). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis 
for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our 
opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of Company’s books, papers, registers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the 
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in 
our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 
ended on March 31st, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 
31st, 2023 according to the provisions of: 
 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 
there under;   

 
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-law framed there 

under; 
 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations 
made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas 
Direct Investment; (No specific transactions was found during the reporting 
period, to which the above guideline shall applicable.) 
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v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):   

 
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of 

Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (No specific transactions were 
found during the reporting period, to which the above guideline shall 
applicable.) 

 
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; (No specific transactions were found during the reporting 
period, to which the above guideline shall applicable.) 
 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (No specific transactions were found during 
the reporting period, to which the above guideline shall applicable.) 
 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme 
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (No specific 
transactions were found during the reporting period, to which the above 
guideline shall applicable.) 

 
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 

Securities) Regulations, 2008; (No specific transactions were found during the 
reporting period, to which the above guideline shall applicable.)   

 
f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and 

Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and 
dealing with client. (Specific compliances with respect to the regulations were 
adhered to by the company during the reporting period.)   

 
g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2009; (No specific transactions were found during the reporting 
period, to which the above guideline shall applicable.)   
 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 
Regulations, 1998. (No specific transactions were found during the reporting 
period, to which the above guideline shall applicable.)    

 
i) Other laws applicable to the Company as per the representations made by 

the Management. 
 

(1) The Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 

of India.  
 

(2) Listing agreement as entered into by the company with the National stock 
exchange to the extent of the listing of the equity securities of the 
company. 
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During the period under review the Company has generally complied with 
the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. 
mentioned above except to the extent as mentioned below: 
 

1. The company during the reporting period has filed a few e-forms including 
Form MGT-14, Form AOC-4(XBRL), Form AOC-5, Form ADT-1 and Form 
MGT-7 with additional fees. Therefore, it has to be treated as compliance 
after the due date along with payment of additional fees. 

 
2. The company is not able to identify the MSME vendors and outstanding 

dues of MSME vendors are for more than 45 days. Accordingly, Company 
has not filed Form MSME-1 in regarding outstanding payments to MSME 
vendors. The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the 
extent they could be identified as "Micro and Small" enterprises on the basis 
of information available with the Group. 

 
3. As per Regulation 36(5) of SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure 

Requirement) Regulations, 2015 which mandates the disclosures about 
remuneration to auditor and basis of recommendation in the case of 
appointment/ re-appointment of statutory auditor in the notice of Annual 
General meeting. It has been observed that company had not disclosed same 
information in Notice. Up to that extent there is Non-compliance of 
regulation 36(5) of SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulations, 2015. 

 
4. We also adhere the “remarks or observations” as pointed out by the statutory 

Auditor in his report and the company in financial statements as on date 
31.03.2023. 

 
I further report that  
 

a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper 
balance of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. There are no 
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review. 

 
b) Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, 

agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in 
advance or shorter notice with the consent of all the director or members as 
the case may be and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 
c) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are 

not captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 
 

d) I further report that there is scope to improve the systems and processes in 

the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to 

monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 

guidelines. 

 

102



 

   

 

 

I further report that during the audit period there were no specific events / actions 
having a major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred 
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above. 
 
 
FOR D. SAGAR & ASSOCIATES  
 
 
 
 
CS SAGAR RAMRAO DEO  

(Practicing Company Secretary)    Place: Aurangabad 
CP No: 11547        Date:  01/09/2023 
UDIN: F009518E000902762 
Peer Review NO.: 1192/2021 
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Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is 
annexed as “ANNEXURE-I” & “ANNEXURE-I” forms as an integral part of this 
report. 

 
ANNEXURE-I 

 
TO, 
THE MEMBERS, 
NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED 
306 A BABHA BLDGN M MARG 
NEAR POLICE STATION MUMBAI  
MH 400011 IN 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of 
the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to 
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the 
Secretarial records. 
 

3. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, 
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 
4. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records 

and Books of Accounts of the Company. 
 

5. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation 
about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events 
etc. 
 

6. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, 
rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our 
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 
 

7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability 
of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company and non-
compliances reported shall not be conclude as complete and final. 

 
FOR D. SAGAR & ASSOCIATES, 
  
 
 
CS SAGAR RAMRAO DEO  
(Practicing Company Secretary)     Place: Aurangabad 
CP No: 11547         Date:  01/09/2023 
UDIN: F009518E000902762 
Peer Review NO.: 1192/2021 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

 

 

To  

The Members, 

Nitiraj Engineers Limited, 

Mumbai 

 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements  

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Nitiraj 

Engineers Limited (“the Company”) which comprises the standalone Balance Sheet 

as at March 31, 2023, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 

comprehensive income), Standalone statement of changes in equity and Standalone 

statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone financial 

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information 

required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a 

true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under 

section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 

2015, as amended, (”Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and Profit & Loss, 

total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended 

on that date. 

Basis for Opinion  

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the 

Standalone financial statements. 

Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. 
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These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial 

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon. 

  

1) Testing, measurement & derecognition of investment in associate: 

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

As disclosed in notes to the 

standalone financial 

statements, The audit of the 

testing and impairment of the 

investment in the associate, 

which includes the stake sold 

and the fair valuation of the 

remaining balance holding 

through Other 

Comprehensive Income 

(OCI), was identified as a key 

audit matter due to the 

complexity of judgment 

involved in impairment 

testing and the substantial 

carrying value of the 

investment. 

 Impairment Assessment: Reviewing the 

company's impairment testing process, 

evaluating criteria used, and assessing 

management's judgments. 

 Sale Transaction Review: Examining terms of 

the sold stake to ensure proper recognition 

and derecognition in line with accounting 

standards. 

 Fair Valuation through OCI: Scrutinizing fair 

valuation methodologies used for the 

remaining balance holding accounted through 

Other Comprehensive Income. 

 Disclosure Validation: Verifying accuracy and 

transparency of financial statement disclosures 

on impairment, sale, and valuation. 

 

2) Recognition and measurement of Deferred tax assets 

 

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

As disclosed in notes to the 

standalone financial 

statements, the company has 

recognised deferred tax asset 

during the year. 

 

Recognition and 

measurement of such 

deferred tax assets has been 

identified as a key audit 

matter because the 

assessment process involves 

significant judgement 

regarding the forecasts of 

future income tax. The 

assessment process is based 

on assumptions affected by 

expected future market or 

economic conditions. 

 

In respect of deferred tax assets, we assessed 

recognition and measurement by performing the 

following procedures: 

 Evaluating the design, implementation and 

operating effectiveness of the relevant internal 

controls over recognition and measurement of 

deferred tax assets and underlying data; 

 Obtaining the approved business plans, 

projected profitability statements; 

 Challenging the assumptions used regarding 

future business plans and taxable profit in light 

of fiscal developments, current economic 

environment and prior performance in 

determining the recoverability of business 

losses recognized within the period available 

under applicable Income tax laws; 

 Performing sensitivity analysis 

 Testing the computation of amounts 

recognized as deferred tax assets on business 

losses; 

 Focusing on the disclosures on deferred tax 

asset and assumptions used. 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report 

Thereon 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the Board’s Report including Annexures to the Board’s Report 

but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other 

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read 

the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on 

the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 

this other information. We are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report 

in this regard. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements  

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 

134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 

standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 

financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and 

cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of 

the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 

and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; 

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that 

give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for 

assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial 

reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone 

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
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in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.  

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 

the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 

143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our 

opinion on whether the company has an adequate internal financial controls 

system with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 

of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board 

of Directors.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis 

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 

on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 

are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 

or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial 

statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements 

that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 

reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be 

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 

the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 

evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial 

statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 

audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 

thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 

those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial 

statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 

these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 

that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 

interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), 

issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 

section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give (in the Annexure A) a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 

extent applicable. 

2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our Audit we report that:  

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 

including other comprehensive income, Standalone statement of changes in Equity and 

the Standalone Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 

the books of account.  

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind 

AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.  

 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 

March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are 

disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 

separate Report in “Annexure B”.  

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
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In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is 

in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with schedule v of the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us:  

i. As explained to us, company does not have any pending litigations which would 

impact its financial position; 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.;  

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) 

have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 

share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in 

any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) 

have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including 

foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, 

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 

by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has 

caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 

Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 

misstatement.  

 

 

For and on behalf of 

M/s Sharp Aarth & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No.132748W 

    

 

(Harshal Jethale) 

Partner 

Membership No. 141162 

UDIN: 23141162BGUPMR7884 

 

Jalgaon 

30th May, 2023 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors Report  

 

 

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of 

Nitiraj Engineers Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st 

March, 2023, we report that:  

 

(i) (a) (A) In our opinion the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 

including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and 

relevant details of right to-us- assets. 

        (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible 

assets. 

 

     (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a program of 

physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets so 

to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable 

having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to 

the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification 

during the year and were physically verified by the Management during the year. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material 

discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 

        (c)  According to the information and explanations given to us the title deeds of the 

Immovable properties are held in the name of the company. 

 

        (d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company. The Company has not revalued any of 

its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible 

assets during the year. 

 

        (e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or 

pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition 

of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

 

(ii)   (a) As explained to us the inventory has been physically verified by the management 

during the year at reasonable intervals. In our opinion the frequency of such 

verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies noticed on physical verification 

of inventories as compared to the book record that were more than 10% in the 

aggregate of each class of inventory. 

 

         (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned 

working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the 

basis of security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or 

statements filed by the Company after reconciliation with such banks are in 

agreement with the books of account of the Company. 

(iii)      According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any 

security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to 

companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year. 

The Company has made investments in, granted unsecured loan other parties in 
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respect of which the requisite information is provided in clause (a) to (f) as below to 

the extent applicable.  

 

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and 

explanations given to us, the Company has granted unsecured loan as below: 

 

Particulars Amount  

(in Rs. lacs) 

Aggregate amount during the year  

- Loans to Employees 49.12 

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date  

- Loans to Employees 27.01 

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit 

procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made, the terms and 

conditions of the grant of loans and guarantees provided during the year are, prima 

facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 

 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our 

opinion the repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and 

the repayments or receipts have been regular. Further, the Company has not given 

any advance in the nature of loan to any party during the year. 

 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more 

than ninety days in respect of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any 

advances in the nature of loans to any party during the year. 

 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the 

nature of loan granted falling due during the year, which has been renewed or 

extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to 

same parties. 

 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans 

or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying 

any terms or period of repayment. 

 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on 

the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not 

granted loans, as specified under Section 185 of the Act during the year. The 

Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act, in respect of 

loans granted to the parties covered under Section 186 of the Act. The Company has 

not provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 186 of 

the Act.  

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be 

deposits from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to 

the Company. 

 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government 

under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business 

activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the 
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Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is generally 

regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including 

Provident fund, Income-tax, Goods and Services tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, 

and Other Statutory Dues applicable to it. And no undisputed amounts payable in 

respect of Provident fund, Income-tax, Goods and Service tax, Duty of custom, Duty 

of excise, Cess and Other Statutory Dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a 

period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 

       (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of GST, 

Provident fund, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess or other statutory dues which 

have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes. 

(viii)    According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or 

disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of 

account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during 

the year. 

 

(ix)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 

defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest 

thereon to any lender. 

 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or 

any government authority.  

 

 (c)   According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the 

Company has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 

3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

 (d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 

examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised 

on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

 

   (e)   According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 

examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the 

Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to 

meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(g) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed 

by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the 

pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 

2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable 

 

(x)   (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further  

public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is 

not applicable. 

 

      (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any 

preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 

debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not 

applicable. 
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(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to 

the information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of 

materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the 

Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the 

audit. 

 

      (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-

section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the 

auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

 

      (c)  As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints 

received by the company during the year. 

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a 

Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

transactions with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of the related party 

transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required 

by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards. 

 

(xiv)(a)  Based on information and explanations provided to us, in our opinion the Company 

has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature 

of its business. 

        

    (b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to 

the Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and 

extent of our audit procedures. 

 

(xv)    In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or 

persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

 

(xvi) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 

of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

    (b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve 

Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

    (c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 

made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not 

applicable.  

 

        (d)  According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of 

audit, the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 

3(xvi)(d) are not applicable 

 

(xvii)     The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately 

preceding financial year.  

 

(xviii)    There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we have 
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taken into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing 

auditors. 

 

(xix)   According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone 

financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management 

plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 

nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 

uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable 

of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall 

due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 

that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further 

state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and 

we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within 

a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the 

Company as and when they fall due. 

 

(xx)    In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

Section 135 of the Act is not applicable. Accordingly, clause 3(xx) of the Order is not 

applicable. 

 

 

For and on behalf of 

M/s Sharp Aarth & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No.132748W 

    

 

(Harshal Jethale) 

Partner 

Membership No. 141162 

UDIN: 23141162BGUPMR7884 

 

Jalgaon 

30th May, 2023 
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors Report 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone 

financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

Opinion 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Nitiraj 

Engineers Limited as of 31st March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the 

standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial 

controls over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements 

and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 

Standalone Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based 

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).   

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements based on the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation 

and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 

for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 

company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 

frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 

over financial reporting with reference to standalone financial statements based on our 

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 

Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143 (10) of the 

Companies Act,2013 to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 

both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 

financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy 

of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to 

standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting with reference to standalone financial 

statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
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financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting with reference to standalone financial statements. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  

 

A company’s internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements 

over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles. A company’s internal financial control over with reference to standalone 

financial statements financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) 

pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 

of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect 

on the financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to 

standalone financial statements over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 

internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to standalone financial 

statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 

over financial reporting with reference to standalone financial statements may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedure may deteriorate.  

 

 

For and on behalf of 

M/s Sharp Aarth & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No.132748W 

    

 

(Harshal Jethale) 

Partner 

Membership No. 141162 

UDIN: 23141162BGUPMR7884 

 

Jalgaon 

30th May, 2023 
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 ASSETS 

 Non-Current Assets 

 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 2,987.74                                       3,235.97                                       

 (b) Capital Work-in-Progress 4 -                                                 -                                                 

 (c) Investment Property 5 11.09                                             12.32                                             

 (d) Right-of-use assets 4 19.29                                             25.15                                             

 (e) Intangible Assets 6 342.22                                          357.41                                          

 (f) Intangible Assets Under Development 6 160.16                                          160.16                                          

 (g) Financial Assets 

 (i) Investments 7 96.79                                             201.15                                          

 (ii) Other Financial Assets 7 15.10                                             29.42                                             

 (h) Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 13 75.43                                             85.37                                             

 (i) Other Non-Current Assets 12 706.18                                          428.49                                          

4,414.00                                       4,535.44                                       

 Current assets 

 (a) Inventories 8 2,312.43                                       1,546.19                                       

 (b) Financial Assets 

 (i) Investments 7 51.73                                             44.74                                             

 (ii) Trade Receivables 9 652.06                                          824.75                                          

 (iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 28.98                                             27.02                                             

 (iv) Bank Balances Other than (iii) above 11 56.50                                             54.20                                             

 (v) Loans 7 27.01                                             98.91                                             

 (vi) Other Financial Assets 7 63.34                                             95.52                                             

CTL2  (c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 22 12.57                                             39.11                                             

 (d) Other Current Assets 12 363.83                                          508.96                                          

3,568.45                                       3,239.41                                       

 TOTAL 7,982.45                                       7,774.85                                       

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

 Equity 

 (a) Equity Share capital 14 1,025.10                                       1,025.10                                       

 (b) Other Equity 15 5,732.89                                       5,797.05                                       

6,757.99                                       6,822.15                                       

 Liabilities 

 Non Current Liabilities 

 (a) Financial Liabilities 

 (i) Lease Liabilities 17 6.55                                               9.37                                               

 (b) Provisions 21 73.28                                             62.46                                             

 (c) Other Non-Current Liabilities 20 14.81                                             4.51                                               

94.64                                            76.34                                            

 Current Liabilities 

 (a) Financial Liabilities 

 (i) Borrowings 16 298.54                                          371.47                                          

 (i) Lease Liabilities 17 14.02                                             17.00                                             

 (ii) Trade Payables 19

 Due to micro and small enterprises -                                                 -                                                 

 Due to others 259.61                                          98.97                                             

 (iii) Other Financial Liabilities 18 80.84                                             169.65                                          

 (b)  Provisions 21 33.57                                             32.23                                             

 (c) Other Current Liabilities 20 443.24                                          187.05                                          

1,129.81                                       876.37                                          

 TOTAL 7,982.45                                       7,774.85                                       

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Financial 

Statements 

1 to 48

As per our report of even date

For SHARP AARTH & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. 132748W

Harshal Jethale Rajesh R. Bhatwal Shakuntala R. Bhatwal

Partner Managing Director Director

Membership No.: 141162 Din No.00547575 Din No.01953906

UDIN : 23141162BGUPMR7884

Kailas M. Agrawal Deepika A. Dalmiya

CFO Company Secretary

Mumbai Membership No. A58029

Date: May 30, 2023

For and on behalf of the board of directors of Nitiraj Engineers Limited

NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

NotesParticulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
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NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

REVENUE

Revenue from operations (net) 24 4,607.95                                        3,962.63                                        

Other income 25 47.02                                              58.22                                              

Total Revenue (I) 4,654.97                                        4,020.85                                        

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 2,806.56                                        2,087.86                                        

Changes in inventories of work-in-process and finished goods 26 (332.17)                                          80.97                                              

Employee benefits expense 27 524.07                                            544.56                                            

Finance costs 28 31.88                                              49.53                                              

Depreciation and amortization expense 29 368.06                                            313.26                                            

Other expenses 30 1,255.69                                        1,070.72                                        

Total Expenses (II) 4,654.08                                        4,146.91                                        

Profit before tax and Exceptional Items(I-II) 0.89                                                (126.06)                                          

Exceptional Items 31 18.89                                              319.42                                            

Profit/(loss) before tax (18.00)                                            (445.48)                                          

Tax expense:

Current tax -                                                  -                                                  

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods -                                                  0.16                                                

Deferred tax 19.05                                              (109.90)                                          

Profit/(loss) for the period (37.05)                                            (335.74)                                          

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A. Other Comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit and loss in

subsequent periods:

Remeasurement of gains (losses) on defined benefit plans 2.14                                                (8.32)                                               

Income tax effect (0.54)                                               2.09                                                

Fair Value of  Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income (38.36)                                            -                                                  

Income tax effect 9.65                                                -                                                  

B. Other Comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit and loss in

subsequent periods:

-                                                  -                                                  

Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (27.10)                                            (6.22)                                               

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX (64.15)                                            (341.97)                                          

Earnings per share for profit attributable to equity shareholders 32

Basic and Diluted EPS (0.36)                                               (3.28)                                               

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Financial 

Statements 

1 to 48

As per our report of even date

For SHARP AARTH & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. 132748W

Harshal Jethale Rajesh R. Bhatwal Shakuntala R. Bhatwal

Partner Managing Director Director

Membership No.: 141162 Din No.00547575 Din No.01953906

UDIN : 23141162BGUPMR7884

Kailas M. Agrawal Deepika A. Dalmiya

CFO Company Secretary

Mumbai Membership No. A58029

Date: May 30, 2023

Notes  2022-23  2021-22 

For and on behalf of the board of directors of Nitiraj Engineers Limited

13
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NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

 Particulars 2022-23  2021-22 

 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

 Net Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss: (18.00)                                        (445.48)                                      

 Adjustments for: 

 Depreciation and amortisation expense 368.06                                       313.26                                       

 Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.78)                                           109.60                                       

 Impairment of intangible assets under development -                                              196.27                                       

 Net (gain)/loss on sale of Investment 18.89                                          -                                              

 Finance costs 31.88                                          49.53                                          

 Interest Income (16.01)                                        (22.46)                                        

 Net gain on financial instruments (6.99)                                           (6.54)                                           

 Provision for Gratuity and Leave Encashment 12.15                                          10.67                                          

 Reversal of allowance on doubtful debts (5.05)                                           (2.04)                                           

 Sundry balances written off 17.72                                          30.95                                          

 Change in operating assets and liabilities: 

 (Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 160.02                                       60.20                                          

 (Increase)/Decrease in inventories (766.24)                                      (177.98)                                      

 Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 160.64                                       (131.87)                                      

 (Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets 46.51                                          18.77                                          

 (Increase)/decrease in other assets (106.01)                                      198.28                                       

 Increase/(decrease) in provisions 2.14                                            (7.16)                                           

 Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 171.89                                       60.80                                          

 Cash generated from operations 70.82                                          254.80                                       

 Less: Income taxes paid -                                              (109.49)                                      

 Net cash inflow from operating activities 70.82                                          145.31                                       

 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

 Payments for property, plant and equipment (86.17)                                        (418.37)                                      

 Payments for investment property -                                              (3.62)                                           

 Proceeds from sale of Investments 47.11                                          -                                              

 Intangible asset under development -                                              (112.83)                                      

 Loans paid to employees recovered 71.89                                          (84.75)                                        

 Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3.22                                            40.65                                          

 Movement in other bank balances (2.30)                                           (12.67)                                        

 Interest received 16.01                                          22.46                                          

 Net cash outflow from investing activities 49.76                                          (569.12)                                      

 CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

 Proceeds/(outflow) from borrowings (72.93)                                        371.47                                       

 Principal elements of lease payments (13.81)                                        (26.41)                                        

 Interest paid (31.88)                                        (49.53)                                        

 Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities (118.62)                                      295.53                                       

 Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1.96                                            (128.28)                                      

 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 27.02                                          155.30                                       

 Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year 28.98                                          27.02                                          

 Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement: 

 Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following: 

 Balances with banks on current accounts 0.20                                            0.10                                            

 Cash on hand 28.77                                          26.92                                          

 Balances per statement of cash flows 28.98                                          27.02                                          
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NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
Note :

(b) Changes in liability arising from financing activities (Amount in INR Lakhs)

 lease liabilities Borrowings

Net Debt as at April 1, 2021 61.71                                          -                                              

Cash outflows (30.12)                                        -                                              

Cash inflows -                                              371.47                                       

Interest expense 5.25                                            49.53                                          

Interest paid -                                              (49.53)                                        

Additions 15.75                                          -                                              

Other adjustments (26.21)                                        -                                              

Net Debt as at March 31, 2022 26.37                                          371.47                                       

Cash outflows (21.90)                                        (72.93)                                        

Cash inflows -                                              -                                              

Interest expense 2.30                                            31.88                                          

Interest paid -                                              (31.88)                                        

Additions 13.81                                          -                                              

Net Debt as at March 31, 2023 20.57                                          298.54                                       

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 

1 to 48

As per our report of even date

For SHARP AARTH & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. 132748W

Harshal Jethale Rajesh R. Bhatwal Shakuntala R. Bhatwal

Partner Managing Director Director

Membership No.: 141162 Din No.00547575 Din No.01953906

UDIN : 23141162BGUPMR7884

Kailas M. Agrawal Deepika A. Dalmiya

CFO Company Secretary

Mumbai Membership No. A58029

Date: May 30, 2023

 Liabilities from financing activities 

 (a) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) - 

Statement of Cash Flow 

For and on behalf of the board of directors of Nitiraj 

Engineers Limited
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NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

A Equity Share Capital

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

Balance at the 

Beginning of the 

period

Changes in Equity 

share capital during 

the year

Balance at the end of the 

period

March 31, 2022

Numbers              1,02,51,000                                -                           1,02,51,000 

Amount                    1,025.10                                -                                1,025.10 

March 31, 2023

Numbers              1,02,51,000                                -                           1,02,51,000 

Amount                    1,025.10                                -                                1,025.10 

B Other Equity

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

Securities Premium 

Reserve

Retained Earnings Total

As at April 1, 2021                    1,775.70                    4,363.31 6,139.01                             

Profit for the period -                            (335.74)                    (335.74)                               

Other comprehensive income -                            (6.22)                         (6.22)                                   

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,775.70                  4,021.35                  5,797.05                             

As at March 31, 2022 1,775.70                  4,021.35                  5,797.05                             

Profit for the period -                            (37.05)                       (37.05)                                 

Other comprehensive income -                            (27.10)                       (27.10)                                 

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,775.70                  3,957.19                  5,732.89                             

As at March 31, 2023 1,775.70                  3,957.19                  5,732.89                             

Note:

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of 

the Financial Statements 

1 to 48

As per our report of even date

For SHARP AARTH & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. 132748W

Harshal Jethale Rajesh R. Bhatwal Shakuntala R. Bhatwal

Partner Managing Director Director

Membership No.: 141162 Din No.00547575 Din No.01953906

UDIN : 23141162BGUPMR7884

Kailas M. Agrawal Deepika A. Dalmiya

Mumbai CFO Company Secretary

Date: May 30, 2023 Membership No. A58029

Reserves and Surplus

(i) Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) Retained Earnings: The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders out of 

accumulated reserves is determined considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the closing balance 

amounts reported above are not distributable in entirety.

For and on behalf of the board of directors of Nitiraj Engineers 

Limited
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1 Corporate Information

2 Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements comprise financial statements of Nitiraj Engineers Limited for the year ended

March 31, 2023. The company is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated on April 1,

1999 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. Its shares are listed on NSE in India.

The registered office of the company is located at 306 A Babha Building, M Marg, near police station,

Mumbai 400011.

The company is engaged in manufacturing and selling of a variety of Electronic Weighing Scales,

Currency Counting Machines, Taxi Fare Meters etc.

The company launched it's Initial Public Offer of equity shares during the FY 2016-17 and got listed on

the NSE Emerge [SME] Exchange. Company migrated from SME Platform (EMERGE) and admitted to

dealings on the National Stock Exchange (Capital Market Segment - Main Board) with effect from April

22, 2021.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on

May 30, 2023.

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting

Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015(as

amended).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the certain financial

assets, investments etc whichhave been measured at fair value.

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in equity and Cash Flow

Statement are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule III to the Companies

Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and

Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way of notes

forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the

notified Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015.

The Company’s presentation and functional currency is Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded

off to the nearest lakhs (INR 00,000), except when otherwise indicated. 

Items included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial

statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is entity’s functional and presentation currency.

NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
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NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(ii) Transactions and balances

(b) Revenue recognition

Recognising revenue from major business activities

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers:

(ii) Sale of services

(iii) Dividend income

(iv) Interest income

Revenue is recognised when the company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is

generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other

comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the

rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the

financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the

financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest

rate, the company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the

financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in

other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed

as revenue are inclusive of excise duty and net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value added taxes

and amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The company recognises revenue when the amount

of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity

and specific criteria have been met for each of the company’s activities as described below. The

company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the

type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods or

services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to

receive in exchange for those goods or services. Performance obligations are satisfied at the point of

time when the customer obtains the controls of the goods. Revenue is measured based on transaction

price, which is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, stated net of discounts,

returns and value added tax. Transaction price is recognized based on the price specified in the

contract. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at

the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such

transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue from sale of services is in nature of job work on customer product which normally takes 1–10

days for completion and accordingly revenue is recognised when products are sent to customer on

which job work is completed. 
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NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(c) Government Grants

(d) Taxes

(i) Current income tax

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates

and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be

controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of

unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is

probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and

the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in

a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance

that the grant will be received and the company will comply with all attached conditions. Government

grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to

match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-

current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the

expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or

paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that

are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the company

operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or

loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in

correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically

evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax

regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

126



NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(e) Leases

(i) As a lessee

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity

and the same taxation authority.

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of

the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates

and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable

that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of

the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each

reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits

will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year

when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The

right-ofuse asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability

adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct

costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the

underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use

asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the

end of the lease term. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is an indication

that their carrying value may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any is recognized in the statement

of profit and loss.

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the

arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the

arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right

to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.
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NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(ii) As a lessor

(f) Impairment of non financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be

impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the

Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an

asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable

amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are

largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an

asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to

its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a

pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks

specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are

taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded

companies or other available fair value indicators.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost, at the present value of the future lease payments. The

lease payments are discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured

when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a

change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value

guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension

or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment

is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying

amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases

that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises the lease payments associated

with these leases as an expense over the lease term. 

Lease income from operating leases where the company is a lessor is recognised in income on a

straight-line basis over the lease term. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet

based on their nature.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership

transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded

as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to

accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding

in respect of the lease.
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(g) Cash and cash equivalents

(h) Inventories

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as 

follows:

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are

prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.

These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a

long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To

estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the

Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for

subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not

exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which

the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and

loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such

properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of

CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying

amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in

future periods.

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term

deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-

term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral

part of the Company’s cash management.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Raw materials: Raw materials and components, stores and spares and loose tools are valued at lower

of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of

inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated

are expected to be sold at or above cost. Costs are determined on weighted average basis.

Work in progress and Finished goods: Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost

and net realisable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing

overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods are

determined on a weighted average basis.
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(i) Financial instruments

(i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

  - Debt instruments at amortised cost

  - Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

  - Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

  - Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

(1) Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

(2) Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

(b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated

costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling

the financial assets, and

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liability or equity instrument of another entity.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded

at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the

financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame

established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the

trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual

cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised

cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that

are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies

to trade and other receivables.
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(3) Debt instrument at FVTPL

(4) Equity investments

Derecognition

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each

reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income

(OCI). However, the group recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign

exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously

recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt

instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes

recognized in the P&L.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the

criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized

cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or

eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The

company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes

recognized in the P&L.

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are

held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to

which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the company may

make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair

value. The company makes such election on an instrument by- instrument basis. The classification is

made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the

instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from

OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or

loss within equity.

Interest in associate is carried at cost.
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  - The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

Impairment of financial assets

(ii) Financial liabilties

Initial recognition and measurement

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

(1) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

- The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-

through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and

rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks

and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a

pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of

ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the

asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the transferred asset to

the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an

associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that

reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at

the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that

the company could be required to repay.

The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets

carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends

on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 38 details how the company

determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109

Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition

of the receivables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and

payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an

effective hedge, as appropriate.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including

bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.
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(2) Loans and borrowings

Derecognition

(iii) Reclassification of financial assets

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated

as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities

designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in

OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the company may transfer

the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised

in the statement of profit or loss. The company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value

through profit and loss.

The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After

initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and

financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if

there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are

expected to be infrequent. The company’s senior management determines change in the business

model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the company’s operations.

Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the

company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the

company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the

reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the

change in business model. The company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses

(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

This is the category most relevant to the company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and

borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or

costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the

statement of profit and loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on

substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an

exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a

new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit

or loss.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and

financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial

liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the

near term.
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(iv) Offsetting of financial instruments

(j) Property, plant and equipment

Transition to Ind AS

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Freehold buildings 25-40 years

Machinery 10-15 years

Furniture, fittings and equipment 03-08 years

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction net of accumulated

depreciation and impairment loss (if any). Internally manufactured property, plant and equipment are

capitalised atcost, including GST for which credit is not available, wherever applicable. All significant

costs relating to the acquisition and installation of property, plant and equipment are capitalised. Such

cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for

long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and

equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based

on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in

the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are

satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as

incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is

included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow

to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any

component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and

maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if

there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to

settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

On transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its

property, plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2020 measured as per the previous GAAP and

use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is calculated using the written down value method to allocate their cost, net of their

residual values, over their estimated useful lives or, in the case of certain leased furniture, fittings and

equipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the asset’s useful

life or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty

that the company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.
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(k) Investment properties

(l) Intangible assets

Computer software

 -      management intends to complete the software and use or sell it

 -      there is an ability to use or sell the software

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are

included in profit or loss within other gains/(losses).

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not

occupied by the company, is classified as investment property. Investment property is measured

initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that

future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the company and the cost of the

item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is

derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

Investment properties generally have a useful life of 25-40 years. The useful life has been determined

based on technical evaluation performed by the management’s expert.

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's

expert which are higher than those specified by Schedule II to the Companies Act; 2013, in order to

reflect the actual usage of the assets. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of

the asset.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable

amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

 -      it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits

 -      adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell 

the software are available, and

 -      the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software include employee costs and an

appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at which

the asset is available for use.

Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique

software products controlled by the company are recognised as intangible assets when the following

criteria are met:

 -      it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use
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Research and development

Amortisation methods and periods

Computer software 10 years

Capitalised development expenditure 30 years

Transition to Ind AS

(m) Trade and other payables

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are

recognized

as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

- The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use

or sale

 - Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

 - How the asset will generate future economic benefits

 - The availability of resources to complete the asset

 - The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost

less

any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins

when

development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected

future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such

expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. During the period of development, the asset

is tested for impairment annually. 

Revenue expenditure is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss and Capital Expenditure is added

to the cost of Property, Plant and Equipment in the year in which it is incurred. The company is

pursuing development of new technologies and has capitalised the expenditure incurred on the

Research and Development. Research expenditure and development expenditure that do not meet the

criteria specified above are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously

recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

The Company amortises intangible assets with a finite useful life using the written down value method

over the following periods:

On transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of intangible

assets recognised as at April 1, 2020 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as

the deemed cost of intangible assets.

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of

financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 45 - 60 days of

recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due

within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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(n) Borrowing costs

(o) Provisions

General

(p) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result

of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be

required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an

insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the

reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of

profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax

rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the

increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled

wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service

are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are

measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are

presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months

after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore

measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided

by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The

benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms

approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an

unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period,

regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or

production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete

and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a

substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their

expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other

borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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(iii) Post-employment obligations

The company operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a)   defined benefit plans such as gratuity, pension, post-employment medical plans; and

(b)   defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

Post-employment medical obligations

Defined contribution plans

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension and gratuity

plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the

fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the

projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting

the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on

government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The benefits

which are denominated in currency other than INR, the cash flows are discounted using market yields

determined by reference to high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in

which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating to the terms of the related

obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined

benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in

the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial

assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.

They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or

curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Company provide post-retirement healthcare benefits to their retirees. The entitlement to these

benefits is usually conditional on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the

completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the

period of employment using the same accounting methodology as used for defined benefit plans.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial

assumptions are charged or credited in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

The company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local

regulations. The company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised

as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to

the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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(vi) Termination benefits

(q) Dividends

(r) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

  - the profit attributable to owners of the company

Dilluted earnings per share

(s) Current/non current classification

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to

take into account:

- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential

equity

- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding

assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current

classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

  - Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

  - Held primarily for the purpose of trading

  - Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

  - Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 

least twelve months after the reporting period

A liability is current when:

  - It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

  - It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

  - It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

  - There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no

longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed

at the end of the reporting period.

- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for

bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the company before the normal

retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.

The company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the

company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs

for a restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37 and involves the payment of terminations

benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are

measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more

than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.
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The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

(t) Segment reporting

(u) Rounding of amounts

3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakh

as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in

cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the

chief operating decision maker.

The board of directors of Nitiraj Engineers Limited has appointed a strategic steering committee which

assesses the financial performance and position of the company, and makes strategic decisions. The

steering committee, which has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker, consists of

the chief executive officer, the chief financial officer and the manager for corporate planning.

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, the

management of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The

estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are

considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that

period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the directors

have made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have the most

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

(i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such lives

are dependent upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely

economic lives based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and operating

costs. Accordingly, depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information available to the

Management.
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(iii) Valuation of deferred tax assets

(iv) Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Determining whether the asset is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-

generating units to which asset/goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the

Company to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a

suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less

than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a

reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each Balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect

the current best estimates.

(ii) Impairment of non financial assets
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

 Particulars  Land 
  Buildings

(Refer (i) below) 

 Plant and 

Equipments

(Refer (i) below) 

 Furniture and 

Fixtures 
 Vehicles 

 Office 

Equipments 
 Computer   Solar  System 

 Electric 

Installations 

 Capital Work in 

Progress 
 Total 

GROSS CARRYING VALUE 

As at April 1, 2021 419.52                1,427.21                 825.41                     142.24                49.97                 35.13                 46.64                 3.46                    159.29               514.18               3,623.04           

Additions 4.41                     656.95                     133.17                     43.83                  0.99                    14.03                 16.12                 27.51                 49.92                 -                      946.94               

Disposals -                       (49.88)                      (122.06)                   (44.91)                 (2.94)                  (8.58)                  (1.89)                  (19.06)                (514.18)              (763.50)             

As at March 31, 2022 423.93                2,034.28                 836.52                    141.16                48.02                 40.57                 60.86                 30.97                 190.16               -                      3,806.48           

Additions 19.41                       46.90                       4.05                     0.73                    17.31                 7.69                    3.06                    0.83                    99.98                 

Disposals\Adjustments during the period (1.35)                   -                           (0.58)                   (1.24)                  (3.16)                  

As at March 31, 2023 422.59                2,053.69                 883.41                    144.63                47.52                 57.89                 68.55                 34.03                 190.99               -                      3,903.30           

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION/IMPAIRMENT

As at April 1, 2021 -                       146.28                     114.54                     7.79                     6.49                    4.31                    14.57                 1.38                    12.31                 -                      307.69               

Depreciation for the year -                       146.94                     114.13                     10.89                  6.06                    4.53                    14.67                 1.56                    13.13                 -                      311.91               

Deductions\Adjustments during the period -                       (0.38)                        (61.60)                     (6.04)                   (0.81)                  (2.04)                  (1.24)                  -                      (2.11)                  -                      (74.23)                

As at March 31, 2022 -                      292.84                     167.07                    12.64                  11.74                 6.81                   28.00                 2.94                   23.33                 -                      545.36               

Depreciation for the year -                       182.69                     101.75                     13.02                  5.48                    6.71                    14.04                 11.22                 16.73                 -                      351.63               

Deductions\Adjustments during the period -                       -                           -                           (0.18)                   (0.55)                  -                      (0.73)                  

As at March 31, 2023 -                      475.53                     268.82                    25.48                  16.68                 13.51                 42.03                 14.15                 40.06                 -                      896.27               

Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2023 422.59                1,578.16                 614.59                    119.15                30.84                 44.38                 26.52                 19.87                 150.93               -                      3,007.03           

Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2022 423.93                1,741.44                 669.45                    128.52                36.28                 33.77                 32.86                 28.03                 166.83               -                      3,261.12           

* Refer Note 34

(i) The above includes the right of use asset recognised under Ind AS 116 Leases as under: (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Balance 

As on

1-Apr-2022

Additions/

Adjustments 

during the year

Deduction / 

Adjustment during 

the year

Balance 

As on

31-Mar-2023

Balance 

As on

01-04-2022

Additions/

Adjustments 

during the year

Deduction / 

Adjustment 

during the year

Balance 

As on

31-Mar-2023

Balance 

As on

31-Mar-2023

Balance 

As on

31-Mar-2022

ROU - Building 44.00                  13.81                       57.81                  22.41                 17.73                 40.15                 17.67                 21.59                 

ROU - Plant & Equipment 3.93                     -                           3.93                     0.38                    1.93                    -                      2.31                    1.62                    3.56                    

Total 47.93                  13.81                       -                           61.75                  22.79                 19.67                 -                      42.46                 19.29                 25.15                 

Balance 

As on

1-Apr-2021

Additions/

Adjustments 

during the year

Deduction / 

Adjustment during 

the year

Balance 

As on

31-Mar-2022

Balance 

As on

01-Apr-2021

Additions/

Adjustments 

during the year

Deduction / 

Adjustment 

during the year

Balance 

As on

31-Mar-2022

Balance 

As on

31-Mar-2022

Balance 

As on

1-Apr-2021

ROU - Building 79.87                  11.81                       (47.69)                     44.00                  20.90                 24.35                 (22.85)                22.41                 21.59                 58.97                 

ROU - Plant & Equipment -                       3.93                         -                           3.93                     -                      0.38                    -                      0.38                    3.56                    -                      

Total 79.87                  15.75                       (47.69)                     47.93                  20.90                 24.73                 (22.85)                22.79                 25.15                 58.97                 

Net Carrying Amount

Particulars

Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Depreciation / Amortisation

Particulars

Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Depreciation / Amortisation Net Carrying Amount

ii. Contractual Obligations

Refer to Note 34 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
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5. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars Buildings

GROSS CARRYING VALUE

 As at April 1, 2021 9.64                        

Additions 4.93                        

 As at March 31, 2022 14.57                      

Additions -                          

As at March 31, 2023 14.57                      

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT

 As at April 1, 2021 0.93                        

Depreciation 1.31                        

 As at March 31, 2022 2.25                        

Depreciation 1.23                        

As at March 31, 2023 3.48                        

Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2023 11.09                      

Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2022 12.32                      

Notes :

i. Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss for investment properties

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Rental Income 9.39                        10.10                                 

Direct Operating expenses from property that generated rental 

income

(1.46)                       (1.87)                                  

Direct Operating expenses from property that did not generate 

rental income

-                          -                                     

Profit from investment properties before depreciation 7.93                        8.23                                   

Depreciation 1.23                        1.31                                   

Profit from investment properties 6.70                        6.92                                   

ii. Leasing Arrangements
Investment properties are leased to tenants under long term operating leases with rentals payable monthly.

Minimum Lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases of investment properties are as follows:(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Within one year 11.57                      7.86                                   

Later than one year but not later than 5 years 14.16                      15.00                                 

Later than 5 years 9.15                        5.00                                   

Total 34.88                      27.86                                 

143



NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
iii. Fair Value

Reconciliation of Fair Value:

Particulars (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Opening Balance as at April 1, 2021 291.08                               

Fair Value Difference 1.93                                   

Purchases -                                     

Balance as at March 31, 2022 293.00                               

Fair Value Difference -                                     

Purchases -                                     

Closing balance as at March 31, 2023 293.00                               

Generally, a change in the assumption made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by:

  - A directionally similar change in the rent growth per annum and discount rate (and exit yield)

  - An opposite change in the long term vacancy rate

The Company has not obtained independent valuations for its investment properties during the year. The 

best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar properties. 

The main inputs used are the rental growth rates, expected vacancy rates, terminal yields and discount rates 

based on comparable transactions and industry data.
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars Software
Capitalised

development

expenditure

Intangible 

assets under 

development

 Total 

GROSS CARRYING VALUE 

As at April 1, 2021 -                  -                  601.02            601.02            

Additions 49.96              307.50            112.87            470.33            

Deletions -                  -                  (553.73)          (553.73)          

As at March 31, 2022 49.96              307.50           160.16           517.62           

Additions -                  -                  -                  -                  

Deletions -                  -                  -                  -                  

As at March 31, 2023 49.96              307.50           160.16           517.62           

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION 

As at April 1, 2021 -                  -                  -                  -                  

Amortisation for the year 0.01                0.03                -                  0.04                

Deductions\Adjustments during the period -                  -                  -                  -                  

As at March 31, 2022 0.01                0.03                -                  0.04                

Amortisation for the year 4.98                10.21              -                  15.19              

Deductions\Adjustments during the period -                  -                  -                  -                  

As at March 31, 2023 4.99                10.24              -                  15.23              

Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2023 44.96              297.26           160.16           502.38           

Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2022 49.94              307.47           160.16           517.57           

Intangible assets under development ageing schedule

March 31, 2023

 Less than 1 

Year 
 1-2 Years  2-3 Years 

 More than 3 

Years 

Projects in Progress -                  146.73            13.43              -                  160.16            

Projects temporarily suspended -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total -                  146.73            13.43              -                  160.16            

March 31, 2022

 Less than 1 

Year 
 1-2 Years  2-3 Years 

 More than 3 

Years 

Projects in Progress 146.73            13.43              -                  -                  160.16            

Projects temporarily suspended -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total 146.73            13.43              -                  -                  160.16            

Particulars

 The company does not have any intangible asset under development whose completion is overdue or whose costs have exceeded its 

original plan. 

Total

Particulars Total

 Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of 

Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of
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7. FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(A) INVESTMENTS

 (1) Non Current 

 Investments carried at cost 

 Unquoted 

 Investments in Associates 

 Nil Equity Shares of INR 10 each at a premium of INR 5,990 per share in Hyper Drive 

Information Technologies Private Limited

(Number of shares; March 31, 2022 : 3,334) 

                              -   200.04                     

 Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 

 Unquoted 

 Investments in Equity Instruments 

 690 Equity Shares of INR 10 each in Merchant  Co-op. Bank Limited

 (Number of shares; March 31, 2022 : 690) 

                          0.07 0.07                         

 Investments carried at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 

 Unquoted 

 Investments in Equity Instruments 

 2,234 Equity Shares of INR 10 each at a premium of INR 5,990 per share in Hyper Drive 

Information Technologies Private Limited

(Number of shares; March 31, 2022 : Nil) 

                       95.68 -                           

 Investment carried at amortised cost 

 Unquoted 

Investments in Government  securities

 National Savings Certificate                           1.04 1.04                         

 Total                        96.79                      201.15 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments -                           -                           

Market value of quoted investments -                           -                           

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 96.79                       201.15                     

Investments carried at amortised cost 1.04                         1.04                         

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 0.07                         0.07                         

Investments carried at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 95.68                       -                           

Investments carried at cost -                           200.04                     

 (2) Current 

 Investments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss 

 Unquoted 

  Investment in Gold                        51.73 44.74                       

 Total                        51.73                        44.74 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments                        51.73                        44.74 

(B) LOANS

Current

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

 Loans to Employees                        27.01 98.91                       

Total                        27.01                        98.91 
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(C) OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Non Current

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity *                           9.49 24.44                       

Lease Deposits                           5.60 4.98                         

Total 15.10                       29.42                       

Current

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Lease Deposits                        10.34 10.34                       

Tender Deposits                        52.57 84.77                       

Interest Accrued but not due                           0.43 0.42                         

Total 63.34                       95.52                       

*Lien marked with banks 

8. INVENTORIES

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

(Valued at lower of Cost and Net Realisable value)

 Raw materials 1,755.44                 1,321.37                 

 Work-in-process 187.09                     123.99                     

 Finished goods 369.90                     100.84                     

Total                   2,312.43                   1,546.19 

9. TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Current

Trade Receivables from customers 652.06                     824.75                     

652.06                    824.75                    

Breakup of Security details

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good 652.06                     824.75                     

Significant increase in credit risk 12.25                       17.31                       

664.31                    842.06                    

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Significant increase in credit risk 12.25                       17.31                       

12.25                       17.31                       

652.06                    824.75                    

Trade or Other Receivable due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person 

amounted to INR Nil (Previous year INR Nil)

Trade or Other Receivable due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a 

member amounted to INR Nil (Previous year INR Nil)
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TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE

As at March 31, 2023 (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  Unbilled  Not Due 
 Less than 6 

months 

6 months - 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 

years
Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables

(i)  Considered good -                 -                 517.05          12.13            79.71            33.55            9.93               652.36          

(ii) Which have significant increase in credit risk -                 -                 
-                 

-                 -                 
-                 -                 

-                 

(iii) Credit Impaired -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Disputed Trade Receivables

(i)  Considered good -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 19.91            19.91            

(ii) Which have significant increase in credit risk -                 -                 
-                 

-                 -                 
-                 -                 

-                 

(iii) Credit Impaired -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

-                 -                 517.05          12.13            79.71            33.55            29.83            672.27          

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 20.21            

Total -                 -                 517.05          12.13            79.71            33.55            29.83            652.06          

As at March 31, 2022 (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  Unbilled  Not Due 
 Less than 6 

months 

6 months - 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 

years
Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables

(i)  Considered good -                 -                 757.43          5.60               44.51            4.92               9.69               822.15          

(ii) Which have significant increase in credit risk -                 -                 
-                 

-                 -                 
-                 -                 

-                 

(iii) Credit Impaired -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Disputed Trade Receivables

(i)  Considered good -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 19.91            19.91            

(ii) Which have significant increase in credit risk -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

(iii) Credit Impaired -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

-                 -                 757.43          5.60              44.51            4.92              29.60            842.06          

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 17.31            

Total -                 -                 757.43          5.60              44.51            4.92              29.60            824.75          
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10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

 Balances with banks on current accounts                           0.20 0.10                         

 Cash on hand                        28.77 26.92                       

 Total 28.98                       27.02                       

11. OTHER BANK BALANCES

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Deposits with banks to the extent held as margin money                        56.50 50.43                       

Other deposits with banks                               -   3.77                         

 Total 56.50                       54.20                       

12. OTHER ASSETS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Non Current

Capital Advances                      132.66 1.23                         

Security Deposits                           8.88 8.61                         

Prepaid expenses                           2.15 0.87                         

Payment of Taxes (Net of Provisions)                        71.62 32.42                       

Balances with Statutory, Government Authorities                      172.10 163.83                     

Other non current assets                      318.76 221.52                     

Total                      706.18                      428.49 

Current

Advances other than Capital advances

 - Security Deposits                               -   1.51                         

 - Advances to Suppliers                      204.65 197.02                     

 - Advances to employees                           3.58 3.58                         

Others

Prepaid expenses                           1.69 -                           

Balances with Statutory, Government Authorities                      106.64 84.45                       

Other current assets                        47.27 222.42                     

Total                      363.83                      508.96 

Bank deposits earns interest at fixed rates. Short term deposits are generally made for varying periods between

seven days to twelve months, depending on the cash requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the

respective deposit rates
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13. INCOME TAX

Deferred Tax (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Deferred tax relates to the following:

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes                              (53.71) (36.79)                           

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss                                  0.77 (7.10)                             

Provision for gratuity                                21.51 18.28                            

Provision for leave encashment                                  1.37 1.55                               

Allowance for credit loss on financial assets                                  5.09 6.36                               

Losses available for offsetting against future taxable income                                97.01 100.68                          

Other temporary differences                                  3.38 2.39                               

Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities)                                75.43                              85.37 

Movement in deferred tax liabilities/assets

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Opening balance as of April 1 85.37                              (26.63)                           

Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss (19.05)                             109.90                          

Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in OCI 9.11                                 2.09                               

Closing balance as at March 31 75.43                              85.37                            

Major Components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are as follows:

i. Income tax recognised in profit or loss (Amount in INR Lakhs)

2022-23 2021-22

Current income tax charge -                                   -                                 

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous year -                                   0.16                               

Deferred tax 19.05                              (109.90)                         

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences -                                   -                                 

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 19.05                              (109.74)                         

ii. Income tax recognised in OCI

2022-23 2021-22

Unrealised (gain)/loss on FVTOCI equity securities 9.65                                 -                                 

Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (0.54)                               2.09                               

Income tax expense recognised in OCI 9.11                                2.09                              

Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by income tax rate for March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

2022-23 2021-22

Accounting profit before income tax (18.00)                             (445.48)                         

Enacted tax rate in India 25.17% 25.17%

Income tax on accounting profits (4.53)                               (112.12)                         

Effect of

Change in carried forward Losses 18.83                              -                                 

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes -                                   2.31                               

Other 4.75                                 0.07                               

Tax at effective income tax rate 19.05                              (109.74)                         

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and

current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liablities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax

authority
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14. SHARE CAPITAL

i. Authorised Share Capital (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Number Amount

At April 1, 2021 1,10,00,000    1,100.00        

Increase/(decrease) during the year -                   -                  

At March 31, 2022 1,10,00,000    1,100.00        

Increase/(decrease) during the year -                   -                  

At March 31, 2023 1,10,00,000    1,100.00        

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

ii. Issued Capital

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Number Amount

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and 

fully paid

At April 1, 2021      1,02,51,000          1,025.10 

Issued during the period                       -                        -   

At March 31, 2022 1,02,51,000             1,025.10 

Issued during the period -                   -                  

At March 31, 2023 1,02,51,000    1,025.10        

iii. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Number % holding Number % holding

Mr. Rajesh  Bhatwal 46,03,875       44.91% 43,03,875      41.98%

Mrs.  Shakuntala  Bhatwal 23,95,500       23.37% 23,95,500      23.37%

Mr. Yi Hung Sing 8,32,500         8.12% 8,32,500        8.12%

iv. Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year

Shares held by promoter at the end of the year

Promoter's Name
No. of shares 

held

% of total 

shares

No. of shares 

held

% of total 

shares

Rajesh Raghunath Bhatwal 46,03,875    44.91          43,03,875   41.98          6.97          

Shakuntala Rajesh Bhatwal 23,95,500    23.37          23,95,500   23.37          -            

Meerabai Raghunath Bhatwal 62,375             0.61             62,375            0.61             -            

Prachi Rajesh Bhatwal 15,125             0.15             15,125            0.15             -            

Deepa Khatri 3,125               0.03             3,125              0.03             -            

Alok Raghunath Bhatwal -                   -               3,00,000        2.93             (100.00)    

Year Bonus Shares

March 31, 2023                       -   

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021                       -   

March 31, 2020  20,50,200 

March 31, 2019                       -   

vi. None of the above shares are reserved for issue under options/ contract/ commitments for sale of shares or disinvestment.

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully 

paid

As on 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022 % Change 

during the 

year

v. Aggregate number of equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares

bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of

the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 

Equity Share of INR 10 each

The Company has one class of Equity shares having a par value of INR 10 each. Each holder of Equity shares is entitled to

one vote per share and are subject to the preferential rights as prescribed under law or those of preference

shareholders,if any. The Equity share holders are also subject to restrictions as presribed under the Companies Act,

2013. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is 

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Name of the shareholder 
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15. OTHER EQUITY

i. Reserves and Surplus (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 March 31, 

2023 

March 31, 

2022

Securities Premium Reserve 1,775.70         1,775.70        

Retained Earnings 3,957.19         4,021.35        

Total 5,732.89         5,797.05        

(a) Securities Premium Reserve (Amount in INR Lakhs)

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Opening balance 1,775.70         1,775.70        

Add/(Less): Changes during the period -                   -                  

Closing balance 1,775.70         1,775.70        

(b) Retained Earnings (Amount in INR Lakhs)

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Opening balance 4,021.35         4,363.31        

Net Profit/(Loss) for the period (37.05)              (335.74)          

Add/(Less):

Items of Other Comprehensive Income directly 

recognised in Retained Earnings

Remeasurement of post employment benefit 

obligation, net of tax

1.60                 (6.22)               

Fair Value of  Equity Instruments through Other 

Comprehensive Income, net of tax

(28.70)              -                  

Closing balance 3,957.19         4,021.35        
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16. BORROWINGS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Current Borrowings

 Secured 

 Loans repayable on demand from Banks                           298.54 371.47                        

Total 298.54                          371.47                       

17. LEASE LIABILITIES

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

 Non Current

Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 34)                                6.55 9.37                            

Total 6.55                              9.37                            

 Current

Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 34)                              14.02 17.00                          

Total 14.02                            17.00                          

18. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

 Current

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

Dues to employees                              67.46 122.56                        

COFLAC12 Deposits Payable                                7.05 7.62                            

COFLAC10 Others                                6.33 39.47                          

Total 80.84                            169.65                       

19. TRADE PAYABLES

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Current

Trade Payables to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises                                    -   -                              

Trade Payables to Others                           259.61 98.97                          

Total 259.61                          98.97                          

153



NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

TRADE PAYABLES AGEING SCHEDULE

As at March 31, 2023 (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  Unbilled  Not Due 
 Less than 1 

Year 
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 

3 years
Total

(i) MSME -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

(ii) Others -               -               239.74        10.63          1.31             7.93             259.61        

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

(iv) Disputed dues -Others -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

Total -               -               239.74        10.63          1.31            7.93            259.61        

As at March 31, 2022 (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  Unbilled  Not Due 
 Less than 1 

Year 
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 

3 years
Total

(i) MSME -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

(ii) Others -               -               89.96          1.20             1.16             6.65             99                

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

(iv) Disputed dues -Others -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

Total -               -               89.96          1.20            1.16            6.65            98.97          
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20. OTHER LIABILITIES

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

 Non Current

 Government Grants                       14.81 4.51                        

                      14.81                         4.51 

Current

 Advance received from Customers                     415.79 135.52                   

 Government Grants                         2.16 1.18                        

 Other Payable                       13.14 31.22                      

 Statutory dues payable                       12.14 19.12                      

                    443.24                     187.05 

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Non Current

 Provision for employee benefits 

Gratuity (Refer Note 33)                       68.19 57.11                      

 Leave encashment                          5.09 5.35                        

73.28                     62.46                     

Current

 Provision for employee benefits 

Gratuity (Refer Note 33)                       33.19 31.44                      

 Leave encashment                          0.37 0.79                        

33.57                     32.23                     

22. CURRENT TAX LIABILITY/(Asset) (NET)

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

 Opening balance                      (39.11) 84.89                      

 Add: Current tax payable for the year                       26.54 -                          

 Less: Taxes paid                              -   (123.99)                  

 Closing Balance (12.57)                    (39.11)                    

23. GOVERNMENT GRANT

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

 Opening balance 5.69                        6.70                        

 Grants sanctioned during the year  21.16                      

 Grants apportioned to land during the year  (1.35)                      -                          

 Released to statement of profit and loss                        (8.53) (1.00)                      

 Closing Balance 16.98                     5.69                        

Total

21. PROVISIONS

Total

Total

Total
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24. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2022-23  2021-22 

A. Revenue from contracts with customers

 Sale of products 

 Machines                    4,384.31 3,801.23                  

 Spares                       210.49 119.79                     

Sale of services                           5.32 32.47                       

 Other Operating Revenues                           7.83 9.14                         

 Total 4,607.95                 3,962.63                 

B. Disaggregated revenue information

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

 2022-23 2021-22

Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on geography

a. Domestic                   4,588.36                   3,928.32 

b. Exports                         19.59                         34.31 

Total Revenue from Operation                   4,607.95                   3,962.63 

C. Reconciliation of Gross Revenue from Contracts With Customers (Amount in INR Lakhs)

 2022-23 2021-22

Gross Revenue                   4,638.84                   4,001.70 

Less : Discount                       (30.89)                       (39.07)

Net Revenue recognised from Contracts with Customers                   4,607.95                   3,962.63 

 

25. OTHER INCOME

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2022-23  2021-22 

 Interest income on Bank fixed deposits                         14.73 21.30                       

 Interest income on others                           1.27 1.16                         

 Rental income                           9.39 10.10                       

 Government grants income                           8.53 1.00                         

 Fair value gain on financial instruments at FVTPL                           6.99 6.54                         

 Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment                           0.96 13.55                       

 Miscellaneous Income                           5.14 4.57                         

Total 47.02                       58.22                       

The table below presents disaggregated revenue from contact with customers for the year ended March 2023 and March 2022.

The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and

cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.
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26. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2022-23  2021-22 

 Inventories as at the beginning of the year 

 Work - in - process                       123.99 121.37                     

 Finished goods                       100.84 184.42                     

 Total 224.82                     305.80                     

 Less : Inventories as at the end of the year 

 Work - in - process                       187.09 123.99                     

 Finished goods                       369.90 100.84                     

 Total 556.99                     224.82                     

 Net decrease / (increase) in inventories (332.17)                   80.97                       

27. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2022-23  2021-22 

 Salaries, wages and bonus                       491.58 510.14                     

 Contribution to provident and other funds                         32.49 34.42                       

Total 524.07                     544.56                     

28. FINANCE COST

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2022-23  2021-22 

 Interest expense on borrowings and lease liabilties                         19.96 36.06                       

 Other borrowing costs                         11.91 13.47                       

Total 31.88                       49.53                       

29. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2022-23  2021-22 

 Depreciation on tangible assets                       351.63 311.91                     

 Amortisation on intangible assets                         15.19 0.04                         

 Depreciation on investment properties                           1.23 1.31                         

Total 368.06                     313.26                     
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30. OTHER EXPENSES

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2022-23  2021-22 

 Manufacturing Expenses 

 Power & Fuel                         12.46 29.00                       

 Labour and Processing Charges                       380.48 330.26                     

 Total (A) 392.94                     359.26                     

 Selling, Administration and Other Expenses 

 Commission to Selling Agents                         70.42 44.52                       

 Stamping fees                       250.42 162.64                     

 Other selling expenses                         39.45 8.26                         

 Advertisement                         18.16 34.07                       

 Transportation & Handling Charges                       122.76 160.23                     

 Tender Expenses                           2.02 3.66                         

 Rent                           2.15 4.94                         

 Repairs and maintenance 

 Factory Building                           1.38 2.94                         

 Plant and Machinery                           9.66 11.74                       

 Others                           7.84 7.45                         

 Rates and taxes                         16.78 12.99                       

 Insurance                         15.34 12.11                       

 Telephone expenses                           8.01 9.26                         

 Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Refer note below)                               -   8.87                         

 Software & Computer Exp.                         47.56 9.97                         

 Legal and professional fees                         70.33 48.27                       

 Payments to auditors (Refer note below)                           5.00 3.50                         

 Travelling & conveyance expenses                       107.25 94.92                       

 Housekeeping Expenses                           7.81 7.81                         

 Electricity charges                           2.24 1.54                         

 Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment                           0.18 -                           

 Donation                           2.26 0.33                         

 Sundry balance written off                         17.72 30.95                       

 Miscellaneous expenses                         38.03 30.50                       

 Total (B) 862.75                     711.46                     

 Total (A+B) 1,255.69                 1,070.72                 

(a) Details of Payments to auditors (Amount in INR Lakhs)

 2022-23  2021-22 

As auditor

Audit Fee 2.00                         3.50                         

Tax audit fee 0.60                         -                           

In other capacity

Company law matters 1.10                         -                           

Other services (certification fees) 0.90                         -                           

Re-imbursement of expenses 0.40                         -                           

Total 5.00                         3.50                         
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(b) Corporate social responsibility expenditure

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year. 19.60                       8.87                         

Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 19.60                       8.87                         

Amount spent during the year on*:

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 19.60                       5.64                         

Total amount spent during the year 19.60                       5.64                         

Amount transferred to CSR Unspent A/C -                           -                           

The amount of shortfall at the end of the year out of the amount required to be spent 

by the Company during the year

-                           3.23                         

The total of previous years’ shortfall amounts -                           -                           

The reason for above shortfalls

Balance amount of

Rs. 3.23 lacs is to

be transferred to

the fund included

in schedule VII of

the Act. 

Details of related party transactions NA NA

Provision for CSR Expenses

Opening Balance 19.60                       16.38                       

Add: Provision created during the period -                           8.87                         

Less: Provision utilised during the period 19.60                       5.64                         

Closing Balance -                           19.60                       

31. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2022-23  2021-22 

 Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment                               -   123.15                     

 Write off of Intangible Asset under development                               -   196.27                     

 Sale of Investment in Associate                         18.89 -                           

 Total 18.89                       319.42                     

During the F.Y. 2021-22 company has closed down one of its Manufacturing Unit at Parwanoo, which has resulted in exceptional

loss of Rs. 123.15 lacs on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Also, the company had been developing its "Electronic Cash Register (Billing Machine)" and had re assessed its strategy in

response to the change in market conditions that the intangible cannot be developed as intended initially and has hence

shelved the project resulting in write off of Rs 196.27 lacs. as a exceptional item.

*Unspent amount as on 31st March 2022 is Rs. 19.60 lacs, out of which Rs. 16.38 lacs of F.Y. 2020-21 has been spent on the

projects identified by the company in F.Y. 2022-23 

 During the year company sold a portion of  it's stake in Hyper Drive Information Technologies Private Limited which has 

resulted in exceptional loss of Rs.18.89 lacs. 
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32. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

(a) Basic earnings per share (0.36)                       (3.28)                       

(b) Diluted earnings per share (0.36)                       (3.28)                       

(c) Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating basic earnings 

per share (37.05)                     (335.74)                   

Diluted earnings per share

Profit from continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the company (37.05)                     (335.74)                   

Adjustments for calculation of dilluted earnings per share: -                           -                           
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating diluted 

earnings per share
(37.05)                     (335.74)                   

(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic 

earnings per share

1,02,51,000            1,02,51,000            

Adjustments for calculation of dilluted earnings per share: -                           -                           

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating 

diluted earnings per share

1,02,51,000           1,02,51,000           
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33. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Current Non Current Total Current Non Current Total

Leave obligations 0.37                 5.09                 5.46                      0.79                     5.35                      6.14                

Gratuity 33.19              68.19              101.39                 31.44                   57.11                    88.55              

Total Employee Benefit 

Obligation

33.57              73.28              106.85                 32.23                   62.46                    94.69              

(i) Leave Obligations

The leave obligations cover the company's liability for sick and earned leave.

(ii) Post Employement obligations

a) Gratuity

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Discount rate 7.25% 7.25%

Expected return on plan assets -                       -                        

Salary growth rate 5.00% 5.00%

Normal retirement age 58 Years 58 Years

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is shown below:

Assumptions

Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease

March 31, 2023

Impact on defined benefit 

obligation

5.30                 6.09                 0.78                      0.90                     6.16                      5.45                 

% Impact 5% 6% 1% 1% 6% 5%

March 31, 2022

Impact on defined benefit 

obligation

5.56                 6.85                 6.29                      5.97                     6.86                      5.54                 

% Impact 10% 11% 2% 3% 12% 10%

 March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

The amount of the provision of INR 0.37 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: 0.79 lakhs) is presented as current, since the company does not have

an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations.

The company provides for gratuity for employees in india as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous

service for a period of five years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the employees

last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied by number of years of service.

The gratuity plan is an unfunded plan and the company makes contributions to recognised funds in India. The company does not fully

fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected

gratuity payments.

Discount rate Withdrawal rate Salary growth rate

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined beenfit obligation as

a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period. 
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The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Within the next 12 months 33.19                    31.44                   

Between 2 and 5 years 23.51                    15.56                   

Beyond 5 years 44.69                    41.55                   

Total expected payments 101.39                  88.55                   
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Nature of the lease transaction:

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year: (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023

As at 

March 31, 2022

Opening Balance 26.37                    61.71                    

Add: Additions during the year 13.81                    15.75                    

Add: Interest Expenses 2.30                       5.25                       

Less: Payments (21.90)                   (30.12)                   

Less: Cancellation -                         (26.21)                   

Closing Balance 20.57                    26.37                    

Non-current 6.55                       9.37                       

Current 14.02                    17.00                    

Amounts recognised in profit or loss (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023

As at 

March 31, 2022

Expenses relating to short-term leases 2.15                       2.16                       

Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Total cash outflow for leases 21.90                    30.12                    

Maturity Analysis of lease liabilities (undiscounted cashflows)): (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Less than 12 Months 17.00                    17.18                    

More than 12 Months 5.00                       11.46                    

Total 22.01                    28.64                    

Refer Note 4 for details relating to Right of Use Assets.

The Company has taken various office buildings on lease with lease term ranging from 11 Months to 6 years Some lease contract

can be renewed with mutual consent and some lease contract also contains the termination options. Such options are

appropriately considered in determination of the lease term based on the management's judgement. 

34. Leases
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(Amount in INR Lakhs)

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i) List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

Nature of Relationship Name of Related Party Country of Incorporation

List of related parties :

Associate Hyper Drive Information  Technologies Private LimitedIndia

Key Management Personnel Rajesh Raghunath Bhatwal (Chairman & Managing Director)

Shakuntala Rajesh Bhatwal (Whole Time Director & Women Director)

Hung Sin Chung Huanyi (Whole Time Director)

Pranit ANIL Bangad (Non Executive Independent Director)

Deepam Pradeep Shah (Non Executive Independent Director)

Avinash Rajaram Chandsarkar (Non Executive Independent Director)

Kailas Madanlal Agrawal (Chief Financial Officer)

Relatives of Key Management Personnel Prachi Rajesh Bhatwal

(ii) Transactions with related parties

The following transactions occurred with related parties

Rajesh Raghunath Bhatwal Remuneration 24.00                    24.00                    

Bonus 0.05                      0.05                      

Professional fees 19.00                    19.00                    

Sales Incentives -                        

Shakuntala Rajesh Bhatwal Remuneration 4.80                      4.80                      

Bonus 0.05                      0.05                      

Professional fees 19.00                    19.00                    

Hung Sin Chung Huanyi Remuneration 7.20                      6.90                      

Bonus 0.05                      0.05                      

Professional fees 4.80                      4.80                      

Kailas Madanlal Agrawal Remuneration 5.84                      5.42                      

Loan given 6.00                      

Loan repayment received 2.05                      

Bonus 0.07                      0.05                      

Deepika Amit Dalmiya Remuneration 3.03                      3.03                      

Bonus 0.05                      0.05                      

Prachi Rajesh Bhatwal Remuneration 6.00                      5.16                      

Bonus 0.07                      0.05                      

Rent income 0.60                      0.77                      

Maintainence services 32.20                    -                        

Sale of shares 47.11                    -                        

Deepika Amit Dalmiya (Company Secretary & Compliance Officer)

Nature of Transaction

Hyper Drive Information 

Technologies Private Limited

March 31, 2022Name March 31, 2023

164



NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(iii) Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods and services

Trade Receivables

Rent income 0.06                      -                        

(iv) Key management personnel compensation

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Post-employment benefits 1.84                      3.51                      

Total 1.84                      3.51                      

(v) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding

balances at the year end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided

or received for any related party receivables and payables. For the year ended March 21, 2023, the group has not recorded any

impairment of receivables relating to amount owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through

examining the financial position of the related party and market in which the related party operates.

Hyper Drive Information 

Technologies Private Limited

Name
Nature of 

Transaction
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
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(Amount in INR Lakhs)

36. SEGMENT REPORTING

A. Information about geographical areas

Revenue from external customers

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

India 4,588.36                3,928.32                

Outside India 19.59                      34.31                      

Total 4,607.95                3,962.63                

An operating segment is one whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker

to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. The Company is engaged in

manufacturing and selling of electronic equipments which constitute a single reportable segment in the context of Ind AS

108 on “Segment reporting”. 

The company is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of the

customers is shown in the table below:

For F.Y. 2021-22, Revenue from Director Social Welfare Jharkhand amounted to INR 468.71 which exceeded 10% of total

revenue for F.Y. 2021-22.
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37. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

i. Financial Instruments by Category (Amount in INR Lakhs)

March 31, 

2023

March 31, 

2022

March 31, 

2023

March 31, 

2022

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Amortised cost

Trade Receivables 652.06        824.75        652.06        824.75        

Loans 27.01          98.91          27.01          98.91          

Cash and Cash Equivalents 28.98          27.02          28.98          27.02          

Other Bank Balances 56.50          54.20          56.50          54.20          

Other Financial Assets 78.44          124.94        78.44          124.94        

Investment in Government Securities 1.04            1.04            1.04            1.04            

FVTPL

Investment in Equity Instruments 0.07            0.07            0.07            0.07            

Investment in Gold 51.73          44.74          51.73          44.74          

FVTOCI

Investment in Equity Instruments 95.68          -              95.68          -              

Total 991.51        1,175.67    991.51        1,175.67    

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Amortised cost

Borrowings 298.54        371.47        298.54        371.47        

Lease liabilities 20.57          26.37          20.57          26.37          

Trade Payables 259.61        98.97          259.61        98.97          

Other financial liabilities 80.84          169.65        80.84          169.65        

659.56        666.46        659.56        666.46        

ii. Fair Value Hierarchy

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value 

Particulars

Quoted 

prices in 

active 

markets

(Level 1)

Significant 

Observable 

Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant 

Unobservab

le Inputs

(Level 3)

Quoted 

prices in 

active 

markets

(Level 1)

Significant 

Observable 

Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant 

Unobservab

le Inputs

(Level 3)

Financial Assets

Financial Investments at FVTPL

Quoted equity shares 0.07            -              -              0.07            0.07            -              -              0.07            

Gold 51.73          -              -              51.73          44.74          -              -              44.74          

Financial Investments at FVTOCI

Unquoted equity shares -              -              95.68          95.68          -              -              -              -              

Total Financial Assets 51.80          -              95.68          147.48        44.81          -              -              44.81          

TotalTotal

March 31, 2023

Fair value measurement using

March 31, 2022

Fair value measurement using

The fair values of non current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using  a current borrowing rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair 

value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk.

Carrying Amount Fair Value

Particulars

Total

The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables, security deposit and other current financial assets and 

liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments. 
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There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the period

iii. Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific Valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

 - the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

 - the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are

valued using the closing NAV.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity

securities included in level 3.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the counter derivatives) is determined

using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs

required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Trade and other receivables

The Company has a well-defined risk management framework. The Board of Directors of the Company has

adopted a Risk Management Policy. The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial

instruments:

▪ Credit risk ;

▪ Liquidity risk ; and

▪ Market risk

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to perform or fail to pay

amounts due causing financial loss to the company. The potential activities where credit risks may arise include

from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and security deposits or other deposits and

principally from credit exposures to customers relating to outstanding receivables. The maximum credit exposure

associated with financial assets is equal to the carrying amount. Details of the credit risk specific to the company

along with relevant mitigation procedures adopted have been enumerated below:

The Company's exposure to credit Risk is the exposure that Company has on account of services rendered to a

contractual counterparty or counterparties, whether with collateral or otherwise for which the contracted

consideration is yet to be received.  The Company's customer base are Industrial and Commercial.

Services are generally subject to security deposit and/or bank guarantee clauses to ensure that in the event of

non-payment the company's receivables are not affected. The Company provides for allowance for impairment

that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables.

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade

receivables based on a provision matrix.

Refer note 9 for ageing of trade receivables.

The above receivables which are past due but not impaired are assessed on case-to-case basis. The instances

pertain to third party customers which have a proven creditworthiness record. Management is of the view that

these financial assets are not impaired as there has not been any adverse change in credit quality and are

envisaged as recoverable based on the historical payment behavior and extensive analysis of customer credit risk,

including underlying customers’ credit ratings, if they are available. Consequently, no additional provision has

been created on account of expected credit loss on the receivables. There are no other classes of financial assets

that are past due but not impaired. The provision for impairment of trade receivables, movement of which has

been provided below, is not significant / material. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to fact that the

customer base is large and unrelated.
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Movements in Provision for Doubtful Allowance: (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Balance at the beginning of the year              17.31              19.35 

Movements in allowance:

Additional provision               (5.05)               (2.04)

Closing balance              12.25              17.31 

Other financial assets

(iii) Liquidity risk

Exposure to liquidity risk

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

March 31, 2023 Carrying 

Total
Less than 12 

months

More than 12 

months

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Current Borrowings            298.54           298.54            298.54                     -   

Non current lease liabilities                 6.55 5.00                                  -                   5.00 

Current lease liabilities               14.02 17.00                         17.00                     -   

Current financial liabilities               80.84 80.84                         80.84                     -   

Trade payables            259.61 259.61                     259.61                     -   

Total            659.56           661.00            655.99                5.00 

Other financial assets includes loan to employees, security deposits, investments, cash and cash equivalents,

other bank balance, derivative asset, advances to employees etc.

• Cash and cash equivalents and Bank deposits are placed with banks having good reputation and past track

record with adequate credit rating. 

• Investments are made in credit worthy companies.

• Company has given security deposit to various purposes and management believes that the Company does not

have exposure to any credit risk.

• Loan and advances to employees are majorly secured against the salary and hence the Company does not have

exposure to any credit risk.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its

financial liabilities that are proposed to be settled by delivering cash or other financial asset. The Company’s

financial planning has ensured, as far as possible, that there is sufficient liquidity to meet the liabilities whenever

due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the

Company’s reputation. The Company has practiced financial diligence and syndicated adequate liquidity in all

business scenarios.

Further, the Company has also tied-up additional sources of liquidity to meet the liabilities during the respective

annual years which has ensured that the Company has a clean track record with no adverse events pertaining to

liquidity risk.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts

are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting

agreements.

Contractual maturities
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March 31, 2022 Carrying 

Total
Less than 12 

months

More than 12 

months

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Current Borrowings            371.47 371.47                     371.47                     -   

Non current lease liabilities                 9.37 11.46                                -                11.46 

Current lease liabilities               17.00 17.18                         17.18                     -   

Current financial liabilities            169.65 169.65                     169.65                     -   

Trade payables               98.97 98.97                         98.97                     -   

Total            666.46           668.73            657.27              11.46 

(iv) Market risk

Currency risk

Interest rate risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity

prices – will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. 

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees. The Company do not have derivative financial

instruments. The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk. 

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate

risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest

rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments will

fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest rates. The company is not materially exposed to interest rate

risk. 

Contractual maturities
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39. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Borrowings 298.54                  371.47                  

Less: cash and cash equivalents (28.98)                   (27.02)                   

Less: Other bank balance (56.50)                   (54.20)                   

Adjusted net debt 213.06                  290.25                  

Equity 1,025.10               1,025.10               

Other Equity 5,732.89               5,797.05               

Total Equity 6,757.99               6,822.15               

Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 0.03                      0.04                      

The Company defines capital as total equity including issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves

attributable to equity holders of the Company (which is the Company’s net asset value). The primary objective of the

Company’s financial framework is to support the pursuit of value growth for shareholders, while ensuring a secure

financial base.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net

debt is defined as total interest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total equity comprises all

components of equity.
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(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

-                        -                       

-                        -                       

-                        -                       

-                        -                       

-                        -                       

-                        -                       

-                        -                       

 - The Company have not any such transaction which is  not recorded in the books of accounts that has been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such 

as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

 - The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

 - The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the 

statutory period

 - The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

 - The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 

foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall (a) directly or indirectly lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate 

Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

 - The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding 

Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall (a) directly or 

indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b)provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries,

Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for

payment already made

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to

suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006

The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as "Mico and

Small" enterprises on the basis of information available with the Company.

41. OTHER REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

 - The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the 

company for holding any Benami property.

Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, ( Section 16 )

40. DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM 

ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006 (MSMED ACT, 2006)

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006*

Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the 

Payment made to suppliers ( other than interest ) beyond the

appointed day, during the year

Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, ( other than Section 
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43.  Amount due for credit to Investor Education and Protection Fund is NIL (Previous year NIL).

44. In the opinion of management, any of the assets other than property, plant and equipment and non-current

investments have a value on realisation in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which

they are stated.

 - The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

 - The Company does not have any Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of 

sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013

42 . As at the balance sheet date, the Company has reviewed the carrying amounts of its assets and found that

there is no indication that those assets have suffered any impairment loss. Hence, no such impairment loss has

been provided.
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(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

Utilisation 

planned as 

per 

prospectus

Balance 

Amount to be 

utilized as on 

31st March, 

2021

Utilisation of 

IPO proceeds

During the FY 

2021-2022

Balance 

Amount to be 

utilized as on 

31st March, 

2022

Utilisation of 

IPO proceeds

During the FY 

2022-2023

Balance 

Amount to be 

utilized as on 

31st March, 

2023

Development of new products 525.00           75.97             127.36           -                                     -   -                 

Setting up manufacturing Unit 

for the existing and new range 

of products

575.00           -                 -                 -                 -                 

Expansion of Marketing 

Network and Brand building

500.00           360.01           153.15           206.86                      175.93 30.93             

General Corporate Purposes 500.00           -                 -                 -                                     -   -                 

Issue Expenses 100.80           22.92             -                 22.92                                 -   22.92             

Total 2,200.80       458.90          280.52          229.78                     175.93 53.85             

45. Utilization of money raised through Initial Public Offer

175



NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Particulars Numerator Denominator Current Period Previous Period % of variance Explanation for change in the 

ratio by more than 25%

Current Ratio (times) Current Assets Current Liabilities                        3.16 3.70                      0.15                   

Debt-Equity Ratio  (times) Debt consists of borrowings and

lease

liabilities

Total Equity                        0.05                       0.06 19.03                 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio  (times) Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash

operating expenses like

depreciation and other

amortizations + Interest + other

adjustments like loss on sale of

Fixed assets etc.

Interest + Lease Payments + 

Principal Repayments

                       7.81 4.50                      (73.48)               Decrease in finance cost during 

the year.

Net Profit Ratio (%) Profit after tax Revenue from operations                       (0.80) (8.47)                    (7.67)                 

Return on Equity Ratio (%) Profit after tax Average Total Equity                       (0.55) (4.80)                    (4.26)                 

Return on Capital employed (%) Profit before tax and finance cost Total Equity + Debt consists of borrowings and lease liabilities + Deferred Tax Liabilities - Deferred tax assets                       0.20 (5.55)                    (5.75)                 

Return on Investment  (%) - Deposits Income generated from deposits Average invested funds in 

Intercorporate and other 

deposits

20.92                    29.09                   8.17                   

Trade Receivables turnover ratio (times) Revenue from operations Average Trade Receivables 6.24                       4.64                      (34.46)                Increase in cash sales and 

realization of old debtors. 

Inventory turnover ratio (times) Revenue from operations Average Inventory 2.39                       2.72                      12.17                 

Trade payables turnover ratio (times) Operating and other expenses Average Trade Payables 20.80                    19.65                   (5.90)                 

Net capital turnover ratio (times) Revenue from operations Working Capital = Current assets - current liabilities1.89                       1.68                      (12.68)               

46. RATIO ANALYSIS
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47. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT

48. Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever considered necessary to confirm to current year’s 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable

from April 1, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements 

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies.

Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence

decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any

significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 – Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations.

The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption)

so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary

differences. The Company is evaluating the impact, if any, in its financial statements.

Ind AS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting

Estimates and Errors The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The

definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new

definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.

Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that

involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect

this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

 

 

To  

The Members, 

Nitiraj Engineers Limited, 

Mumbai 

 

 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Nitiraj 

Engineers Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its 

Associate Hyper Drive Information Technologies Private Limited (Holding 

Company and its Associate together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the 

consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the consolidated statement of 

Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of 

changes in equity and the consolidated cash flows statement for the year then ended, 

and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the 

consolidated financial statements”). 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information 

required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their 

consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2023, of consolidated loss 

and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated 

cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion  

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 

under section 143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 

Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI, and we have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. 

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial 

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,  
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1) Testing, measurement & derecognition of investment in associate: 

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

As disclosed in notes to the 

consolidated financial 

statements, The audit of the 

testing and impairment of the 

investment in the associate, 

which includes the stake sold 

and the fair valuation of the 

remaining balance holding 

through Other 

Comprehensive Income 

(OCI), was identified as a key 

audit matter due to the 

complexity of judgment 

involved in impairment 

testing and the substantial 

carrying value of the 

investment. 

 Impairment Assessment: Reviewing the 

company's impairment testing process, 

evaluating criteria used, and assessing 

management's judgments. 

 Sale Transaction Review: Examining terms of 

the sold stake to ensure proper recognition 

and derecognition in line with accounting 

standards. 

 Fair Valuation through OCI: Scrutinizing fair 

valuation methodologies used for the 

remaining balance holding accounted through 

Other Comprehensive Income. 

 Disclosure Validation: Verifying accuracy and 

transparency of financial statement disclosures 

on impairment, sale, and valuation. 

 

2) Recognition and measurement of Deferred tax assets 

 

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

As disclosed in notes to the 

consolidated financial 

statements. The company 

has recognised deferred tax 

asset during the year. 

 

Recognition and 

measurement of such 

deferred tax assets has been 

identified as a key audit 

matter because the 

assessment process involves 

significant judgement 

regarding the forecasts of 

future income tax. The 

assessment process is based 

on assumptions affected by 

expected future market or 

economic conditions. 

 

In respect of deferred tax assets, we assessed 

recognition and measurement by performing the 

following procedures: 

 Evaluating the design, implementation and 

operating effectiveness of the relevant internal 

controls over recognition and measurement of 

deferred tax assets and underlying data; 

 Obtaining the approved business plans, 

projected profitability statements; 

 Challenging the assumptions used regarding 

future business plans and taxable profit in light 

of fiscal developments, current economic 

environment and prior performance in 

determining the recoverability of business 

losses recognized within the period available 

under applicable Income tax laws; 

 Performing sensitivity analysis 

 Testing the computation of amounts 

recognized as deferred tax assets on business 

losses; 

 Focusing on the disclosures on deferred tax 

asset and assumptions used. 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report 

thereon 

 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the 

other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 

Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s 

Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s 

Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, our auditor’s 

report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other 

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility 

is to read the other information and in doing so, consider whether the other 

information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our 

knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be 

materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have 

nothing to report in this regard. 

Management’s Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and 

presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of 

the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of 

affairs, consolidated profit & other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of 

changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of 

Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and 

other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 

operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that 

give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 

consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as 

aforesaid.  

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of 

the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the 

Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 

either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so.  
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The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 

responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 

in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 

the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order 

to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 

section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 

whether the Company and its Associate companies which are companies 

incorporated in India, has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 

of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis 

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 

on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going 

concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated 

financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated 

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 

that achieves fair presentation. 
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 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of 

such entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the 

consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision 

and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included 

in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. 

For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have 

been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the 

direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We 

remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard 

are further described in the section titled “Other Matters” in this audit report 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements 

that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 

reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be 

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 

the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 

evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial 

statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and such other 

entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the 

independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 

thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 

those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial 

statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 

these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 

that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 

interest benefits of such communication. 

 

 

Other Matters 

 

The consolidated financial statements include the unaudited financial statements of the 

following Associate company whose financial statements / financial information have 

not been audited by us. This financial statements / financial information is unaudited 

and have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the 

Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and 

disclosures included in respect of the associates, is based solely on such unaudited 

financial statements / financial information.  
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(Amount in lacs) 

Sr. Name of the Associate 

Period ended up to 24th  February 2023  

(Before consolidation) (also Refer SAP 

2.2. c) 

No. 

Total 

Revenue 

Profit after 

Tax Net  Assets 

1 

Hyper Drive Information 

Technologies Private Limited 
424.17 (18.81) 550.79 

  Total 424.17 (18.81) 550.79 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of the 

above matters with respect to our reliance on the financial statements / financial 

information certified by the Management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1) As required by paragraph 3(xxi) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the 

Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the 

Act in respect of Holding company whose accounts are audited by us, the Company did 

not include any unfavourable answers or qualifications or adverse remarks. In respect 

of the associate company “Hyper Drive Information Technologies Private Limited“ the 

CARO report relating to it has not been received by us for the cut off period 24th 

February 2023. 

2) (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our Audit, we report that:  

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the 

aforesaid consolidated financial statements. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.  

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

(including other comprehensive income), and the consolidated statement of changes in 

equity, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of 

preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the 

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the 

Holding Company as on 31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of 

the Holding Company and the reports of Associate companies incorporated in India, 

none of the directors of Group company incorporated in India are disqualified as on 

31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 

Act.  
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of 

the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 

report in “Annexure A”. 

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:  

i. There were no pending litigations which would impact the consolidated financial 

position of the Group. 

ii. The Group, did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts 

including derivative contracts. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its Associate companies 

incorporated in India. 

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and       belief, 

as disclosed in notes to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been 

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 

any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company incorporated in India 

to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall: 

 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Holding 

Company incorporated in India or 

 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries. 

b. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 

disclosed in notes to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been 

received by the Holding Company incorporated in India from any persons or 

entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company incorporated in 

India shall: 

 

 directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding 

Parties or 

 

 provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries. 

 

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ report under Section 197(16) 

of the Act: 

 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 

remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company and its Associate 

which are incorporated in India to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of 
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Section 197 of the Act read with schedule V. The remuneration paid to any director by 

the Holding Company and its Associate which are incorporated in India, is not in 

excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act read with schedule V. The 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of 

the Act which are required to be commented upon by us. 

 

 

 

For and on behalf of 

M/s Sharp Aarth & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No.132748W 

    

 

(Harshal Jethale) 

Partner 

Membership No. 141162 

UDIN: 23141162BGUPMQ4987 

 

Jalgaon 

30th May, 2023 
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors Report 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of section 143 

of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as 

of and for the year ended 31st March, 2023, we have audited the internal financial 

controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of Nitiraj Engineers Limited 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) being the only company in the group 

to which requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are applicable. 

 

In our opinion, the Holding Company has in all material respects, an adequate internal 

financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal 

financial controls were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2023, based on the 

internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of such internal 

controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. (the 

“Guidance Note”) 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its Associate, which are 

companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining 

internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 

established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective 

company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 

and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company and its Associate, 

which are companies incorporated in India, internal financial controls over financial 

reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on 

Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and deemed to be 

prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of 

internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 

with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements was established and 

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy 

of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these 

Consolidated Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 

internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 

internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated 

Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 

and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
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due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by 

the other auditors in terms of their reports is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  

 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these 

Consolidated Financial Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the consolidated preparation 

of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting with 

reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements includes those policies and 

procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 

Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 

to permit preparation of Consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are 

being made only in accordance with authorisation of management and directors of the 

Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 

detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that 

could have a material effect on the Consolidated financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting 

with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 

internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated 

Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 

control over financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated Financial 

Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

 

For and on behalf of 

M/s Sharp Aarth & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No.132748W 

    

 

(Harshal Jethale) 

Partner 

Membership No. 141162 

UDIN: 23141162BGUPMQ4987 

 

Jalgaon 

30th May, 2023 
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 ASSETS 

 Non-Current Assets 

 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 2,987.74                                     3,235.97                                     

 (b) Investment Property 5 11.09                                           12.32                                           

 (c) Right-of-use assets 4 19.29                                           25.15                                           

 (d) Intangible Assets 6 342.22                                        357.41                                        

 (e) Intangible Assets Under Development 6 160.16                                        160.16                                        

 (f) Financial Assets 

 (i) Investments 7 96.79                                           148.93                                        

 (ii) Other Financial Assets 7 15.10                                           29.42                                           

 (g) Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 13 75.43                                           85.37                                           

 (h) Other Non-Current Assets 12 706.18                                        428.49                                        

4,414.00                                     4,483.22                                     

 Current assets 

 (a) Inventories 8 2,312.43                                     1,546.19                                     

 (b) Financial Assets 

 (i) Investments 7 51.73                                           44.74                                           

 (ii) Trade Receivables 9 652.06                                        824.75                                        

 (iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 28.98                                           27.02                                           

 (iv) Bank Balances Other than (iii) above 11 56.50                                           54.20                                           

 (v) Loans 7 27.01                                           98.91                                           

 (vi) Other Financial Assets 7 63.34                                           95.52                                           

CTL2  (c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 22 12.57                                           39.11                                           

 (d) Other Current Assets 12 363.83                                        508.96                                        

3,568.45                                     3,239.41                                     

 TOTAL 7,982.45                                     7,722.63                                     

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

 Equity 

 (a) Equity Share capital 14 1,025.10                                     1,025.10                                     

 (b) Other Equity 15 5,732.89                                     5,744.83                                     

6,757.99                                     6,769.93                                     

 Liabilities 

 Non Current Liabilities 

 (a) Financial Liabilities 

 (i) Lease Liabilities 17 6.55                                             9.37                                             

 (b) Provisions 21 73.28                                           62.46                                           

 (c) Other Non-Current Liabilities 20 14.81                                           4.51                                             

94.64                                           76.34                                           

 Current Liabilities 

 (a) Financial Liabilities 

 (i) Borrowings 16 298.54                                        371.47                                        

 (ii) Lease Liabilities 17 14.02                                           17.00                                           

 (iii) Trade Payables 19

 Due to micro and small enterprises -                                               -                                               

 Due to others 259.61                                        98.97                                           

 (iv) Other Financial Liabilities 18 80.84                                           169.65                                        

 (b)  Provisions 21 33.57                                           32.23                                           

 (c) Other Current Liabilities 20 443.24                                        187.05                                        

1,129.81                                     876.37                                        

 TOTAL 7,982.45                                     7,722.63                                     

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Financial 

Statements 

1 to 48

As per our report of even date

For SHARP AARTH & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. 132748W

Harshal Jethale Rajesh R. Bhatwal Shakuntala R. Bhatwal

Partner Managing Director Director

Membership No.: 141162 Din No.00547575 Din No.01953906

UDIN : 23141162BGUPMQ4987

Kailas M. Agrawal Deepika A. Dalmiya

CFO Company Secretary

Mumbai Membership No. A58029

Date: May 30, 2023

For and on behalf of the board of directors of Nitiraj Engineers Limited

NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

NotesParticulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
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NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

REVENUE

Revenue from operations (net) 24 4,607.95                                        3,962.63                                        

Other income 25 47.02                                              58.22                                              

Total Revenue (I) 4,654.97                                        4,020.85                                        

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 2,806.56                                        2,087.86                                        

Changes in inventories of work-in-process and finished goods 26 (332.17)                                          80.97                                              

Employee benefits expense 27 524.07                                            544.56                                            

Finance costs 28 31.88                                              49.53                                              

Depreciation and amortization expense 29 368.06                                            313.26                                            

Other expenses 30 1,255.69                                        1,070.72                                        

Total Expenses (II) 4,654.08                                        4,146.91                                        

Profit before tax, Exceptional Items and share of associate (I-II) 0.89                                                (126.06)                                          

Share of net loss of an associate (III) (4.71)                                               (17.00)                                            

Profit before tax and Exceptional Items(I-II-III) (3.82)                                               (143.06)                                          

Exceptional Items (IV) 31 0.11                                                319.42                                            

Profit/(loss) before tax (I-II-III-IV) (3.92)                                               (462.48)                                          

Tax expense:

Current tax -                                                  -                                                  

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods -                                                  0.16                                                

Deferred tax 19.05                                              (109.90)                                          

Profit/(loss) for the period (22.98)                                            (352.74)                                          

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A. Other Comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit and loss in

subsequent periods:

Remeasurement of gains (losses) on defined benefit plans 2.14                                                (8.32)                                               

Income tax effect (0.54)                                               2.09                                                

Fair Value of  Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income (0.21)                                               -                                                  

Income tax effect 9.65                                                -                                                  

B. Other Comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit and loss in

subsequent periods:

-                                                  -                                                  

Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 11.04                                              (6.22)                                               

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX (11.93)                                            (358.96)                                          

Earnings per share for profit attributable to equity shareholders 32

Basic and Diluted EPS (0.22)                                               (3.44)                                               

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Financial 

Statements 

1 to 48

As per our report of even date

For SHARP AARTH & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. 132748W

Harshal Jethale Rajesh R. Bhatwal Shakuntala R. Bhatwal

Partner Managing Director Director

Membership No.: 141162 Din No.00547575 Din No.01953906

UDIN : 23141162BGUPMQ4987

Kailas M. Agrawal Deepika A. Dalmiya

CFO Company Secretary

Mumbai Membership No. A58029

Date: May 30, 2023

Notes  2022-23  2021-22 

For and on behalf of the board of directors of Nitiraj Engineers Limited

13
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NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(Amount in INR Lakhs)

 Particulars 2022-23  2021-22 

 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

 Net Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss: (3.92)                                           (462.48)                                      

 Adjustments for: 

 Depreciation and amortisation expense 368.06                                       313.26                                       

 Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.78)                                           109.60                                       

 Share of loss of an associate 4.71                                            17.00                                          

 Impairment of intangible assets under development -                                              196.27                                       

 Net (gain)/loss on sale of Investment 0.11                                            -                                              

 Finance costs 31.88                                          49.53                                          

 Interest Income (16.01)                                        (22.46)                                        

 Net gain on financial instruments (6.99)                                           (6.54)                                           

 Provision for Gratuity and Leave Encashment 12.15                                          10.67                                          

 Reversal of allowance on doubtful debts (5.05)                                           (2.04)                                           

 Sundry balances written off 17.72                                          30.95                                          

 Change in operating assets and liabilities: 

 (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 160.02                                       60.20                                          

 (Increase)/decrease in inventories (766.24)                                      (177.98)                                      

 Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 160.64                                       (131.87)                                      

 (Increase)/decrease in other financial assets 46.51                                          18.77                                          

 (Increase)/decrease in other assets (106.01)                                      198.28                                       

 Increase/(decrease) in provisions 2.14                                            (7.16)                                           

 Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 171.89                                       60.80                                          

 Cash generated from operations 70.82                                          254.80                                       

 Less: Income taxes paid -                                              (109.49)                                      

 Net cash inflow from operating activities 70.82                                          145.31                                       

 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

 Payments for property, plant and equipment (86.17)                                        (418.37)                                      

 Payments for investment property -                                              (3.62)                                           

 Proceeds from sale of Investments 47.11                                          -                                              

 Intangible asset under development -                                              (112.83)                                      

 Loans paid to employees recovered 71.89                                          (84.75)                                        

 Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3.22                                            40.65                                          

 Movement in other bank balances (2.30)                                           (12.67)                                        

 Interest received 16.01                                          22.46                                          

 Net cash outflow from investing activities 49.76                                          (569.12)                                      

 CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

 Proceeds/(outflow) from borrowings (72.93)                                        371.47                                       

 Principal elements of lease payments (13.81)                                        (26.41)                                        

 Interest paid (31.88)                                        (49.53)                                        

 Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities (118.62)                                      295.53                                       

 Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1.96                                            (128.28)                                      

 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 27.02                                          155.30                                       

 Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year 28.98                                          27.02                                          

 Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement: 

 Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following: 

 Balances with banks on current accounts 0.20                                            0.10                                            

 Cash on hand 28.77                                          26.92                                          

 Balances per statement of cash flows 28.98                                          27.02                                          
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NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
Note :

(b) Changes in liability arising from financing activities (Amount in INR Lakhs)

 lease liabilities Borrowings

Net Debt as at April 1, 2021 61.71                                          -                                              

Cash outflows (30.12)                                        -                                              

Cash inflows -                                              371.47                                       

Interest expense 5.25                                            49.53                                          

Interest paid -                                              (49.53)                                        

Additions 15.75                                          -                                              

Other adjustments (26.21)                                        -                                              

Net Debt as at March 31, 2022 26.37                                          371.47                                       

Cash outflows (21.90)                                        (72.93)                                        

Cash inflows -                                              

Interest expense 2.30                                            31.88                                          

Interest paid (31.88)                                        

Additions 13.81                                          -                                              

Other adjustments -                                              

Net Debt as at March 31, 2023 20.57                                          298.54                                       

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 

1 to 48

As per our report of even date

For SHARP AARTH & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. 132748W

Harshal Jethale Rajesh R. Bhatwal Shakuntala R. Bhatwal

Partner Managing Director Director

Membership No.: 141162 Din No.00547575 Din No.01953906

UDIN : 23141162BGUPMQ4987

Kailas M. Agrawal Deepika A. Dalmiya

CFO Company Secretary

Mumbai Membership No. A58029

Date: May 30, 2023

 Liabilities from financing activities 

 (a) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) - 

Statement of Cash Flow 

For and on behalf of the board of directors of Nitiraj 

Engineers Limited
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NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

A Equity Share Capital

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars

Balance at the 

Beginning of the 

period

Changes in Equity 

share capital during 

the year

Balance at the end of the 

period

March 31, 2022

Numbers              1,02,51,000                                -                           1,02,51,000 

Amount                    1,025.10                                -                                1,025.10 

March 31, 2023

Numbers              1,02,51,000                                -                           1,02,51,000 

Amount                    1,025.10                                -                                1,025.10 

B Other Equity

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
Securities Premium 

Reserve

Retained Earnings Total

As at April 1, 2021                    1,775.70                    4,328.09 6,103.79                             

Profit for the period -                            (352.74)                    (352.74)                               

Other comprehensive income -                            (6.22)                         (6.22)                                   

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,775.70                  3,969.13                  5,744.83                             

As at March 31, 2022 1,775.70                  3,969.13                  5,744.83                             

Profit for the period -                            (22.98)                       (22.98)                                 

Other comprehensive income -                            11.04                        11.04                                  

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,775.70                  3,957.19                  5,732.89                             

As at March 31, 2023 1,775.70                  3,957.19                  5,732.89                             

Note:

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of 

the Financial Statements 

1 to 48

As per our report of even date

For SHARP AARTH & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. 132748W

Harshal Jethale Rajesh R. Bhatwal Shakuntala R. Bhatwal

Partner Managing Director Director

Membership No.: 141162 Din No.00547575 Din No.01953906

UDIN : 23141162BGUPMQ4987

Kailas M. Agrawal Deepika A. Dalmiya

Mumbai CFO Company Secretary

Date: May 30, 2023 Membership No. A58029

Reserves and Surplus

(i) Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) Retained Earnings: The amount that can be distributed by the Group as dividends to its equity shareholders out of 

accumulated reserves is determined considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the closing balance 

amounts reported above are not distributable in entirety.

For and on behalf of the board of directors of Nitiraj Engineers 

Limited
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1 Corporate Information

2 Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the certain financial

assets, investments etc whichhave been measured at fair value.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of

Changes in equity and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement are prepared and presented in the format

prescribed in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The disclosure requirements with

respect to items in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, as

prescribed in the Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial

statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards

and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Group’s presentation and functional currency is Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded off

to the nearest lakhs (INR 00,000), except when otherwise indicated. 

NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

The financial statements comprise consolidated financial statements of Nitiraj Engineers Limited

(Parent) and its associate ('Group') for the year ended March 31, 2023. The parent company is a public

company domiciled in India and is incorporated on April 1, 1999 under the provisions of the Companies

Act applicable in India. Its shares are listed on NSE. The registered office of the company is located at

306 A Babha Building, M Marg, near police station, Mumbai 400011.

The Parent company is engaged in manufacturing and selling of a variety of Electronic Weighing Scales,

Currency Counting Machines, Taxi Fare Meters etc.

The associate entity is engaged into software development, software solutions, IT consulting services

and IT enabled services etc.

The parent company launched it's Initial Public Offer of equity shares during the FY 2016-17 and got

listed on the NSE Emerge [SME] Exchange. Company migrated from SME Platform (EMERGE) and

admitted to dealings on the National Stock Exchange (Capital Market Segment - Main Board) with effect

from April 22, 2021.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on

May 30, 2023.

The consolidated financial statements of the group have been prepared in accordance with Indian

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015(as amended).
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NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

The Group does not have a subsidiary

a) Associates

b) Equity method

 c) Sale of Associate Stake:

d) Calculation of Profit Share:

e) Presentation in Consolidated Income Statement:

f) Presentation in Consolidated Balance Sheet:

Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control or joint control.

This is generally the case where the group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments

in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting (see below), after initially being

recognised at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted

thereafter to recognise the group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit

and loss, and the group’s share of other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive

income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a

reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in

the entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the group does not recognise further

losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated

to the extent of the group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the

transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity

accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the group.

As of the date of sale of the associate stake, the carrying value of the investment in the associate is

removed from the consolidated balance sheet. Any related accumulated equity adjustments are also

removed. The resulting gain or loss from the sale is reported in the consolidated income statement.

When the holding company sells its stake in an associate, and as of the sale date, the associate ceases to

be an associate, and any significant influence is lost. The investment in the associate is derecognized

from the consolidated financial statements. Any gain or loss arising from the sale is recognized in the

consolidated income statement.

The profit share from the associate is calculated up to the date of the sale of the stake. The investor's

share of the associate's profit or loss up to the date of sale is recognized in the consolidated income

statement. This calculation is based on the equity method principles.

In the consolidated income statement, the profit or loss from the associate is presented separately as a

line item to reflect the investor's share of the associate's financial performance up to the date of sale.

On February 24, 2023, the parent company divested a portion of its ownership stake in "Hyper Drive

Information Technologies Private Limited" (HDITPL), resulting in HDITPL no longer being considered an

associate of the company.

The carrying amount of equity accounted investments are tested for impairment in accordance with the

policy described below.

194



NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

(ii) Transactions and balances

(b) Revenue recognition

Recognising revenue from major business activities

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers:

(ii) Sale of services

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods or

services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Group expects to receive in

exchange for those goods or services. Performance obligations are satisfied at the point of time when

the customer obtains the controls of the goods. Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which

is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, stated net of discounts, returns and value

added tax. Transaction price is recognized based on the price specified in the contract. Revenue excludes

taxes collected from customers.

Revenue from sale of services is in nature of job work on customer product which normally takes 1–10

days for completion and accordingly revenue is recognised when products are sent to customer on

which job work is completed. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as

revenue are inclusive of excise duty and net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value added taxes and

amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when the amount of

revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and 

specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as described below. The Group bases its

estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction

and the specifics of each arrangement.

Items included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements

are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is entity’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the

dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such

transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss.
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(iii) Dividend income

(iv) Interest income

(c) Government Grants

(d) Taxes

(i) Current income tax

(ii) Deferred tax

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive

income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly

discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial

instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or

to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group

estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument

but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the

statement of profit and loss.

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance

that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government

grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to

match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-

current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the

expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or

paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that

are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates

and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss

(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to

the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates

positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are

subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Revenue is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally

when shareholders approve the dividend.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

(e) Leases

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year

when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity

and the same taxation authority.

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the

arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the

arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right

to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

 - When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or 

liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, 

affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

 - In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, 

associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary 

differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in 

the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused

tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable

that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry

forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

 - When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the 

initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at 

the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

 - In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, 

associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent 

that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and 

taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting

date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow

the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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(i) As a lessee

(ii) As a lessor

(f) Impairment of non financial assets

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-

line basis over the lease term. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on

their nature.

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be

impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group

estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or

cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is

determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely

independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or

CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its

recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a

pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks

specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken

into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These

calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies

or other available fair value indicators.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The

right-ofuse asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability

adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs

incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the

underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use

asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the

end of the lease term. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that

their carrying value may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any is recognized in the statement of

profit and loss.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost, at the present value of the future lease payments. The

lease payments are discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when

there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change

in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if

the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination

option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the

carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the

right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that

have a lease term of 12 months or less. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these

leases as an expense over the lease term. 

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership

transfer from the Group to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as

receivables at the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting

periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of 

the lease.
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(g) Cash and cash equivalents

(h) Inventories

(i) Financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term

deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term

deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of

the Group’s cash management.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Raw materials: Raw materials and components, stores and spares and loose tools are valued at lower of

cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of

inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated

are expected to be sold at or above cost. Costs are determined on weighted average basis.

Work in progress and Finished goods: Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost

and net realisable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing

overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods are

determined on a weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs

of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as 

follows:

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are

prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These

budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term

growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash

flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates

cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless

an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average

growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the

market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and

loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such

properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of

CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying

amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in

future periods.
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(i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

  - Debt instruments at amortised cost

  - Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

  - Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

  - Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

(1) Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

(2) Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

(b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

(3) Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria

for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost

or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a

measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has not

designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes

recognized in the P&L.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at

fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial

asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame

established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the

trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual

cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost

is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an

integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The

losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to

trade and other receivables.

(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling

the financial assets, and

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting

date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

However, the group recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange

gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in

OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is

reported as interest income using the EIR method.
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(4) Equity investments

Derecognition

  - The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

Impairment of financial assets

(ii) Financial liabilties

Initial recognition and measurement

For trade receivables only, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial

Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the

receivables.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective

hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and

payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank

overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Interest in associate is carried at cost.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation

to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’

arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-

through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of

ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the

asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the

extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated

liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights

and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the

lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the

Group could be required to repay.

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets

carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends

on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 38 details how the Group

determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are

held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to

which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make

an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value.

The Group makes such election on an instrument by- instrument basis. The classification is made on

initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the

instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from

OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss

within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes

recognized in the P&L.
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Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

(1) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(2) Loans and borrowings

Derecognition

(iii) Reclassification of financial assets

(iv) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated

as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities

designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in

OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Group may transfer the

cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the

statement of profit or loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through

profit and loss.

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and

borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or

costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the

statement of profit and loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or

modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial

recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial

liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a

change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to

be infrequent. The Group’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of

external or internal changes which are significant to the Group’s operations. Such changes are evident to

external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Group either begins or ceases to

perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies

the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately

next reporting period following the change in business model. The Group does not restate any

previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if

there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to

settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and

financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial

liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near

term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.
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(j) Property, plant and equipment

Transition to Ind AS

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Freehold buildings 25-40 years

Machinery 10-15 years

Furniture, fittings and equipment 03-08 years

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's expert

which are higher than those specified by Schedule II to the Companies Act; 2013, in order to reflect the

actual usage of the assets. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each

reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if

the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are

included in profit or loss within other gains/(losses).

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction net of accumulated

depreciation and impairment loss (if any). Internally manufactured property, plant and equipment are

capitalised atcost, including GST for which credit is not available, wherever applicable. All significant

costs relating to the acquisition and installation of property, plant and equipment are capitalised. Such

cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for

long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and

equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on

their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the

carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All

other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. The

present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the

cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to

the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component

accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are

charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property,

plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2020 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that

carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is calculated using the written down value method to allocate their cost, net of their

residual values, over their estimated useful lives or, in the case of certain leased furniture, fittings and

equipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the asset’s useful

life or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty

that the Group will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.
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(k) Investment properties

(l) Intangible assets

Computer software

 -      the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software include employee costs and an

appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at which

the asset is available for use.

Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique

software products controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when the following

criteria are met:

 -      it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use

 -      management intends to complete the software and use or sell it

 -      there is an ability to use or sell the software

 -      it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits

 -      adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell 

the software are available, and

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not

occupied by the Group, is classified as investment property. Investment property is measured initially at

its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent

expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic

benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be

measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of

an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

Investment properties generally have a useful life of 25-40 years. The useful life has been determined

based on technical evaluation performed by the management’s expert.
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Research and development

Amortisation methods and periods

Computer software 10 years

Research & Development Expenses for EMFR 30 years

Transition to Ind AS

(m) Trade and other payables

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of intangible

assets recognised as at April 1, 2020 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as

the deemed cost of intangible assets.

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of

financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 45 - 60 days of

recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due

within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are

recognized

as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate:

- The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or

sale

 - Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

 - How the asset will generate future economic benefits

 - The availability of resources to complete the asset

 - The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less

any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins

when

development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected

future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such

expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. During the period of development, the asset

is tested for impairment annually. 

Revenue expenditure is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss and Capital Expenditure is added to

the cost of Property, Plant and Equipment in the year in which it is incurred. The Group is pursuing

development of new technologies and has capitalised the expenditure incurred on the Research and

Development. Research expenditure and development expenditure that do not meet the criteria

specified above are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as

an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

The Group amortises intangible assets with a finite useful life using the written down value method over

the following periods:
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(n) Borrowing costs

(o) Provisions

General

(p) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly

within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are

recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at

the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current

employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months

after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore

measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided

by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits

are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating

to the terms of the related obligation.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an

unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless

of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or

production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete

and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a

substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their

expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other

borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a

past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to

settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the

Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,

the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually

certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any

reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax

rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the

increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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(iii) Post-employment obligations

The Group operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a)   defined benefit plans such as gratuity, pension, post-employment medical plans; and

(b)   defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

Post-employment medical obligations

Defined contribution plans

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit

obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the

statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial

assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.

They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or

curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Group provide post-retirement healthcare benefits to their retirees. The entitlement to these benefits is

usually conditional on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of a

minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of

employment using the same accounting methodology as used for defined benefit plans.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial

assumptions are charged or credited in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

The Group pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local

regulations. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The

contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as

employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the

extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension and gratuity

plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the

fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the

projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting

the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on

government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The benefits

which are denominated in currency other than INR, the cash flows are discounted using market yields

determined by reference to high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which

the benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
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(vi) Termination benefits

(q) Dividends

(r) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

  - the profit attributable to owners of the Group

Dilluted earnings per share

(s) Current/non current classification

All other assets are classified as non-current.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

  - It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

  - It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

  - There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in

cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

  - Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

  - Held primarily for the purpose of trading

  - Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

  - Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period

A liability is current when:

  - It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no

longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at

the end of the reporting period.

- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for

bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to

take into account:

- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential

equity

- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming

the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current

classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal

retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.

The Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group can

no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a

restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37 and involves the payment of terminations benefits. In

the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured

based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12

months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.
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(t) Segment reporting

(u) Rounding of amounts

3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

(iii) Valuation of deferred tax assets

(iv) Provisions and Contingent liabilities

(i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such lives

are dependent upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely

economic lives based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and operating

costs. Accordingly, depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information available to the

Management.

(ii) Impairment of non financial assets

Determining whether the asset is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-

generating units to which asset/goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the

Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable

discount rate in order to calculate present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than

expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

The Group reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a

reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each Balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect

the current best estimates.

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakh as 

per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, the management of

the Group are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated

assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that

period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the directors have

made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect

on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the

chief operating decision maker.

The board of directors of Nitiraj Engineers Limited has appointed a strategic steering committee which

assesses the financial performance and position of the Group, and makes strategic decisions. The

steering committee, which has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker, consists of

the chief executive officer, the chief financial officer and the manager for corporate planning.
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

 Particulars  Land 
  Buildings

(Refer (i) below) 

 Plant and 

Equipments

(Refer (i) below) 

 Furniture and 

Fixtures 
 Vehicles 

 Office 

Equipments 
 Computer   Solar  System 

 Electric 

Installations 

 Capital Work in 

Progress 
 Total 

GROSS CARRYING VALUE 

As at April 1, 2021 419.52                1,427.21                 825.41                     142.24                49.97                 35.13                 46.64                 3.46                    159.29               514.18               3,623.04           

Additions 4.41                     656.95                     133.17                     43.83                  0.99                    14.03                 16.12                 27.51                 49.92                 946.94               

Disposals -                       (49.88)                      (122.06)                   (44.91)                 (2.94)                  (8.58)                  (1.89)                  -                      (19.06)                (514.18)              (763.50)             

As at March 31, 2022 423.93                2,034.28                 836.52                    141.16                48.02                 40.57                 60.86                 30.97                 190.16               -                      3,806.48           

Additions -                       19.41                       46.90                       4.05                     0.73                    17.31                 7.69                    3.06                    0.83                    -                      99.98                 

Disposals\Adjustments during the period (1.35)                   -                           -                           (0.58)                   (1.24)                  -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      (3.16)                  

As at March 31, 2023 422.59                2,053.69                 883.41                    144.63                47.52                 57.89                 68.55                 34.03                 190.99               -                      3,903.30           

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION/IMPAIRMENT

As at April 1, 2021 -                       146.28                     114.54                     7.79                     6.49                    4.31                    14.57                 1.38                    12.31                 -                      307.69               

Depreciation for the year -                       146.94                     114.13                     10.89                  6.06                    4.53                    14.67                 1.56                    13.13                 -                      311.91               

Deductions\Adjustments during the period -                       (0.38)                        (61.60)                     (6.04)                   (0.81)                  (2.04)                  (1.24)                  -                      (2.11)                  -                      (74.23)                

As at March 31, 2022 -                      292.84                     167.07                    12.64                  11.74                 6.81                   28.00                 2.94                   23.33                 -                      545.36               

Depreciation for the year -                       182.69                     101.75                     13.02                  5.48                    6.71                    14.04                 11.22                 16.73                 -                      351.63               

Deductions\Adjustments during the period -                       -                           -                           (0.18)                   (0.55)                  -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      (0.73)                  

As at March 31, 2023 -                      475.53                     268.82                    25.48                  16.68                 13.51                 42.03                 14.15                 40.06                 -                      896.27               

Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2023 422.59                1,578.16                 614.59                    119.15                30.84                 44.38                 26.52                 19.87                 150.93               -                      3,007.03           

Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2022 423.93                1,741.44                 669.45                    128.52                36.28                 33.77                 32.86                 28.03                 166.83               -                      3,261.12           

* Refer Note 34

(i) The above includes the right of use asset recognised under Ind AS 116 Leases as under: (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Balance 

As on

1-Apr-2022

Additions/

Adjustments 

during the year

Deduction / 

Adjustment during 

the year

Balance 

As on

31-Mar-2023

Balance 

As on

01-04-2022

Additions/

Adjustments 

during the year

Deduction / 

Adjustment 

during the year

Balance 

As on

31-Mar-2023

Balance 

As on

31-Mar-2023

Balance 

As on

31-Mar-2022

ROU - Building 44.00                  13.81                       -                           57.81                  22.41                 17.73                 -                      40.15                 17.67                 21.59                 

ROU - Plant & Equipment 3.93                     -                           -                           3.93                     0.38                    1.93                    -                      2.31                    1.62                    3.56                    

Total 47.93                  13.81                       -                           61.75                  22.79                 19.67                 -                      42.46                 19.29                 25.15                 

Balance 

As on

1-Apr-2021

Additions/

Adjustments 

during the year

Deduction / 

Adjustment during 

the year

Balance 

As on

31-Mar-2022

Balance 

As on

01-Apr-2021

Additions/

Adjustments 

during the year

Deduction / 

Adjustment 

during the year

Balance 

As on

31-Mar-2022

Balance 

As on

31-Mar-2022

Balance 

As on

1-Apr-2021

ROU - Building 79.87                  11.81                       (47.69)                     44.00                  20.90                 24.35                 (22.85)                22.41                 21.59                 58.97                 

ROU - Plant & Equipment -                       3.93                         -                           3.93                     -                      0.38                    -                      0.38                    3.56                    -                      

Total 79.87                  15.75                       (47.69)                     47.93                  20.90                 24.73                 (22.85)                22.79                 25.15                 58.97                 

ii. Contractual Obligations

#REF!

Net Carrying Amount

Particulars

Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Depreciation / Amortisation

Particulars

Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Depreciation / Amortisation Net Carrying Amount
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5. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars Amount

GROSS CARRYING VALUE

 As at April 1, 2021 9.64                        

Additions 4.93                        

 As at March 31, 2022 14.57                      

Additions -                          

As at March 31, 2023 14.57                      

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT

 As at April 1, 2021 0.93                        

Depreciation 1.31                        

 As at March 31, 2022 2.25                        

Depreciation 1.23                        

As at March 31, 2023 3.48                        

Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2023 11.09                      

Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2022 12.32                      

Notes :

i. Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss for investment properties (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Rental Income 9.39                        10.10                                 

Direct Operating expenses from property that generated rental 

income

(1.46)                       (1.87)                                  

Direct Operating expenses from property that did not generate 

rental income

-                          -                                     

Profit from investment properties before depreciation 7.93                        8.23                                   

Depreciation 1.23                        1.31                                   

Profit from investment properties 6.70                        6.92                                   

ii. Leasing Arrangements

Investment properties are leased to tenants under long term operating leases with rentals payable monthly.

Minimum Lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases of investment properties are as follows:(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Within one year 11.57                      7.86                                   

Later than one year but not later than 5 years 14.16                      15.00                                 

Later than 5 years 9.15                        5.00                                   

Total 34.88                      27.86                                 
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iii. Fair Value

Reconciliation of Fair Value:

Particulars (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Opening Balance as at April 1, 2021 291.08                               

Fair Value Difference 1.93                                   

Purchases -                                     

Balance as at March 31, 2022 293.00                               

Fair Value Difference -                                     

Purchases -                                     

Closing balance as at March 31, 2023 293.00                               

Generally, a change in the assumption made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by:

  - A directionally similar change in the rent growth per annum and discount rate (and exit yield)

  - An opposite change in the long term vacancy rate

The Group  has not obtained independent valuations for its investment properties during the year. The best 

evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar properties. 

The main inputs used are the rental growth rates, expected vacancy rates, terminal yields and discount rates 

based on comparable transactions and industry data.
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars Software
Capitalised

development

expenditure

Intangible 

assets under 

development

 Total 

GROSS CARRYING VALUE 

As at April 1, 2021 -                  -                  601.02            601.02            

Additions 49.96              307.50            112.87            470.33            

Deletions -                  -                  (553.73)          (553.73)          

As at March 31, 2022 49.96              307.50           160.16           517.62           

Additions -                  -                  -                  -                  

Deletions -                  -                  -                  -                  

As at March 31, 2023 49.96              307.50           160.16           517.62           

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION 

As at April 1, 2021 -                  -                  -                  -                  

Amortisation for the year 0.01                0.03                -                  0.04                

Deductions\Adjustments during the period -                  -                  -                  -                  

As at March 31, 2022 0.01                0.03                -                  0.04                

Amortisation for the year 4.98                10.21              -                  15.19              

Deductions\Adjustments during the period -                  -                  -                  -                  

As at March 31, 2023 4.99                10.24              -                  15.23              

Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2023 44.96              297.26           160.16           502.38           

Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2022 49.94              307.47           160.16           517.57           

Intangible assets under development ageing schedule

March 31, 2023 (Amount in INR Lakhs)

 Less than 1 

Year 
 1-2 Years  2-3 Years 

 More than 3 

Years 

Projects in Progress -                  146.73            13.43              -                  160.16            

Projects temporarily suspended -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total -                  146.73            13.43              -                  160.16            

March 31, 2022 (Amount in INR Lakhs)

 Less than 1 

Year 
 1-2 Years  2-3 Years 

 More than 3 

Years 

Projects in Progress 146.73            13.43              -                  -                  160.16            

Projects temporarily suspended -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total 146.73            13.43              -                  -                  160.16            

Particulars

 The company does not have any intangible asset under development whose completion is overdue or whose costs have exceeded its 

original plan. 

Total

Particulars Total

 Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of 

Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of
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7. FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(A) INVESTMENTS

 (1) Non Current 

 Investments carried at cost 

 Unquoted 

 Investments in Associates 

 Equity Shares (March 31, 2023 : Nil) of INR 10 each at a premium of INR 5,990 per share in 

Hyper Drive Information Technologies Private Limited

(Number of shares; March 31, 2022 : 3,334) 

                              -   147.82                     

 Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 

 Unquoted 

 Investments in Equity Instruments 

 690 Equity Shares of INR 10 each in Merchant  Co-op. Bank Limited

 (Number of shares; March 31, 2022 : 690) 

                          0.07 0.07                         

 Investments carried at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 

 Unquoted 

 Investments in Equity Instruments 

 2,234 Equity Shares of INR 10 each at a premium of INR 5,990 per share in Hyper Drive 

Information Technologies Private Limited

(Number of shares; March 31, 2022 : Nil) 

                       95.68 -                           

 Investment carried at amortised cost 

 Unquoted 

Investments in Government  securities

 National Savings Certificate                           1.04 1.04                         

 Total                        96.79                      148.93 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments -                           -                           

Market value of quoted investments -                           -                           

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 96.79                       148.93                     

Investments carried at amortised cost 1.04                         1.04                         

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 0.07                         0.07                         

Investments carried at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 95.68                       -                           

Investments carried at cost -                           147.82                     

 (2) Current 

 Investments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss 

 Unquoted 

  Investment in Gold                        51.73 44.74                       

 Total                        51.73                        44.74 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments                               -                                 -   

Market value of quoted investments                               -                                 -   

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments                        51.73                        44.74 

(B) LOANS

Current

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

 Loans to Employees                        27.01 98.91                       

Total                        27.01                        98.91 
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(C) OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Non Current

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity *                           9.49 24.44                       

Lease Deposits                           5.60 4.98                         

Total 15.10                       29.42                       

Current

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Lease Deposits                        10.34 10.34                       

Tender Deposits                        52.57 84.77                       

Interest Accrued but not due                           0.43 0.42                         

Total 63.34                       95.52                       

*Lien marked with banks 

8. INVENTORIES

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

(Valued at lower of Cost and Net Realisable value)

 Raw materials 1,755.44                 1,321.37                 

 Work-in-process 187.09                     123.99                     

 Finished goods 369.90                     100.84                     

Total                   2,312.43                   1,546.19 

9. TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Current

Trade Receivables from customers 652.06                     824.75                     

652.06                    824.75                    

Breakup of Security details

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good 652.06                     824.75                     

Significant increase in credit risk 12.25                       17.31                       

664.31                    842.06                    

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Significant increase in credit risk 12.25                       17.31                       

12.25                       17.31                       

Total 652.06                    824.75                    

Trade or Other Receivable due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person 

amounted to INR Nil (Previous year INR Nil)

Trade or Other Receivable due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a 

member amounted to INR Nil (Previous year INR Nil)
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TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE

As at March 31, 2023 (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  Unbilled  Not Due 
 Less than 6 

months 

6 months - 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 

years
Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables

(i)  Considered good -                 -                 517.05          12.13            79.71            33.55            9.93               652.36          

(ii) Which have significant increase in credit risk -                 -                 
-                 

-                 -                 
-                 -                 

-                 

(iii) Credit Impaired -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Disputed Trade Receivables

(i)  Considered good -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 19.91            19.91            

(ii) Which have significant increase in credit risk -                 -                 
-                 

-                 -                 
-                 -                 

-                 

(iii) Credit Impaired -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

-                 -                 517.05          12.13            79.71            33.55            29.83            672.27          

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 20.21            

Total -                 -                 517.05          12.13            79.71            33.55            29.83            652.06          

As at March 31, 2022 (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  Unbilled  Not Due 
 Less than 6 

months 

6 months - 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 

years
Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables

(i)  Considered good -                 -                 757.43          5.60               44.51            4.92               9.69               822.15          

(ii) Which have significant increase in credit risk -                 -                 
-                 

-                 -                 
-                 -                 

-                 

(iii) Credit Impaired -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Disputed Trade Receivables

(i)  Considered good -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 19.91            19.91            

(ii) Which have significant increase in credit risk -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

(iii) Credit Impaired -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

-                 -                 757.43          5.60              44.51            4.92              29.60            842.06          

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 17.31            

Total -                 -                 757.43          5.60              44.51            4.92              29.60            824.75          
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10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

 Balances with banks on current accounts                           0.20 0.10                         

 Cash on hand                        28.77 26.92                       

 Total 28.98                       27.02                       

11. OTHER BANK BALANCES

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Deposits with banks to the extent held as margin money                        56.50 50.43                       

Other deposits with banks                               -   3.77                         

 Total 56.50                       54.20                       

12. OTHER ASSETS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Non Current

Capital Advances                      132.66 1.23                         

Security Deposits                           8.88 8.61                         

Prepaid expenses                           2.15 0.87                         

Payment of Taxes (Net of Provisions)                        71.62 32.42                       

Balances with Statutory, Government Authorities                      172.10 163.83                     

Other non current assets                      318.76 221.52                     

Total                      706.18                      428.49 

Current

Advances other than Capital advances

 - Security Deposits                               -   1.51                         

 - Advances to Suppliers                      204.65 197.02                     

 - Advances to employees                           3.58 3.58                         

Others

Prepaid expenses                           1.69 -                           

Balances with Statutory, Government Authorities                      106.64 84.45                       

Other current assets                        47.27 222.42                     

Total                      363.83                      508.96 

Bank deposits earns interest at fixed rates. Short term deposits are generally made for varying periods between

seven days to twelve months, depending on the cash requirements of the group, and earn interest at the

respective deposit rates
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13. INCOME TAX

Deferred Tax (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Deferred tax relates to the following:

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes                              (53.71) (36.79)                           

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss                                  0.77 (7.10)                             

Provision for gratuity                                21.51 18.28                            

Provision for leave encashment                                  1.37 1.55                               

Allowance for credit loss on financial assets                                  5.09 6.36                               

Losses available for offsetting against future taxable income                                97.01 100.68                          

Other temporary differences                                  3.38 2.39                               

Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities)                                75.43                              85.37 

Movement in deferred tax liabilities/assets

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Opening balance as of April 1 85.37                              (26.63)                           

Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss (19.05)                             109.90                          

Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in OCI 9.11                                 2.09                               

Closing balance as at March 31 75.43                              85.37                            

Major Components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are as follows:

i. Income tax recognised in profit or loss (Amount in INR Lakhs)

2022-23 2021-22

Current income tax charge -                                   -                                 

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous year -                                   0.16                               

Deferred tax 19.05                              (109.90)                         

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences -                                   -                                 

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 19.05                              (109.74)                         

ii. Income tax recognised in OCI

2022-23 2021-22

Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 9.11                                 2.09                               

Income tax expense recognised in OCI 9.11                                2.09                              

Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by income tax rate for March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

2022-23 2021-22

Accounting profit before income tax (3.92)                               (462.48)                         

Enacted tax rate in India 25.17% 25.17%

Income tax on accounting profits (0.99)                               (116.40)                         

Effect of

Change in carried forward Losses 18.83                              

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes -                                   2.31                               

Other 1.21                                 4.34                               

Tax at effective income tax rate 19.05                              (109.74)                         

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and

current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liablities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax

authority
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14. SHARE CAPITAL

i. Authorised Share Capital (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Number Amount

At April 1, 2021 1,10,00,000    1,100.00        

Increase/(decrease) during the year -                   -                  

At March 31, 2022 1,10,00,000    1,100.00        

Increase/(decrease) during the year -                   -                  

At March 31, 2023 1,10,00,000    1,100.00        

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

ii. Issued Capital

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Number Amount

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and 

fully paid

At April 1, 2021      1,02,51,000          1,025.10 

Issued during the period                       -                        -   

At March 31, 2022 1,02,51,000             1,025.10 

Issued during the period -                   -                  

At March 31, 2023 1,02,51,000    1,025.10        

iii. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Number % holding Number % holding

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Mr. Rajesh  Bhatwal 46,03,875       44.91% 43,03,875      41.98%

Mrs.  Shakuntala  Bhatwal 23,95,500       23.37% 23,95,500      23.37%

Mr. Yi Hung Sing 8,32,500         8.12% 8,32,500        8.12%

iv. Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year

Shares held by promoter at the end of the year

Promoter's Name
No. of shares 

held

% of total 

shares

No. of shares 

held

% of total 

shares

Rajesh Raghunath Bhatwal 46,03,875    44.91          43,03,875   41.98          6.97          

Shakuntala Rajesh Bhatwal 23,95,500    23.37          23,95,500   23.37          -            

Meerabai Raghunath Bhatwal 62,375             0.61             62,375            0.61             -            

Prachi Rajesh Bhatwal 15,125             0.15             15,125            0.15             -            

Deepa Khatri 3,125               0.03             3,125              0.03             -            

Alok Raghunath Bhatwal -                   -               3,00,000        2.93             (100.00)    

Year Bonus Shares

March 31, 2023                       -   

March 31, 2022                       -   

March 31, 2021                       -   

March 31, 2020  20,50,200 

March 31, 2019                       -   

vi. None of the above shares are reserved for issue under options/ contract/ commitments for sale of shares or disinvestment.

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Name of the shareholder 

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of

the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 

Equity Share of INR 10 each

The Company has one class of Equity shares having a par value of INR 10 each. Each holder of Equity shares is entitled to

one vote per share and are subject to the preferential rights as prescribed under law or those of preference

shareholders,if any. The Equity share holders are also subject to restrictions as presribed under the Companies Act,

2013. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is 

Particulars

As on 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022 % Change 

during the 

year

v. Aggregate number of equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares

bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

219



NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

15. OTHER EQUITY

i. Reserves and Surplus (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
 March 31, 

2023 

March 31, 

2022

Securities Premium Reserve 1,775.70         1,775.70        

Retained Earnings 3,957.19         3,969.13        

Total 5,732.89         5,744.83        

(a) Securities Premium Reserve (Amount in INR Lakhs)

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Opening balance 1,775.70         1,775.70        

Add/(Less): Changes during the period -                   -                  

Closing balance 1,775.70         1,775.70        

(b) Retained Earnings (Amount in INR Lakhs)

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Opening balance 3,969.13         4,328.09        

Net Profit/(Loss) for the period (22.98)              (352.74)          

Add/(Less):

Items of Other Comprehensive Income directly 

recognised in Retained Earnings

Remeasurement of post employment benefit 

obligation, net of tax

1.60                 (6.22)               

Fair Value of  Equity Instruments through Other 

Comprehensive Income, net of tax

9.44                 -                  

Closing balance 3,957.19         3,969.13        
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16. BORROWINGS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Current Borrowings

 Secured 

 Loans repayable on demand from Banks                           298.54 371.47                        

Total 298.54                          371.47                       

17. LEASE LIABILITIES

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

 Non Current

Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 34)                                6.55 9.37                            

Total 6.55                              9.37                            

 Current

Lease Liabilities (Refer Note 34)                              14.02 17.00                          

Total 14.02                            17.00                          

18. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

 Current

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

Dues to employees                              67.46 122.56                        

COFLAC12 Deposits Payable                                7.05 7.62                            

COFLAC10 Others                                6.33 39.47                          

Total 80.84                            169.65                       

19. TRADE PAYABLES

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Current

Trade Payables to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises                                    -   -                              

Trade Payables to Others                           259.61 98.97                          

Total 259.61                          98.97                          
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TRADE PAYABLES AGEING SCHEDULE

As at March 31, 2023 (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  Unbilled  Not Due 
 Less than 1 

Year 
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 

3 years
Total

(i) MSME -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

(ii) Others -               -               239.74        10.63          1.31             7.93             259.61        

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

(iv) Disputed dues -Others -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

Total -               -               239.74        10.63          1.31            7.93            259.61        

As at March 31, 2022 (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  Unbilled  Not Due 
 Less than 1 

Year 
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 

3 years
Total

(i) MSME -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

(ii) Others -               -               89.96          1.20             1.16             6.65             98.97          

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

(iv) Disputed dues -Others -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

Total -               -               89.96          1.20            1.16            6.65            98.97          
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20. OTHER LIABILITIES

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

 Non Current

 Government Grants                        14.81 4.51                         

                       14.81                          4.51 

Current

 Advance received from Customers                      415.79 135.52                    

 Government Grants                          2.16 1.18                         

 Other Payable                        13.14 31.22                      

 Statutory dues payable                        12.14 19.12                      

                     443.24                      187.05 

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Non Current

 Provision for employee benefits 

Gratuity (Refer Note 33)                        68.19 57.11                      

 Leave encashment                           5.09 5.35                         

73.28                      62.46                      

Current

 Provision for employee benefits 

Gratuity (Refer Note 33)                        33.19 31.44                      

 Leave encashment                           0.37 0.79                         

33.57                      32.23                      

22. CURRENT TAX LIABILITY/(ASSET)  (NET)

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

 Opening balance                      (39.11) 84.89                      

 Add: Current tax payable for the year                        26.54 -                           

 Less: Taxes paid                               -   (123.99)                   

 Closing Balance (12.57)                     (39.11)                     

23. GOVERNMENT GRANT

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

 Opening balance 5.69                         6.70                         

 Grants sanctioned during the year 21.16                      -                           

 Grants apportioned to land during the year (1.35)                       -                           

 Released to statement of profit and loss                         (8.53) (1.00)                       

 Closing Balance 16.98                      5.69                        

Total

21. PROVISIONS

Total

Total

Total
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24. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2022-23  2021-22 

A. Revenue from contracts with customers

 Sale of products 

 Machines                    4,384.31 3,801.23                  

 Spares                       210.49 119.79                     

Sale of services                           5.32 32.47                       

 Other Operating Revenues                           7.83 9.14                         

 Total 4,607.95                 3,962.63                 

B. Disaggregated revenue information

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

 2022-23 2021-22

Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on geography

a. Domestic                   4,588.36                   3,928.32 

b. Exports                         19.59                         34.31 

Total Revenue from Operation                   4,607.95                   3,962.63 

C. Reconciliation of Gross Revenue from Contracts With Customers (Amount in INR Lakhs)

 2022-23 2021-22

Gross Revenue                   4,638.84                   4,001.70 

Less : Discount                       (30.89)                       (39.07)

Net Revenue recognised from Contracts with Customers                   4,607.95                   3,962.63 

 

25. OTHER INCOME

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2022-23  2021-22 

 Interest income on Bank fixed deposits                         14.73 21.30                       

 Interest income on others                           1.27 1.16                         

 Rental income                           9.39 10.10                       

 Government grants income                           8.53 1.00                         

 Fair value gain on financial instruments at FVTPL                           6.99 6.54                         

 Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment                           0.96 13.55                       

 Miscellaneous Income                           5.14 4.57                         

Total 47.02                       58.22                       

The table below presents disaggregated revenue from contact with customers for the year ended March 2023 and March 2022.

The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and

cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.
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26. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2022-23  2021-22 

 Inventories as at the beginning of the year 

 Work - in - process                       123.99 121.37                     

 Finished goods                       100.84 184.42                     

 Total 224.82                     305.80                     

 Less : Inventories as at the end of the year 

 Work - in - process                       187.09 123.99                     

 Finished goods                       369.90 100.84                     

 Total 556.99                     224.82                     

 Net decrease / (increase) in inventories (332.17)                   80.97                       

27. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2022-23  2021-22 

 Salaries, wages and bonus                       491.58 510.14                     

 Contribution to provident and other funds                         32.49 34.42                       

 Total 524.07                     544.56                     

28. FINANCE COST

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2022-23  2021-22 

 Interest expense on borrowings and lease liabilties                         19.96 36.06                       

 Other borrowing costs                         11.91 13.47                       

 Total 31.88                       49.53                       

29. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2022-23  2021-22 

 Depreciation on tangible assets                       351.63 311.91                     

 Amortisation on intangible assets                         15.19 0.04                         

 Depreciation on investment properties                           1.23 1.31                         

 Total 368.06                     313.26                     
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30. OTHER EXPENSES

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2022-23  2021-22 

 Manufacturing Expenses 

 Power & Fuel                         12.46 29.00                       

 Labour and Processing Charges                       380.48 330.26                     

 Total (A) 392.94                     359.26                     

 Selling, Administration and Other Expenses 

 Commission to Selling Agents                         70.42 44.52                       

 Stamping fees                       250.42 162.64                     

 Other selling expenses                         39.45 8.26                         

 Advertisement                         18.16 34.07                       

 Transportation & Handling Charges                       122.76 160.23                     

 Tender Expenses                           2.02 3.66                         

 Rent                           2.15 4.94                         

 Repairs and maintenance 

 Factory Building                           1.38 2.94                         

 Plant and Machinery                           9.66 11.74                       

 Others                           7.84 7.45                         

 Rates and taxes                         16.78 12.99                       

 Insurance                         15.34 12.11                       

 Telephone expenses                           8.01 9.26                         

 Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Refer note below)                               -   8.87                         

 Software & Computer Exp.                         47.56 9.97                         

 Legal and professional fees                         70.33 48.27                       

 Payments to auditors (Refer note below)                           5.00 3.50                         

 Travelling & conveyance expenses                       107.25 94.92                       

 Housekeeping Expenses                           7.81 7.81                         

 Electricity charges                           2.24 1.54                         

 Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment                           0.18 -                           

 Donation                           2.26 0.33                         

 Sundry balance written off                         17.72 30.95                       

 Miscellaneous expenses                         38.03 30.50                       

 Total (B) 862.75                     711.46                     

 Total (A+B) 1,255.69                 1,070.72                 

(a) Details of Payments to auditors (Amount in INR Lakhs)

 2022-23  2021-22 

As auditor

Audit Fee 2.00                         3.50                         

Tax audit fee 0.60                         -                           

In other capacity

Company law matters 1.10                         -                           

Other services (certification fees) 0.90                         -                           

Re-imbursement of expenses 0.40                         -                           

Total 5.00                         3.50                         
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(b) Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year. 19.60                       8.87                         

Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 19.60                       8.87                         

Amount spent during the year on*:

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 19.60                       5.64                         

Total amount spent during the year 19.60                       5.64                         

Amount transferred to CSR Unspent A/C -                           -                           

The amount of shortfall at the end of the year out of the amount required to be spent 

by the Company during the year

-                           3.23                         

The total of previous years’ shortfall amounts -                           -                           

The reason for above shortfalls

-

 Balance amount of 

Rs. 3.23 lacs is to 

be transferred to 

the fund included 

in schedule VII of 

the Act. 

Details of related party transactions NA NA

Provision for CSR Expenses

Opening Balance 19.60                       16.38                       

Add: Provision created during the period 8.87                         

Less: Provision utilised during the period 19.60                       5.64                         

Closing Balance -                           19.60                       

31. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars  2022-23  2021-22 

 Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment                               -   123.15                     

 Write off of Intangible Asset under development                               -   196.27                     

 Sale of Investment in Associate                           0.11 -                           

 Total 0.11                         319.42                     

During the F.Y. 2021-22 holding company has closed down one of its Manufacturing Unit at Parwanoo, which has resulted in

exceptional loss of Rs. 123.15 lacs on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Also, the holding company had been developing its "Electronic Cash Register (Billing Machine)" and had re assessed its strategy

in response to the change in market conditions that the intangible cannot be developed as intended initially and has hence

shelved the project resulting in write off of Rs 196.27 lacs. as a exceptional item.

*Unspent amount as on 31st March 2022 is Rs. 19.60 lacs, out of which Rs. 16.38 lacs of F.Y. 2020-21 has been spent on the

projects identified by the company in F.Y. 2022-23 

 During the year holding company sold a portion of  it's stake in Hyper Drive Information Technologies Private Limited which has 

resulted in exceptional loss of Rs.0.11 lacs. 

227



NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

32. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

(a) Basic earnings per share (0.22)                       (3.44)                       

(b) Diluted earnings per share (0.22)                       (3.44)                       

(c) Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating basic earnings 

per share (in lacs) (22.98)                     (352.74)                   

Diluted earnings per share

Profit from continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the company (in 

lacs)

(22.98)                     (352.74)                   

Adjustments for calculation of dilluted earnings per share: -                           -                           
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating diluted 

earnings per share
(22.98)                     (352.74)                   

(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic 

earnings per share

1,02,51,000            1,02,51,000            

Adjustments for calculation of dilluted earnings per share: -                           -                           

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating 

diluted earnings per share

1,02,51,000           1,02,51,000           
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33. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Current Non Current Total Current Non Current Total

Leave obligations 0.37                 5.09                 5.46                      0.79                     5.35                      6.14                

Gratuity 33.19              68.19              101.39                 31.44                   57.11                    88.55              

Total Employee Benefit 

Obligation

33.57              73.28              106.85                 32.23                   62.46                    94.69              

(i) Leave Obligations

The leave obligations cover the griups's liability for sick and earned leave.

(ii) Post Employement obligations

a) Gratuity

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Discount rate 7.25% 7.25%

Expected return on plan assets -                       -                        

Salary growth rate 5.00% 5.00%

Normal retirement age 58 Years 58 Years

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is shown below:

Assumptions

Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease

March 31, 2023

Impact on defined benefit 

obligation

5.30                 6.09                 0.78                      0.90                     6.16                      5.45                 

% Impact 5% 6% 1% 1% 6% 5%

March 31, 2022

Impact on defined benefit 

obligation

5.56                 6.85                 6.29                      5.97                     6.86                      5.54                 

% Impact 10% 11% 2% 3% 12% 10%

Discount rate Withdrawal rate Salary growth rate

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined beenfit obligation as

a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period. 

 March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

The amount of the provision of INR 0.37 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: 0.79 lakhs) is presented as current, since the group does not have an

unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations.

The group provides for gratuity for employees in india as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous

service for a period of five years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the employees

last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied by number of years of service.

The gratuity plan is an unfunded plan and the group makes contributions to recognised funds in India. The group does not fully fund

the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity

payments.

229



NITIRAJ ENGINEERS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Within the next 12 months 33.19                    31.44                   

Between 2 and 5 years 23.51                    15.56                   

Beyond 5 years 44.69                    41.55                   

Total expected payments 101.39                  88.55                   
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Nature of the lease transaction:

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year: (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2023

As at 

March 31, 2022

Opening Balance 26.37                    61.71                    

Add: Additions during the year 13.81                    15.75                    

Add: Interest Expenses 2.30                       5.25                       

Less: Payments (21.90)                   (30.12)                   

Less: Cancellation -                         (26.21)                   

Closing Balance 20.57                    26.37                    

Non-current 6.55                       9.37                       

Current 14.02                    17.00                    

Amounts recognised in profit or loss (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Expenses relating to short-term leases 2.15                       2.16                       

Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Total cash outflow for leases 21.90                    30.12                    

Maturity Analysis of lease liabilities (undiscounted cashflows)): (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Less than 12 Months 17.00                    17.18                    

More than 12 Months 5.00                       11.46                    

22.01                    28.64                    Total

Refer Note 4 for details relating to Right of Use Assets.

The Group has taken various office buildings on lease with lease term ranging from 11 Months to 6 years Some lease contract can

be renewed with mutual consent and some lease contract also contains the termination options. Such options are appropriately

considered in determination of the lease term based on the management's judgement. 

34. Leases
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(Amount in INR Lakhs)

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i) List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

Nature of Relationship Name of Related Party Country of Incorporation

List of related parties :

Key Management Personnel Rajesh Raghunath Bhatwal (Chairman & Managing Director)

Shakuntala Rajesh Bhatwal (Whole Time Director & Women Director)

Hung Sin Chung Huanyi (Whole Time Director)

Pranit ANIL Bangad (Non Executive Independent Director)

Deepam Pradeep Shah (Non Executive Independent Director)

Avinash Rajaram Chandsarkar (Non Executive Independent Director)

Kailas Madanlal Agrawal (Chief Financial Officer)

Relatives of Key Management Personnel Prachi Rajesh Bhatwal

(ii) Transactions with related parties

The following transactions occurred with related parties

Rajesh Raghunath Bhatwal Remuneration 24.00                    24.00                    

Bonus 0.05                      0.05                      

Professional fees 19.00                    19.00                    

Sales Incentives -                        

Shakuntala Rajesh Bhatwal Remuneration 4.80                      4.80                      

Bonus 0.05                      0.05                      

Professional fees 19.00                    19.00                    

Hung Sin Chung Huanyi Remuneration 7.20                      6.90                      

Bonus 0.05                      0.05                      

Professional fees 4.80                      4.80                      

Kailas Madanlal Agrawal Remuneration 5.84                      5.42                      

Loan given 6.00                      

Loan repayment received 2.05                      

Bonus 0.07                      0.05                      

Deepika Amit Dalmiya Remuneration 3.03                      3.03                      

Bonus 0.05                      0.05                      

Prachi Rajesh Bhatwal Remuneration 6.00                      5.16                      

Bonus 0.07                      0.05                      

(iii) Key management personnel compensation

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Post-employment benefits 1.84                      3.51                      

1.84                      3.51                      

(iv) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Nature of Transaction March 31, 2022Name March 31, 2023

Deepika Amit Dalmiya (Company Secretary & Compliance Officer)

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding

balances at the year end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided

or received for any related party receivables and payables. For the year ended March 21, 2023, the group has not recorded any

impairment of receivables relating to amount owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through

examining the financial position of the related party and market in which the related party operates.
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(Amount in INR Lakhs)

36. SEGMENT REPORTING

C. Information about geographical areas

Revenue from external customers

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

India 4,588.36                3,928.32                

Outside India 19.59                      34.31                      

4,607.95                3,962.63                

An operating segment is one whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker

to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. The group is engaged in

manufacturing and selling of electronic equipments which constitute a single reportable segment in the context of Ind AS

108 on “Segment reporting”. 

The group is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of the

customers is shown in the table below:

For F.Y. 2021-22, Revenue from Director Social Welfare Jharkhand amounted to INR 468.71 which exceeded 10% of total

revenue for F.Y. 2021-22.
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37. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

i. Financial Instruments by Category (Amount in INR Lakhs)

March 31, 

2023

March 31, 

2022

March 31, 

2023

March 31, 

2022

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Amortised cost

Trade Receivables 652.06        824.75        652.06        824.75        

Loans 27.01          98.91          27.01          98.91          

Cash and Cash Equivalents 28.98          27.02          28.98          27.02          

Other Bank Balances 56.50          54.20          56.50          54.20          

Other Financial Assets 78.44          124.94        78.44          124.94        

Investment in Government Securities 1.04            1.04            1.04            1.04            

FVTPL

Investment in Equity Instruments 0.07            0.07            0.07            0.07            

Investment in Gold 51.73          44.74          51.73          44.74          

FVTOCI

Investment in Equity Instruments 95.68          -              95.68          -              

991.51        1,175.67    991.51        1,175.67    

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Amortised cost

Borrowings 298.54        371.47        298.54        371.47        

Lease liabilities 20.57          26.37          20.57          26.37          

Trade Payables 259.61        98.97          259.61        98.97          

Other financial liabilities 80.84          169.65        80.84          169.65        

659.56        666.46        659.56        666.46        

ii. Fair Value Hierarchy

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value 

Particulars

Quoted 

prices in 

active 

markets

(Level 1)

Significant 

Observable 

Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant 

Unobservab

le Inputs

(Level 3)

Quoted 

prices in 

active 

markets

(Level 1)

Significant 

Observable 

Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant 

Unobservab

le Inputs

(Level 3)

Financial Assets

Financial Investments at FVTPL

Quoted equity shares 0.07            -              -              0.07            0.07            -              -              0.07            

Gold 51.73          -              -              51.73          44.74          -              -              44.74          

Financial Investments at FVTOCI

Unquoted equity shares -              -              95.68          95.68          -              -              -              -              

Total Financial Assets 51.80          -              95.68          147.48        44.81          -              -              44.81          

Carrying Amount Fair Value

The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables, security deposit and other

current financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments. 

The fair values of non current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as level

3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk.

Particulars

Total

Total

TotalTotal

March 31, 2023

Fair value measurement using

March 31, 2022

Fair value measurement using
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There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the period

iii. Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific Valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

 - the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

 - the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are

valued using the closing NAV.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity

securities included in level 3.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the counter derivatives) is determined

using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs

required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Trade and other receivables

The above receivables which are past due but not impaired are assessed on case-to-case basis. The instances

pertain to third party customers which have a proven creditworthiness record. Management is of the view that

these financial assets are not impaired as there has not been any adverse change in credit quality and are

envisaged as recoverable based on the historical payment behavior and extensive analysis of customer credit risk,

including underlying customers’ credit ratings, if they are available. Consequently, no additional provision has

been created on account of expected credit loss on the receivables. There are no other classes of financial assets

that are past due but not impaired. The provision for impairment of trade receivables, movement of which has

been provided below, is not significant / material. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to fact that the

customer base is large and unrelated.

The group has a well-defined risk management framework. The Board of Directors of the group has adopted a

Risk Management Policy. The group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

▪ Credit risk ;

▪ Liquidity risk ; and

▪ Market risk

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to perform or fail to pay

amounts due causing financial loss to the group. The potential activities where credit risks may arise include from

cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and security deposits or other deposits and principally

from credit exposures to customers relating to outstanding receivables. The maximum credit exposure associated

with financial assets is equal to the carrying amount. Details of the credit risk specific to the group along with

relevant mitigation procedures adopted have been enumerated below:

The group's exposure to credit Risk is the exposure that group has on account of services rendered to a

contractual counterparty or counterparties, whether with collateral or otherwise for which the contracted

consideration is yet to be received.  The group's customer base are Industrial and Commercial.

Services are generally subject to security deposit and/or bank guarantee clauses to ensure that in the event of

non-payment the group's receivables are not affected. The group provides for allowance for impairment that

represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables.

The group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

based on a provision matrix.

Refer note 9 for ageing of trade receivables.
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Movements in Provision for Doubtful Allowance: (Amount in INR Lakhs)

As at As at

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Balance at the beginning of the year              17.31              19.35 

Movements in allowance:

Additional provision               (5.05)               (2.04)

Closing balance              12.25              17.31 

Other financial assets

(iii) Liquidity risk

Exposure to liquidity risk

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

March 31, 2023 Carrying 

Total
Less than 12 

months

More than 12 

months

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Current Borrowings            298.54           298.54            298.54                     -   

Non current lease liabilities                 6.55 5.00                                  -                   5.00 

Current lease liabilities               14.02 17.00                         17.00                     -   

Current financial liabilities               80.84 80.84                         80.84                     -   

Trade payables            259.61 259.61                     259.61                     -   

Total            659.56           661.00            655.99                5.00 

Other financial assets includes loan to employees, security deposits, investments, cash and cash equivalents,

other bank balance, derivative asset, advances to employees etc.

• Cash and cash equivalents and Bank deposits are placed with banks having good reputation and past track

record with adequate credit rating. 

• Investments are made in credit worthy companies.

• group has given security deposit to various purposes and management believes that the group does not have

exposure to any credit risk.

• Loan and advances to employees are majorly secured against the salary and hence the group does not have

exposure to any credit risk.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its

financial liabilities that are proposed to be settled by delivering cash or other financial asset. The group’s financial

planning has ensured, as far as possible, that there is sufficient liquidity to meet the liabilities whenever due,

under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the

group’s reputation. The group has practiced financial diligence and syndicated adequate liquidity in all business

scenarios.

Further, the group has also tied-up additional sources of liquidity to meet the liabilities during the respective

annual years which has ensured that the group has a clean track record with no adverse events pertaining to

liquidity risk.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts

are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting

agreements.

Particulars

Contractual maturities
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March 31, 2022 Carrying 

Total
Less than 12 

months

More than 12 

months

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Current Borrowings            371.47 371.47                     371.47                     -   

Non current lease liabilities                 9.37 11.46                                -                11.46 

Current lease liabilities               17.00 17.18                         17.18                     -   

Current financial liabilities            169.65 169.65                     169.65                     -   

Trade payables               98.97 98.97                         98.97                     -   

Total            666.46           668.73            657.27              11.46 

(iv) Market risk

Currency risk

Interest rate risk

Contractual maturities

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity

prices – will affect the group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. 

The functional currency of the group is Indian Rupees. The group do not have derivative financial instruments.

The group is not exposed to foreign currency risk. 

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate

risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest

rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments will

fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest rates.  The group is not materially exposed to interest rate risk. 
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39. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Borrowings 298.54                  371.47                  

Less: cash and cash equivalents (28.98)                   (27.02)                   

Less: Other bank balance (56.50)                   (54.20)                   

Adjusted net debt 213.06                  290.25                  

Equity 1,025.10               1,025.10               

Other Equity 5,732.89               5,744.83               

Total Equity 6,757.99               6,769.93               

Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 0.03                      0.04                      

The group defines capital as total equity including issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves

attributable to equity holders of the group (which is the group’s net asset value). The primary objective of the group’s

financial framework is to support the pursuit of value growth for shareholders, while ensuring a secure financial base.

The group monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt

is defined as total interest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total equity comprises all

components of equity.
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40.  Interest in other entities

(i) Details of interest in associates

Place of business
% of ownership 

interest

Relationship- 

Accounting 

method

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

India NA NA -                        -                        

India 25% Associate - Equity 

Method

-                        147.82                  

(ii) Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of associates - NIL

(iii) Reconciliation to carrying amounts (Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Opening net assets 569.61                  637.59                  

Profit for the year (18.81)                   (67.99)                   

Other comprehensive income -                        -                        

Dividend paid -                        -                        

Closing net assets 550.79                  569.61                  

Group's share in % 25% 25%

Group's share in INR 137.70                  142.40                  

Goodwill -                        5.42                      

Carrying amount -                        147.82                  

Group's share of profit/(loss) (4.70)                     (17.00)                   

Group's share of OCI -                        -                        

41.  Additional information required by Schedule III in respect of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Name of the entity

As % of 

consolidated net 

assets

Amount As % of 

consolidated 

profit or loss

Amount As % of 

consolidated OCI

Amount As % of 

consolidated 

Total comp. 

Income 

Amount

Parent

Nitiraj Engineers Limited

March 31, 2023 100% 6,757.99               80% (18.27)                   100% 11.04                    61% (7.23)                     

March 31, 2022 98% 6,622.11               95% (335.74)                 100% (6.22)                     95% (341.97)                 

Associate

March 31, 2023 0% -                        20% (4.70)                     0% -                        39% (4.70)                     

March 31, 2022 2% 147.82                  5% (17.00)                   0% -                        5% (17.00)                   

Total

March 31, 2023 100% 6,757.99               100% (22.98)                   100% 11.04                    100% (11.93)                   

March 31, 2022 100% 6,769.93               100% (352.74)                 100% (6.22)                     100% (358.96)                 

(Amount in INR Lakhs)

* During the year on February 24, 2023, the parent company made disinvestment of a portion of the stake in the "Hyper Drive Information Technologies Private Limited" which has

resulted in it no longer to be classified as an associate. 

Hyper Drive Information Technologies Private 

Limited

Name of entity 

Hyper Drive Information Technologies Private Limited

Net assets (total assets minus total 

liabilities)*

Hyper Drive Information Technologies Private Limited *

* During the year on February 24, 2023, the parent company made disinvestment of a portion of the stake in the "Hyper Drive Information Technologies Private Limited" which has resulted in it no longer

to be classified as an associate. Thus the profit/(loss) share from the associate is calculated up to the date of the sale of the stake.

Share in profit or (loss)* Share in other comprehensive 

income*

Share in total comprehensive 

income*

Carrying amount
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(Amount in INR Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

-                        -                       

-                        -                       

-                        -                       

-                        -                       

-                        -                       

-                        -                       

-                        -                       

* Amount includes due and unpaid of INR Nil (March 31, 2022: INR Nil)

Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, ( Section 16 )

42. DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM 

ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006 (MSMED ACT, 2006)

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006*

Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the 

Payment made to suppliers ( other than interest ) beyond the

appointed day, during the year

Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, ( other than Section 

Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for

payment already made

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to

suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006

The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as "Mico and

Small" enterprises on the basis of information available with the group.

43. OTHER REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

 - The group do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the 

group for holding any Benami property.

 - The group have not any such transaction which is  not recorded in the books of accounts that has been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such 

as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

 - The group do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

 - The group do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory 

period

 - The group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

 - The group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 

entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest 

in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the group (Ultimate 

Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

 - The group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) 

with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the group shall (a) directly or indirectly 

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b)provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
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45.  Amount due for credit to Investor Education and Protection Fund is NIL (Previous year NIL).

46. In the opinion of management, any of the assets other than property, plant and equipment and non-current

investments have a value on realisation in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which

they are stated.

 - The group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

 - The group does not have any Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of 

sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013

44 . As at the balance sheet date, the group has reviewed the carrying amounts of its assets and found that there is

no indication that those assets have suffered any impairment loss. Hence, no such impairment loss has been

provided.
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As per our report of even date

For SHARP AARTH & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. 132748W

Harshal Jethale Rajesh R. Bhatwal Shakuntala R. Bhatwal

Partner Managing Director Director

Membership No.: 141162 Din No.00547575 Din No.01953906

UDIN : 23141162BGUPMQ4987

Kailas M. Agrawal Deepika A. Dalmiya

Mumbai CFO Company Secretary

Date: May 30, 2023 Membership No. A58029

47. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT

48. Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever considered necessary to confirm to current year’s 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable

from April 1, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements 

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies.

Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence

decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. The group does not expect this amendment to have any

significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 – Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations.

The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption)

so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary

differences. The group is evaluating the impact, if any, in its financial statements.

Ind AS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting

Estimates and Errors The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The

definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new

definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.

Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that

involves measurement uncertainty. The group does not expect

this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements

For and on behalf of the board of directors of Nitiraj Engineers Limited
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